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2,001,622,245,209 0.0001__
622,245,209 0.0001__
1,097,165,602 0.0001__
25,000,000 0.0001__
2016 20
4,000,000 0.0001
2,480,500 0.0001

3,157,000 0.0001
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USA Visa U.S.A.
Inc. USA Visa
Canada Corporation

1933 144

2008 25
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1.6483

245,513,385
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1.00
2008 25
1.00x
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Visa International Service
Association

75

75

25,000,000

71267
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60 10
2.3 2.5 2.6
2.5 2.6
Dow Jones News Service
Associated Press
1934 13 14
15 SEC
2.5 2.6

60 10

2.5
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2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
2016
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
30 30 30 30 30
12 12 12 12 12
. 15,082 1 ... 13,880 | ... 12,702 1. 11,778 1. 10,421
1,706,830 1,570,800 1,437,485 1,332,916 1,179,345
R 7,199 1 4,816 | 0,005 1. 4,939 | 8,282
814,711 545,027 566,416 513,679 937,274
R 7,883 1. 9,064 1. 72897 o 75239 |, 2,139
892,119 1,025,773 871,069 819,238 242,071
e, 520 |, 6% o 61% o 61% e 21%
e, 129 N, (©9) | 20 18l 68 ..
14,599 (7,809) 3,056 2,037 7,696
e, 5991 ... 6,328 ... 0438 | 4,980 | ... 2,144
678,001 716,140 615,418 563,587 242,636
2.49 2.58 2.16 1.90 0.79
@ 282 292 244 215 89
2.48 2.58 2.16 1.90 0.79
@ [ e S R P R S R o
e, °:619 ... 3918 | LML o, 2,186 1. 2,074
635,902 398,132 223,058 247,390 234,715
e, 3,248 | ... 2,431 1 1,910 1. 1,994 1, 677
367,576 275,116 216,155 225,661 76,616
. 14,313 |......... 10,021 1 ... 9,962 | ... 7,822 | 11,786
1,619,802 1,134,077 1,082,132 885,216 1,333,822
e, 3,931 ... 3,384 | 3015 | 2,780 |, 3,283
444,871 382,967 341,208 312,349 371,537
e 84,035 39,367 |......... 37,943 | 35,495 |, 38,002
7,246,841 4,455,163 4,248,741 4,016,969 4,300,686
e, 981 1. 1,024 ... 1,456 o 2 4,386
111,020 115,886 164,776 566 496,364
e, 8,046 1 ... 52390 |, 6,006 ... 4,335 |l 7,954
910,566 606,025 679,699 490,592 900,154
32,912 29,842 | ... 20,413 ... 26,870 1. 27,630
3,724,651 3,377,219 3,102,329 3,040,878 3,126,887
0.56 0.48 0.40 0.33 0.22
P e e e e s
e 5:574 | ... 6,584 | . 75205 1 3,022 f .. 5,009
630,810 745,111 815,390 342,000 566,869

20/267




EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)

OOoOooOodnd
o (10,916) (1,439) | G4 1. (1,164) [ .....(2,414)
(1,235,364) | (162,399) |  (106,493) | (131,730) | (273,192)
e, [E5 L (3,603) [ ... 6,478) |........ (1,746) | .......(2,655)
846,172 (407,752) | (733,115) | (197,595) |  (300,466)
14,200 11,300 9,500 9,500 8,500
2015
2007
2007
2016 21
100 12.2
13.9 5.3 6.1 2019 6 21
1.0
200
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2015 Visa’ s Developer Platform VDP
180
Application Programming Interface API

2016
Threat Intelligence Fusion Platform

704 API
2016
2016 VDP
API
Google Microsoft
Samsung
DDA
2016 USAA

24/267



EDINETO OO
I o o o =)
ooooOoog

e A AT

i Bl ErRF et

Visa Government

Health Savings Account

VisA

W e B — FAERT A
heh T ATk
hud, FEEYZTL
B H ElE

« FIRisds LUl
WS TRFE >
FAr— FEEEREEE
&k

o LoV R
AT hDT A
it

LIS 5 e el e
Tdevh, TR
T:I";A":u.-"}ﬁlﬂullil‘l.lfm LT
VoA A mEit

A FETOR SR

bl i -

« L gl

XFL~DF I ERE
ik

s TR — A

€0 5 B 2

- 2RI L - TR

fr. EIRFIC L Sdait e
TR b 35 kORI A
i

o RIS L U

R T e R
o — R — iy ie
W ik

« R i TR S A SR

WRAOEE (PSR
1 B s L TR
CIEE) (oWl s

il atS, B2

fAEEH. FHmEsR
s Lorishe e i
OB AR E~
OYERLT A it
{#

« NS RE o o = ) — i

HFHERA TR
0O ShEe R
25 Pl S o S SR 1

R

Bottomline MineralTree
65,000 2016
83
Visa Debit Processing Services DPS
CyberSource
DPS ATM

DPS

25/267



Visa Checkout

1,400

Visa Direct

Fiserv FIS
Associates
Ingo Money
Fargo QIwlI
mVisa
Gemalto
Inside Secure
TSP
VCN
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2016
21 15
300,000
2016 10

P2P
Jack Henry &
Early Warning EWS
Hyperwal let Wells
2014 2015

2017
Giesecke & Devrient

TSP

Uber
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CyberSource Decision Manager

Decision Manager Replay

Authorize.Net

Visa Risk Manager

Visa Advanced Authorization

2016

Mobile Location Confirmation

Visa Transaction Advisor

Verified by Visa

Visa Consumer Authentication Service

2016
Visa Consumer Transaction Control
EMV
EMV EMV Europay
MasterCard Visa
2015 10
2011
2016 30 373
1.6
30
30
Quick Chip

271267



CEO
2016 10 17
Kelly, Jr.

2012

2016 12
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Alfred F.
Charles W. Scharf CEO
2014 14
2016 30
2016 11 23
20

Payment Services
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JCB
UnionPay

2015

s N

SR e i< AN L a2
A (B FA) 6, $43 3,360 1

SESw 8, 905 4,364 I, 040 207 154

R (e 148.5 84.5 T ]_
#— P (F5E | 3,009 1L.5M 118 LT 54

JCB Diners Club
1085 2016
Maestro Cirrus
JCB
STAR NYCE Pulse Interac
EFTPOS
ACH
PayPal
Alipay
ACH
PSD2
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30

10
13

11

FFIEC
FFIEC

CFPB

EU
IFR
Reserve Bank of Australia 10
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IFR

2018 EU

FCPA

OFAC

32/267



2016 EU

IFR
IFR
IFR

EU

12

SEC
http://www.sec.gov
http://corporate.visa.com
10- 10-

http://investor.visa.com
http://investor.visa.com
FD

SEC
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¢))

Visa
International
Service
Association

o)

100

LAC
CEMEA

USA
Visa U.S.A.

Inc.

o)

100

Pte. Limited

Visa Worldwide

8,967,651

100

Visa Europe
Limited

18,784,000

100

2015

2016

14,200
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2016

30

EU
2016

EU

2016

11

2015

20

1.5

EU

30

2011

EU IFR

EU
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EU IFR
20

RBA

BCCI
BCCI

NSPK

11

POS
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20

BEPS

19
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EWS

PSD

ACH

ACH
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Faster Payments

PSR

ACH
P2P
ACH

P2P
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EMVCo EMV
PIN EMV
2015 10 EMV PIN
EMV
EMVCo PCI Security Standards Council
PIN
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EMV

Brexit
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11
EU
2016 EU EU
Brexit EU
50 EU
EU EU
Brexit
Brexit
Brexit
Brexit EU
EU
EU EU
Brexit
e
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15 15
CEO
2007 10
2016 2015 2014 191
255 226 2016
2016
30
200
2016
2016 21 100 @)
12.2 13.9

2016 21 77.33

44/267



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)

OOooOoOoOoo
5.3 6.1 (b) 1.0
2016 30 2016
21 2016 30
2016 30
20
2015 12 30 16.0
1.20 4.30 2016 14 14
12 14 15.9
2016
GAAP GAAP
30 @
2016 2015
2015 2014
2016 2015 2014
( )
5,991 6,328 5,438 ) % 16 %
. 2.48 2.58 2.16 ) % 20 %
®) 6,862 6,438 5,721 7% 13 %
@
2.84 2.62 2.27 8 U 16 %
®
2015
2016 2015 2014
2016 15.1

2016 7.2 2015
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1.9 152

2015 296
296 239 2014 30
191
19

2016 2015 2014

110

38 72

2016
88

2016 152
60
92
56 96

2016 21
1.9
693 1.2

2016
74

27 47
12

2016
145
54 91

2016 2015
255 110

2014 450
167

20
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GAAP
GAAP 2016
2015 2014 GAAP
GAAP
2016
@
@ @
7,199 52 % 129 2,021 5,991 2.48
(110) 1 % - 38 72 0.03
- - % - 88 (88) (0.04)
(152) 1% - 56 96 0.04
1,877) 12 % - 693 1,184 0.49
- - % 74) @n “n (0.02)
- - 4 (145) (54) (91) (0.04)
- - % (255) - (255) (0.11)
5,060 66 % (345) 2,815 6,862 2.84
2,414
2015
@
@ @@
4,816 65% (69) 2,667 6,328 2.58
- - 110 - 110 0.04
4,816 65% 4 2,667 6,438 2.62
2,457
2014
@
@ @@
5,005 61% 27 2,286 5,438 2.16
(450) 4 - 167 283 0.11
4,555 64% 27 2,453 5,721 2.27
2,523
2015
2016 91 7.0
2016 30 5.8 2015 10
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1
2016 P
2015 30 12 37 13
@
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
30 30 30 30 30 30
12 Q@) 12 (€H) 12 () 12 () 12 (€)) 12 (€))
1,080 980 10% 1,720 1,676 3 % 2,799 2,656 5 4
®@ 1,320 1,202 10, 454 462 @, 1,774 1,663 "
@ 450 412 9, 147 150 @, 598 562 6
® 479 M 479 NM
2,851 2,594 10% 2,800 2,288 2 % 5,651 4,882 16 %
520 491 6% 1,774 2,015 (12)% 2,294 2,506 @) %
® 175 NM 175 NM
® 3,370 3.086 9, 4,749 4,308 10 8.119 7.388 10
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
30 30 30 30 30 30
12 Q@ 12 () 12 () 12 Q@ 12 Q@ 12 (]
980 872 124 1,676 1,599 5 % 2,656 2,470 8 %
® 1,202 1,127 7% 462 453 2 % 1,663 1,580 5 %
® 412 370 1% 150 145 4 % 562 514 9 %
2,594 2,369 10% 2,288 2,196 4% 4,882 4,565 7%
491 469 5% 2,015 2,122 5) % 2,506 2,591 @)%
® 3,086 2,838 9y 4,303 4,319 % 7,388 7,157 34
@
2016 30 2015 30 2016 30 2015 30
12 12 12 12
2015 30 2014 30 2015 30 2014 30
12 ) 12 &) 12 ) 12 T
Q) Q) 0] m
® 2% 3% % 13% 16% 2% ™ 11%
® 10% 27% * 10% 10% 19% 3% 10%
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2016 2015
2014 30 12 2016 2015
2014 30 12
2016 30 12
2016 30
2016
V PAY
@
2016 2015
2015 2014
2016 @O 2015 @ 2014 ®
83,159 70,968 64,993 17% %
2016
2016 21
2016 30
2015
2016
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0000000
2016 21
2016 2015 2014
2016 21
2016 30
2016 2015 2016 2015
2015 2014 2015 2014
2016 @ 2015 2014
(
7,851 7,406 6,847 445 559 6 % 8 %
7,040 6,219 5,629 821 590 13 % 10 %
® 101 255 226 (64) 29 (25)% 13 %
15,082 13,880 12,702 1,202 1,178 9 5% 9 %
2016 2016 21 2016 30
2015
2016
2016 30
2016 21
2016 2015 2016 2015
2015 2014 2015 2014
2016 @ 2015 2014
(
6,747 6,302 5,797 445 505 7 %
6,272 5,552 5,167 720 385 13% 7%
4,649 4,064 3,560 585 504 14% 14%
823 823 770 - 53 -4 7%
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(3,409) (2,861) (2,592) (548) (269) 19% 10%
15,082 13,880 12,702 1,202 1,178 9y 9%
2016 2016 21 2016 30
2016 2015
16 2016
2016 2015
17 2016 2015
2016
37
2016 2015
2015 2015
2016 2015
2016 2015
2016
2016 2015 2016 2015
2015 2014 2015 2014
2006 @ 2015 2014
(
2,226 2,079 1,875 147 204 7% 11 %
869 872 900 ®) (28) - % @)%
538 474 507 64 (33) 13 % M
389 336 328 53 8 16 % 2 %
502 494 435 8 59 2 % 14 4
796 547 507 249 40 46 % 8
2 14 453 (12) (439) (86)% O7)%
1,877 - - 1,877 - W oy
® 7,199 4,816 5,005 2,383 (189) 49 % OL
2016 2016 21 2016 30
2016 30
2016
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2014 2015
2014 2014 2014 FIFA
2016 2016
2015
2015
2016
2015 2016 2015
2016
2016
2015
2014
2016 2015
2015 2014
450 20
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0000000
2016 2015 2016 2015
2015 2014 2015 2014
2016 @ 2015 2014
(
@27 ®) ®) (424) 5 M (61)%
556 (66) 35 622 (101) M M
129 (69) 27 198 (96) NI M
2016 2016 21 2016
30 2016
2016 30
2016 2015 12 16.0
2016 2015
2016 74
2016 145
2016
255
2015
110
12
2016 25 2015 30 2016
2015
1.9
2016 88
2016 255
2015 296 296
239
2014 2015 30
2015 296
2014 264 191
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2016
2016
2016
@
8,012 2,021 25.2 %
110 38
- 88
152 56
1,877 693
%) @n
(145) (54)
(255) -
9,677 2,815 29.1%
12
2016 2015 2014
5,574 6,584 7,205
(10,916) (1,435) (941)
7,477 (3,603) (6,478)
(€2)) 1 @
2,101 1,547 (215)

55/267




2016 2015 2014

1.9

2015

2014 1.1

2016
15.9
1.4

2015
2014
2014

2014 2015

14

2016 30 8.7

8.3

2016

2015

2015

426

2014

2015 12

2014

426

450
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397 3.0 2016 30
2016 27 4.0
2021 27 2016 27 3.0
2016 30
2015 SEC
2018
2015 12 16.0
30 1.8
2017 12 14 1.20 4.30 14
12 14 244 2016 14
127
15.9
2017 2.0
20 2016 30
1.0
2016 30 Standard and Poor"s
Moody"s
A-1 P-1
A+ Al
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2016
242
2016 21 100
12.2
13.9 2016 21 77.33 5.3 6.1
79
1.0
2016 45
2016 30 1.0
2016 2012
3.0
1.1
20
2016 7.0 91
2016 30 5.8 2015 10
2016 5.0
2015 10
14
2016 1.4 2016 10
U.K.&l
0.165
2016 12 400

14
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2016 2015 2014
19 14
102 2017
12
10
2016
2016 30 12.0
136
11

2016
30
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@ 489 2,696 3,903 16,501 23,589
@ 962 164 49 - 1,175
® 126 185 118 190 619
® 5,544 6,745 4,721 4,791 21,801
® 126 248 148 33 555
® 400 - - - 400
@ - 1,266 - - 1,266
O1C) 7,647 11,304 8,939 21,515 49,405
2015 12 16.0 30
1.20 4.30 14 12 14
19
16
16
2016 10 2016 11 18
2016 12 400
2016 21 100
1.0
911 2016
30 61 17
10
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20
2016 2015 30
2.7 1.2 2016 30
10
2016 30 160
190
12
2016 21 100
1.0
2016 30 10
123
2016 30

10
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2015 30

2015 30

2016 2015 30

1.0

2016 30
474
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254

1.1

63/267

49

1.0

10
40

415

127

2017

EDINETOOOO

OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)

2.2

5.1

1.1

2016

1.

oOoOooodn

2016
7



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)

OoOoOoOoOodno
2016 30 67 3.9
2.0 1.9
0.9
0.1
0.2
0.8
2016 30
@
2,256,357,159(2) 2,001,110,298,861(3)
2,003,366,656,020
5,637,289 19,362,711
25,000,000
123,525,417
549,945
2007 EIP
170,655,889
2016 30
1
0.0001 1,870,305, 460 (€D
2
0.0001 369,038,802 (@)
2
0.0001 17,012,897 (@)
2,480,466 A
0.0001
3,156,823 A
0.0001
- 2,261,944 ,448 - _
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2016
2016 2015 10

2016 30 2016 30
595,088 899,124
595,088 899,124
65.68 65.88
7,433 7,456
39,008,343.42 59,281,753.54
4,414,574,225 6,708,916,048
595,088 899,124
595,088 899,124
65.67 65.88
7,432 7,456

39,008,343.42

59,281,753.54

4,414,574,225

6,708,916,048

18,771,409

18,771,409

1PO

2016

30
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- 51,962.19

2011 10 - 519,621,889
- 5,880,561
1,501.61 53,463.80

2012 30 15,016,114(1) (2 534,638,003
169,937 6,050,498
(2.,685.94) 50,777.86

2013 30 (26,859,472) 507,778,531
(303,968) 5,746,530
(1,329.49) 49,448 .37

2014 30 (13,294,875) 494,483,656
(150, 458) 5,596,072
145,546.10 194,994 .47

2015 30 @ 1,455,461,044 1,949,944,700
16,471,452 22,067,524
(7.,963.92) 187,030.55

2016 30 (79,639, 240) 1,870,305, 460
(901,277) 21,166,247

2015 30 2015
USA

- 36,903.88

2011 10 - 369,038,802
- 4,176,412
0 36,903.88

2012 30 0 369,038,802
0 4,176,412
0 36,903.88

2013 30 0 369,038,802
0 4,176,412
0 36,903.88

2014 30 0 369,038,802
0 4,176,412
0 36,903.88

2015 30 0 369,038,802
0 4,176,412
0 36,903.88

2016 30 0 369,038,802
0 4,176,412
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- 4,718.39

2011 10 - 47,183,894
- 533,980
(1,668.23) 3,050.16

2012 30 (16,682,255y(1) 30,501,639
(188,794) 345,187
(355.44) 2,694.72

2013 30 (3,554,438) 26,947,201
(40,225) 304,961
(461.73) 2,232.99

2014 30 (4,617,347) 22,329,854
(52,254) 252,707
(268.56) 1,964.43

2015 30 (2,685,546) 19,644,308
(30,393) 222,315
(208.15) 1,756.28

2016 30 (2,081,466) 17,562,842
(23,556) 198,758

2011 27 2011
55

2,516,000,000 2,516,000,000

2016 21 2,480,466 2,480,466
284,735,720,000 284,735,720,000
0 2,516,000,000

2016 30 0 2,480,466
0 284,735,720,000
3,201,000,000 3,201,000,000

2016 21 3,156,823 3,156,823
362,257,170, 000 362,257,170,000
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0 3,201,000,000
2016 30 0 3,156,823

0 362,257,170,000
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()

99

100.00

The

Depositary Trsut Company

@

@

@

100

100.00

USA

(€Y}

€Y}

100

100.00

100

100.00
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2016 30
@
@ 10022
113,375,690 6.10
BlackRock, Inc. 52 55
@ 19355
120,956,278 6.52
The Vanguard Group 100
- 234,331,968 12.62
2017 27 SEC SC 13G/A
2017 10 SEC SC 13G/A
1
@ @
28255
. 100 64,285,884 17.42
Bank of America
Corporation
JP 10017-2070
40,272,211 10.91
JP Morgan Chase & Co. 270
94104
30,108,730 8.16
Wells Fargo & Company 420
57104
- 29,102,340 7.89
Citigroup Inc.
60 701
10019-6036
20,749,727 5.62
Barclays Bank PLC
1301
- 184,518,892 50.00
2016 30
1
@ @
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) o 105-8011
Sumitomo Mitsui Card 20 4,173,490 23.76
Company, Limited
135-8601
UC Card Co., Ltd. 1,821,694 7-53
- 5,495,184 31.29
2016 30
(€Y
K ECAN 8AF
- 25 422,7 17.04
WorldPay (UK) Limited > 0
E14 5HP
29 416,832 16.80
Barclays Aldersgate
Investments Limited
FaV ThE 305,352 12.31
Lloyds Bank plc 10 ’ .
E14 5HQ
224,333 9.04
HSBC Bank plc
EH2 2YB
184,077 7.42
The Royal Bank of Scotland 36
plc
175,311 7.07
Chase Paymentech Europe ’
Limited
Allied Irish Banks, 135,035 5.44
p-1.c.
Elavon Financial Services 114,972 4.64
Limited
UK NW1 3AN
79,679 3.21
Santander UK plc
SN38 INW
63,436 2.56
Nationwide Building ’
Society
- 2,121,782 85.53
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(€))
75201 13
219,300 6.95
BPCE S.A. 50
75886 18
189 144,796 4.59
Société Générale S.A.
75009 137,223 4.35
BNP Paribas 16 ’ .
SE 211 22
13 129,903 4.11
Visa Sweden Férening ek.
for.
28002
102,310 3.24
_ _ N 15
ServiRed, Sociedad Espafiola
de Medios de Pago, S.-A.
\-0164 94,605 3.00
Visa Norge Fli ’ i
20145 75,920 2.40
CartaSi S.p.A. 55 ’ -
) | 67000
Banque Fédérative du Crédit 34 75,008 2.38
Mutuel
PK-2750 59,374 1.88
Teller A/S 10 ’ .
94811 56,287 1.78
Le Crédit Lyonnais 10 ’ )
- 1,094,726 34.68
EIP ESPP
2016 30
EIP ESPP 16
a
a
9,221,389Y 38.42® 170,655,889
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EIP 8,876,484 ESPP 344,905

EIP

2016 30
3,146,954 1,042,012
ESPP
2015 ESPP
15
16 2016 30 EIP ESPP 152
19
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U.K.&l

2016

.14
.14
.14
.14

o O o o

2015

.12
.12
.12
.12
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2016 10 2016 11 18
2016 12 0.165
U.K.&l
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2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
34.16 50.22 56.19 76.92 83.79
3,866 5,683 6,359 8,705 9,483
20.43 33.72 48.71 60.00 66.12
2,312 3,816 5,513 6,790 7,483
2015
2016 2016 2016 2016 2016 2016

81.73 79.87 81.71 80.17 81.76 83.79

9,249 9,039 9,247 9,073 9,253 9,483

75.80 76.22 73.25 73.83 77.73 80.97

8,578 8,626 8,290 8,355 8,797 9,163
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11
31
2016 12
60

@ 272,940 171,802 444,742

103,858 . 103,858

64,718 . 64,718
59,614 . 59,614
30,332 - 30,332®

20,898 - 20,898
6,300 . 6,300?

1,497 . 1,497
) _ @

116,694 235,354 352,048

97,511 22,781 120,292

61,652 218,664 280,316

46,202 174,873 221,075

16 1,375,798 1,276,003 2,603,801

2016 12
2,880 5,126
5,126 5,126
Lynne Biggar
54
2016

771267



2013 11

1992

41
2013

75,000

56
2015
NBC

2016
Consumer Marketing and Revenue for Time

2013
2012 2013 11
2011 us
Voya Financial, Inc
Ryan Mclnerney
14
CEO 23 20

McKinsey & Company

Vasant M. Prabhu

Worldwide, Inc.

35

1992
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Inc.

American Express Company

200

JP

NBC

Starwood Hotels & Resorts

Safeway, Inc.

PepsiCola International
PepsiCo

Booz, Allen & Hamilton

NBCUniversal
NBC
The McGraw-Hill Companies
1998
Mattel, Inc.

Ellen Richey
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2007

2014 10

Martel

William M.

49
1993

2008 1PO

Rajat Taneja

52
2013 11

2011 10 2013 11

1996 2011
2011

Washington Mutual, Inc.
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Providian Financial Corporation

Sheedy

IT

IT

Farella, Braun &

Lewis F. Powell, Jr.

50

Electronic Arts Inc.

Microsoft Corporation
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Sidney A. Fitzwater

2007 2011
Ellie Mae, Inc.
Kelly Mahon Tullier
50
2014
PepsiCo, Inc.
Frito-Lay, Inc.
Baker Botts LLP
2018
2016 12
Lloyd A. Carney
54
Inc.
Micromuse, Inc.
2013
CEO
2008 2012
Systems CEO
2003 2006
International Business Machines Corporation 1BM
CEO
Inc.

Nortel Networks Inc.
Bay Networks, Inc.

CEO
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Mary B. Cranston
69
Chemours Company MyoKardia, Inc.
Exponent, Inc.
GrafTech International, Inc.
International Rectifier Corporation
Pillsbury
Winthrop Shaw Pittman LLP
1999 2006 2006 12
2012
30 CEO
2002
National Law Journal 100
500

Francisco Javier Fernandez-Carbajal

61
ALFA ALFA S_A.B. de C.V.
CEMEX S.A.B. de C.V.
Fomento Economico Mexicano, S.A.B. de C.V.
El Puerto de Liverpool,
S.A.B. de C.V. Fresnillo, PLC
Grupo Aeroportuario del
Pacifico, S.A.B. de C.V. Grupo Bimbo,
S.A_B. de C.V. Grupo Gigante,
S_.A.B. de C.V. Grupo Lamosa, S.A.B.
de C.V. IXE IXE Grupo
Financiero S.A.B. de C.V.
2002
2005
Servicios Administrativos Contry
S.A. de C.V.
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2000 2002 BBVA BBVA
Bancomer
BBVA Grupo Financiero BBVA Bancomer, S.A. CEO
1991 BBVA
1999 10 2000 1995 10 1999 10

Instituto Tecnologico y de Estudios Superiores de Monterrey

BBVA

BBVA

Gary A. Hoffman

56
Hastings Group Holdings
plc
Barclays plc
Northern Rock plc NBNK NBNK plc

2010 12

2012 11

Hastings Insurance Group
2011 2012 12
NBNK NBNK Investments
2008 10 2010 11
2006 2008
Barclaycard
15
CEO NBNK

CEO

Alfred F. Kelly, Jr.

58
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MetLife Inc.
Affinion Group Holdings, Inc.

Affinion Group, Inc
2016 12
2016 2016 10

Intersection
2015 2016 TowerBrook
Capital Partners L.P.
2011 2014 48
2014 NY/NJ 2014 NY/NJ Super Bowl Host
Company
2007
2010 2005 2007
2000 2005
23
1985 1987
1981 1985
Robert W. Matschullat
The Clorox Company
The Walt Disney Company
McKesson Corporation
Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated
The Seagram Company Limited
2013
2012 11 2015
2006 2006 10 2005 2006
2004 2005

1995 2000
1991 1995

1992 1995 2002 2007
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42
Suzanne Nora Johnson
59
Inc. Intuit Inc.
2004 11 2007
Institute
21
AlIG
John A. C. Swainson
62
Assurant Inc.
Corporation CA, Inc.

Cadence Design Systems Inc.
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Global Markets
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2012 2016 11 IT
Dell Inc.
2010 2012
Silver Lake Partners

2005 2009 12

CA Technologies 2004 11 2009 12
2004 2004 11 1BM
1997 2004 1BM

1BM
1BM 26
1BM
1BM
1BM
1BM
Maynard G. Webb, Jr.
61
Yahoo! Inc. Salesforce.com.
Inc.
Extensity, Inc. Gartner, Inc.
Hyperion Solutions Corporation
LiveOps, Inc. Niku Corporation

Webb Investment Network
Everwise Corporation

2008 2013
2006 12 2011

2002 2006
eBay, Inc. 1999 2002
eBay Technologies

1998 1999 Gateway,
Inc.
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2016

2016 2015 2014

2016

C )Y C ) C HY ¢ H® ¢ ¥ ¢ YO ¢ HY® ¢ )

2016 1,250,048 - 9,172,003 2,874,998 3,087,500 25,437 32,354 16,442,340
2015 1,000,038 - 5,224,802 2,250,003 3,310,000 24,808 31,717 11,841,368
2014 950,037 - 2,505,671 1,484,362 2,500,000 207,029 45,014 7,692,113
2016 850,032  3,125,000(6) 1,757,160 1,031,255 1,230,375 15,652 124,626 8,134,100
2015 547,616 6,875,000 7,500,041 - 1,081,253 14,473 979,180 16,997,563
2016 750,029 - 3,984,063 1,476,498 1,153,125 15,552 22,550 7,401,817
2015 750,029 - 1,951,504 928,242 1,498,275 14,824 20,505 5,163,379
2014 750,029 - 659,355 390,647 1,181,841 39,807 861,286 3,882,965
2016 750,029 - 3,611,865 1,597,002 960,938 15,516 18,600 6,953,950
2015 750,029 - 1,495,880 872,018 1,262,625 14,588 15,900 4,411,040
2014 639,447 2,000,000 8,249,921 2,749,978 762,293 13,572 20,331 14,435,542
2016 600,023 - 1,920,043 577,502 712,500 131,812 36,968 3,978,848
2015 600,023 - 1,644,462 448,737 992,100 70,637 26,584 3,782,543
2016 2015 2014

FASB ASC 718

16
2016
ASC 718
EPS 2016 2013 11 19
2016 11 30 2014 11 19 2017 11 30
2015 11 19 2018 11 30
2014 11 2015 11 EPS
2,874,981 6,297,022 12,594,044
1,031,290 725,870 1,451,741
1,476,523 2,507,540 5,015,080
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1,596,989 2,014,876 4,029,752
577,481 1,342,562 2,685,126
2016 2015 2014
FASB ASC 718
16
2016 ( VIP vIP VIP
2016 11 15
( ) ( ) ( )
3,087,500 2,400,000 687,500
1,230,375 856. 800 373,575
1,153,125 256. 000 397,125
960,938 630.000 330,938
712,500 504.000 208,500
2016
10
2016 2016
2017 2016 2016 30
7,500,000
2016
2016
401
« H® « H® C C ) C > C )Y C O
3,788 15,900 6,016 6,650 32,354
15,900 79,157 26,569 3,000 124,626
15,900 6,650 22,550
15,900 2,700 18,600
15,900 10,346 10,722 36,968
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2016 401 15,900
5,000
()
http://investor.visa.com
94119
193243
2016 10 2016 12
F

58
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120
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http://investor.visa.com -
SEC

50 50

corporatesecretary@visa.com 94119
193243

board@visa.com 94119
193243

http://investor.visa.com
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http://www._usa.att.com/traveler/access numbers/index.jsp
https://visa.alertline.com

94119

2016

businessconduct@visa.com
888 289-9322

193243
2016 17
75
2016
527

http://usa.visa.com/corporate-responsibility

2016

http://investor.visa.com

25,000
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KPMG
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10- 10-
2016
2016 2016
2016
2016
120,000
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2016
www . visa.com Corporate Governance
Committee Composition
KPMG LLP
2016 30
PCAOB
16 KPMG
PCAOB
KPMG KPMG
KPMG
KPMG
SEC 2016 30 10-

2016
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Say-on-
Pay

2016 10 17 2016
12
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200

Frederic W. Cook & Co

FW

2016 12 SEC

2016 12 SEC

2016 10 17
2016 19
2016
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2016 2015 11 19
180,000 11
15,000
2016
2016
1 2 3
D A G . H® C )

125,000 119,985(4) 15,000 259,985

150,000 180,017 15,000 345,017

125,000 180,017 - 305,017

5) 26,250 - 133,338 159,588

140,000 180,017 15,000 335,017

270,000 180,017 - 450,017

125,000 180,017 15,000 320,017

145,000 180,017 15,000 340,017

125,000 180,017 15,000 320,017

(6) 62,500 180,017 15,000 257,517

125,000 180,017 5,000 310,017

125,000 180,017 - 305,017
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FASB ASC 718

16 2016 30
1,497
2,246
2016

2016 21

2016 21

2016
133,338 2015 10 2016 29
2016 30
2016
2016

( ) ( ) _(C ) ( ) ( )

105,000 - 20,000 - -
105,000 - 45,000 - -
105,000 - 20,000 - -
@ 26,250 - - - -
105,000 - - 10,000 25,000
105,000 165,000 - - -
105,000 - 20,000 - -
105,000 - - 30,000 10,000
105,000 - . 10,000 10,000
@ 52,500 - 10,000 - -
105,000 - . 10,000 10,000
105,000 - 20,000 - -
2016 21 2016
2016
2016
2017
Fw 2017
Fw 2017
185,000
185,000 20,000
2018 2017
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13 15 15 15
SEC
2016 21
2016 30
2016 30
2017
2016 2016 21
2016 30
2016 30
2016 30
2017
2013
2016 30
2016 30
KPMG LLP
2016 2016 30
2015 2016
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6,690 1,987 8,810 2,063

757,107 224,869 997,028 233,470
XBRL
16
SEC
10
2014 KPMG SEC
KPMG

KPMG
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2015 30

2017
113.17

)
2016 11 15

2016 30

2016

1934

32

UFJ
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( )
2016 30 2015 30
( ) ( )
$ 5,619  \ 635,902 $ 3,518  \ 398,132
( ) 1,027 116,226 1,072 121,318
71 8,035 66 7,469
3,248 367,576 2,431 275,116
1,467 166,020 408 46,173
1,041 117,810 847 95,855
11 1,001 113,283 1,023 115,773
284 32,140 303 34,291
555 62,809 353 39,949
14,313 1,619,802 10,021 1,134,077
3,931 444,871 3,384 382,967
448 50,700 110 12,449
2,150 243,316 1,888 213,665
893 101,061 778 88,046
27,234 3,082,072 11,361 1,285,724
15,066 1,705,019 11,825 1,338,235
$ 64,035  \ 7,246,841 $ 39,367  \ 4,455,163
$ 203 \ 22,974 $ 127 \ 14,373
2,084 235,846 780 88,273
11 1,001 113,283 1,023 115,773
673 76,163 503 56,925
1,976 223,624 1,049 118,715
1,128 127,656 849 96,081
20 981 111,020 1,024 115,886
8,046 910,566 5,355 606,025
15,882 1,797,366
19 4,808 544,121 3,273 370,405
1,225 138,633
1,162 131,504 897 101,513
31,123 3,522,190 9,525 1,077,944
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( )
2016 30 2015 30
( ) ( )
0.0001 25
A (
14 $ \ $ \
B 2016 30
2,51 284,7
( 14) ,516 84,736
c 2016 30
3,201 362,257
( 14) ’ ’
A 0.0001
2,001,622 2016 2015 30
1,871 1,950 (
14)
B 0.0001 622
2016 2015 30
245 ( 14)
c 0.0001 1,007
2016 2015 30
17 20 ( 14)
( 14) (170) (19,239)
(34) (3,848)
17,395 1,968,592 18,073 2,045,321
10,462 1,183,985 11,843 1,340,272
36 4,074 5 566
(225) (25,463) (161) (18,220)
(50) (5.659) 83 9,393
(219) (24,784) @ (113)
(458) (51,832) 74) (8.375)
32,912 3,724,651 29,842 3,377,219
$64,035 \7,246,841 $39,367  \4,455,163
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$6,747 \763,558 $6,302  \713,197 $5,797  \656,046
6,272 709,802 5,552 628,320 5,167 584,749
4,649 526,127 4,064 459,923 3,560 402,885
823 93,139 823 93,139 770 87,141
(3,409)  (385,797) (2,861)  (323,779) (2,502)  (293,337)
15,082 1,706,830 13,880 1,570,800 12,702 1,437,485
2,226 251,916 2,079 235,280 1,875 212,194
869 98,345 872 98,684 900 101,853
538 60,885 474 53,643 507 57,377
389 44,023 336 38,025 328 37,120
502 56,811 494 55,906 435 49,229
796 90,083 547 61,904 507 57,377
(20 2 226 14 1,584 453 51,266

1,877 212,420

( )

7,199 814,711 4,816 545,027 5,005 566,416
7,883 892,119 9,064 1,025,773 7,697 871,069
(427 (48,324) @®) (340) ®) (905)
( 12) 556 62,923 (66) (7.469) 35 3,961
129 14,599 (69) (7,809) 27 3,056
8,012 906,718 8,005 1,017,964 7,724 874,125
19 2,021 228,717 2,667 301,824 2,286 258,707
$5,991 \678,001 $6,328  \716,140 $5,438  \615,418

w 2016 21 2016 30

2016 30
2016 30
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2016 @ 2015 2014
( ) ( ) )
C 15
A $2.49 \ 282 $2.58 \ 202 $2.16 \ 244
B $4.10 \ 464 $4.26 \ 482 $3.63 \ 411
c $9.49 \1,074 $10.33 \1,169 $8.65 \ 979
(
15)
A 1,906 1,954 1,993
B 245 245 245
c 19 22 26
15
A $2.48 \ 281 $2.58 \ 202 $2.16 \ 244
B $4.00 \ 463 $4.25 \ 481 $3.62 \ 410
c $9.93 \1,124 $10.30 \1,166 $8.62 \ 976
( 19
A 2,414 2,457 2,523
B 245 245 245
c 19 22 26
w 2016 21 2016 30
2016 30
2016 30
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$5,991 \678,001 $6,328  \716,140 $5,438  \615,418
51 5,772 1) 2,377) (44) (4,979)
(18) (2,037) 8 905 17 1,924
®) (340) 1) (2,377) '6)) (113)
1 113 8 905
(106) (11,996) (122) (13,807) @n (3,056)
36 4,074 45 5,003 8 905
10 1,132 @ (113) (8) (905)
) (453) 1 113 3 340
(74) (8,375) 172 19,465 65 7,356
9 1,019 (51) (5.772) (13) (1,471)
(103) (11,657) (102) (11,543) (46) (5.206)
35 3,961 26 2,942 9 1,019
(218) (24,671) 1 113 @) (113)
(384) (43,457) 7 (6,451) (38) (4,300)
$5,607 \634,544 $6,271  \709,689 $5,400  \611,118
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C )
A B c
2,031 245 27 $18,875  $7,974 $21  $26,870
5,438 5,438
(38) (38)
5,400
19 )
4
w® 172 172
@ (86) (86)
90 90
5 01 01
(1,006) (1,006)
(79) (843)  (3.275) (4,118)
1,978 245 22 $18,299  $9,131 $(17)  $27,413
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( )
A B c
1,978 245 22 $18,209  $9,131 $ (17)  $27,413
6,328 6,328
(€D (57)
6,271
11 @
4
16) o® 187 187
6 (108) (108)
84 84
3 82 82
@.,177) (1.,177)
(44) @411)  (2,439) (2,910)
1,950 245 20 $18,073  $11,843 $ (74)  $29,842

112/267



2015 30
(
14)
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( 14)
c
16
0.14 ( 19
A ( 19
2016 30
@ B
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(€]
c A B
1,950 245 20 $ $ $ $ 18,073 $ 11,843 $ (74) $29,842
5,991 5,991
(384) (384)
5,607
3 5,717 5,717
(34) (34)
[€)) (170) (170)
8 @
2
@ 221 221
@ 92) (92)
63 63
3 95 95
(1,350) (1,350)
(91) (965) (6,022) (6,987)
3 1,871 245 17 $ 5,717 $ (170) $ (34)  $ 17,395 $ 10,462 $ (458) $32,912
U.K.&l
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(
A B C )
2,031 245 27 \2,136,084 \902,418 \2,377  \3,040,878
615,418 615,418
(4,300) (4,300)
611,118
19 (5)
4
@ 19,465 19,465
) (9,733) (9,733)
10,185 10,185
5 10,298 10,298
(113,849) (113,849)
79) (95,402) (370,632) (466,034)
1,978 245 22 \2,070,898  \1,033,355  \ (1,924)  \3,102,329
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( )
A B c
1,978 245 22 \2,070,898 \1,033,355 \ (1,924) \3,102,329
716,140 716,140
(6,451) (6,451)
709,689
11 @
4
L@ 21,163 21,163
[6)) (12,222) (12,222)
9,506 9,506
3 9,280 9,280
(133,201) (133,201)
44 (53,303)  (276,022) (329,325)
1,950 245 20 \2,045,321 \1,340,272 \ (8,375) \3,377,219
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C 16)
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(€]
C A B
1,950 245 20 \ \ \ \2,045,321  \1,340,272 \ (8,375) \3,377,219
678,001 678,001
(43,457) (43,457)
634,544
3 646,993 646,993
(3,848) (3,848)
w (19,239) (19,239)
8 @
2
@ 25,011 25,011
w (10,412) (10,412)
7,130 7,130
3 10,751 10,751
(152,780) (152,780)
(91) (109,209) (681,510) (790,719)
3 1,871 245 17 \646,993  \ (19,239) \ (3,848) \1,968,592  \1,183,985 \ (51,832) \3,724,651
U.K.&l
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30
2016 2015 2014
) ) ( ) ) ) )
$5,991 \678,001 $6,328 \716,140 $5,438 \615,418
3,409 385,797 2,861 323,779 2,592 293,337
(255) (28,858) 110 12,449
221 25,011 187 21,163 172 19,465
(63) (7.,130) (84) (9,506) (90) (10,185)
502 56,811 494 55,906 435 49,229
(764) (86,462) 195 22,068 (580) (65,639)
(©) (1,019)
4 453 14 1,584 453 51,266
64 7,243 24 2,716 37 4,187
391 44,249 378 42,778 13 1,471
(65) (7.356) 19) (2,150) (53) (5,998)
(3,508)  (397,000) (2,970) (336,115) (2,395)  (271,042)
(315) (35,649) 1) (4,640) (379) (42,891)
43 4,866 13) (1,471) (56) (6,338)
(302) (34,177) (552) (62,470) 107 12,109
277 31,348 118 13,354 513 58,056
“n (5,319) (446) (50,474) 998 112,944
5,574 630,810 6,584 745,111 7,205 815,390
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2016 2015 2014
( ) ) )
$(523)  \ (59,188) $ (414)  \ (46,852) $(553)  \ (62,583)
10 1,132
(28,004)  (3,169,213) (2.850) (322,535) (2,572) (291,073)
26,697 3,021,299 1,925 217,852 2,342 265,044
- § (9,082)  (1,027,810) (93) (10,525) (149) (16,862)
/ (10) (1,132) (25) (2,829) ©) (1,019)
/ 6 679 12 1,358
(10,916)  (1,235,364) (1,435) (162,399) (941) (106,493)
A ( 19 (6,987) (790,719) (2,910) (329,325) (4,118) (466,034)
C ( ) (170) (19,239)
( 14 (1,350) (152,780) (1,177) (133,201) (1,006) (113,849)
( ) 15,971 1,807,438
(98) (11,091)
( (450) (50,927)
20)
§ 45 5,093 426 48,210 (999) (113,057)
20)
95 10,751 82 9,280 91 10,298
(92) (10,412) (108) (12,222) (86) (9,733)
63 7,130 84 9,506 90 10,185
7,477 846,172 (3,603) (407,752) (6,478) (733,115)
(34) (3,848) 1 113 @ (113)
2,101 237,770 1,547 175,074 (215) (24,332)
3,518 398,132 1,971 223,058 2,186 247,390
$ 5,619 \635,902 $3,518 \398,132 $1,971 \223,058
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1,236

2,842

244

42

34
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139,878
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27,613

4,753
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2007 10 10
USA (Visa U.S.A. Inc.

USA ) (Visa International Service Association
) (Visa Canada Corporation
) (Inovant LLC )
2007 10
USA 2007 10
Visa Europe Limited
2016 21
100 2016 30 10
200
USA
(Visa Worldwide Pte. Limited VWPL )
US GAAP
VIE
VIE
2015 18 A
14
US GAAP
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2014

ASU
2014-09

FASB ASU 2016-10

2014-09

2014

2016 10

2015

SEC

2015

2015

10

2015 11
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FASB ASU  2014-09 ASU
ASU US GAAP
2015 FASB ASU 2015-14 ASU ASU
2016 FASB ASU 2016-08 ASU
2016
ASU
2016 FASB ASU 2016-11 ASU ASU
SEC SEC
2016 FASB ASU 2016-12 ASU
2018 10

ASU 2014-09
FASB ASU 2014-12 ASU
FASB ASU 2015-03 ASU

FASB 2015 ASU 2015-15
2015 10
FASB ASU 2015-05 ASU
2016 10
FASB ASU 2015-16 ASU
2015

FASB ASU 2015-17 ASU

2015 10
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2016

2016

10

2016

2016

2016

2016

2016

FASB

FASB

FASB

FASB

FASB

2017 10

FASB

ASU

ASU

ASU

ASU

ASU

ASU

2016 10

2016-01

2016-02

2016-05

2016-06

2016-07

2016-09

FASB ASU 2016-13

ASU

2018 10

ASU

ASU

2017 10

ASU

ASU

ASU

ASU
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ASU 2016-13
2016 FASB ASU 2016-15
2018 10
2016 10 FASB ASU 2016-16
ASU 2016-16
2016 21
12.2 13.9
2016
A 79
1.0
A
B
C
U.K.&l 2,480,466
U.K.&l
U.K.&l
70
U.K.&l

21

ASU

ASU

0.0001

0.0001
0.0001

13.952

VE

U.K.&l
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2020 10
100
77.33 5.3 6.1
A
U.K.&l
3,156,823
A A
U.K.&l
A
VE
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100
U.K.&l

12

1.0

255

VE
U.K.&l

2016

2016

12

U.K.&l

2015 11
LSA

@

(b)

U.K.&l

21
VE

VE
VE

2007 10

2015 2014
226

U.K.

LSA

VE
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u.

VE

K.&l

132/267

VE

2016

EDINETOOOO

OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)

LSA

U.K.&l

VE

oOoOooodn

LSA

VE

191



2016 30
2016 152
60
€))
@
(©)
O)
[6H) 2016 21 6.1
VE
20
@ 1.0
1.2 2016
2016 30
®
2007
US GAAP
US GAAP
1.9 2016

O] C
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( )
$ 13,882
5,692
$ 19,574
1,236
$ 20,810
(1,856)
(170)
$ 18,784
25
4.0

30 1.2
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*
2016 30
2016
2016 30
299
872
2016

65
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2017
( )

$ 4,457

258
$ (2,731)
(2,605)
$ (621)

@ 16,137
3,268

$ 18,784

2.4
2016 21 2016 30
2016 30
554
65
489
2016 30
88
2016
( )

$ 299

(41)

(1,184)
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(243)
(96)

255

91
47
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2016

30

2016
1.9
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B USA
1:05-md-01720-J6-J0 E.D.N.Y. MDL 1720 MDL 1720
MDL 1720
MDL 1720
MDL 1720
MDL 1720
MDL 1720 2012 23(b) (3) 2015
10 22 MDL 1720
MDL 1720 MDL 1720
20
USA
2016 2015
( )
10 $ 1,072 $ 1,498
@ (45) (426)
30 $ 1,027 $ 1,072
(€H) 20
2016

20
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14
USA
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USA
USA
20
USA
USA USA
USA
Q)
USA
() USA USA
USA
USA
2015 10 22 MDL 1720
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MDL 1720
USA
20
33.3333 66.6667

33.3333 66.6667
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20
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70
U.K.&l A
VE
@ (b)
©) A
VE
A
VE
VE
20
2016
VE 34
25 2016
VE 2016
W

139/267



U.K.&l

@

&)

A 82.70

EDINETOOOO

OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)

OooooOodd
2016 30
€))
( )
$ 2,862 $ 2,516
3,642 3,201
$ 6,504 $ 5,717
34) 34)
$ 6,470 $ 5,683
(a) 2016 30 U.K.&l
(b) 2016 30 U.K.&l
13.952 (c) 2016 30
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2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
( )
$ 4,537 $ 3,051
$ 19 $ 280
71 66
4,699 2,615
2,178 2,656
53 4
249 533
$ - $ 7
50 76
6
$6,839 $5,777 $5,200 $ 3,504 $ - $ 7
$ - $ 255
$ 116 $ 13
$ 20
$ - 3 - $ 136 $ 13 $ - $ 255

2016

2016
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2016 30
( )
2017 12 1.20 $ 1,746 $ 1,754
2020 12 2.20 2,988 3,077
2022 12 2.80 2,238 2,359
2025 12 3.15 3,964 4,225
2035 12 4.15 1,485 1,698
2045 12 4.30 3,461 4,045
$ 15,882 $ 17,158
2016 30
2016 30
2016
2015 30 71 66
2016 30 2015 30
( ) ( )

$4,693 §$ 6 $ - $4,699 $2,612 $ 33 - $2,615

2,176 3 - 2,179 2,652 4 - 2,656

7 46 - 53 4 - - 4

248 - - 248 533 - - 533

- - - - 7 - - 7

$7,124 $ 55 $ - $7,179 $5,808 $ 7% - $5,815
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(3,248) (2,431)
$3,931 $3,384
3.9
( )
$ 3,193 $ 3,195
3,925 3,931
$ 7,118 $ 7,126
30
2016 2015 2014
( )
$ 75 $ 31 $ 25
5 3 8
3 (6) )
- 2 6
3 21 1
(©) ®) 3
$ 82 $ 46 $ 35
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30 30

( )
$ 151 $ 137
19 232 77

12
50 76
122 63
$ 555 $ 353
2016 2015
30 30

( )

19 $ 731 $ 627
10
22 36
46 45
72 57
19 @ 22 13
$ 893 $ 778
(€)) ASU 2015-17 2015 10

19

145/267



EDINETOOOO

OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)

OooooOodd
6
2016 2015
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( )
$ 74 $ 71
839 803
1,382 1,267
125 120
2,378 2,022
4,798 4,283
(2,648) (2,395)
$ 2,150 $ 1,888

2015 30
1.5
2016 30
2021
2017 2018 2019 2020
( )
$ 274 $ 209 $ 161 $ $ 84 $ 836
2016 2015 2014
452 431 369 2016 2015
2014 251

198
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2016 30 2015 30
( )
$ 351 $ (2200 $ 131 $ 3BL $ (19%6) $ 155
192 (80) 112 192 (67) 125
95 (70) 25 95 (59) 36
18 ) 9 53 1n 36
$ 65 $ (379 $ 277 $ 691 $ (339) $ 352
$22,873  $ - $22,873 $6,925 $ - $ 6,925
4,084 - 4,084 2,564 - 2,564
- - - 1,520 - 1,520
$26,957 $ - $26,957 $11,009 $ - $11,009
$27,613 $ (379) $27,234 $11,700 $ (339) $11,361
2016 2015 2014
50 63 66 2016 30
2021
2017 2018 2019 2020
¢ )
$ 46 $ 40 $ 40 $ 40 $ 111 $ 277
2016 2015 2014
2016
18.8
16.1
1.5 2007 10
3.3
2016 30

39
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8
2016 2015
30 30
( )
@ $ 347 $ 257
@ - 255
® 145 .
19 153 75
®) 483 262
$ 1,128 $ 849
2016 2015
30 30
( )
19 ® $ 911 $ 752
137 77
114 68
$ 1,162 $ 897
@
(2) 2016 21
100
(3) 2016 30 2015 12
4
®)
FASB ASU 2015-17

19
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2016 30
( ) ()

2017 12 1.20

2017 $ 1,750 ) $ 1,746 1.37%
2020 12 2.20

2020 3,000 (12) 2,988 2.30%
2022 12 2.80

2022 2,250 (12) 2,238 2.89%
2025 12 3.15

2025 4,000 (36) 3,964 3.26%
2035 12 4.15

2035 1,500 (15) 1,485 4.23%
2045 12 4.30

2045 3,500 (39) 3,461 4.37%

$ 16,000 $ (118) $ 15,882
2015 12 16.0 30
2017 2020 2022 2025 2035 2045
1.20 4.30 2016 14
14 12 14 2016 399
15.9
2016 30
2017 2020 2022 2025 2035 2045
100

2017 2017 12 14 5 bps
2020 2020 11 14 10 bps
2022 2022 10 14 12.5 bps
2025 2025 14 15 bps
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2016 27
RBC
27
LIBOR
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2035 14 20 bps
2045 14 20 bps
2017 100
2022
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
$ 1,750 3,000 11,250  $16,000
3.0
397 2016 30
USA
4.0
JP
HSBC USA
UFJ
J.P.
HSBC USA
UFJ
D) USA
2021 27 2016
3.0
4.0
EBITDA 3.75 1.00
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2016 30
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30

10

2015 10

2016

ERISA

2015 12 31

65
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30 30 30
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016
)
$ 1,006 $ 983 $ 18 $ 20 $
i i, - - 381
13 47 - - 1
40 40 1 1 3
86 40 [0)) - 86
64) (105) (€)) ©) @
® - - - -
- - - - 4
$ 1,072 $ 1,005 $ 14 $ 18 $ 474
$ 1,072 $ 994 $ 474
$ 1,022 $ 1,117 $ - 3 -8 -
- - - - 287
118 (6) - - 25
1 16 3 3 102
64 (105) (€)] ©)) @
- - - - 2
$ 1,077 $ 1,022 $ - 3 - 415
$ 5 $ 17 $ (@) $ (18) (59)
$ 2 $ 36 $ - 8 -8 -
©) Q) ® 3) ©)
®) (10) (€¥)) (15) (53)
$ 5 $ 17 $ () $ @18 $ (59)
30 30 30
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016
)
$ 241 $ 232 $ G $ G % 66
- ® (€3) ®) -
$ 241 $ 223 $ @O $ @) $ 66
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2017
( )
$ 15 $ @ $ 2
- (2) -
$ 15 $ 3 $ 2
30 30
2016 2015 2016
( )
$ @6) $ (19 $  (474)
$ - $ - $ 415
$ (16 $ (9 $ 474
$ - $ - $ 415
(€))
2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014 2016
( )
$ 13 $ 47 $ 46 3 - $ - $ - $ 1
40 40 42 1 1 1 3
(69) (72) (68) - - - ©)
@ Q) 6)) (€)) €)) ©)) -
7 1 1 (@) ) €)) -
$ ) $ 9 $ 13 $ @IS W s O -
® (€)) - - - -
13 7 3 - - - -
$ G $ 16 $ 13 $ DS W $ O -

6 2016 30
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2016 2015 2016 2015 2016
( )
$ 30 $ 119 $ @ $ - $ 66
(20) ®) 2 2 -
9 7 3 3 -
$ 19 $ 118 $ 3 $ 5 $ 66
$ 14 $ 134 $ O $ 1 $ 66
2016 2015 2014 2016
@
3.62% 4.33% 4.27% 2.40%
1.91% 2.43% 2.59%
4.33% 4.27% 4.81% 3.10%
2.43% 2.59% 2.76%
@ 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 3.92%
®)
4.00% 4.00% 3.20%
4.00% 4.50% 3.00%
@
)
)
(3) 2015 10 2015 12 31
2016
2017

2021
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50 80 25 35
2016 30
62 34
40
40 2016
28 22 50
2016 102
2016 2015 30

30

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

( )
$ 39 $ 1 $ 39 $ 1
$ 185 $ 169 185 169
30 66 30 66
100 74 100 74
$51  $31 51 31
672 671 672 671

$ 811 ¢ 756 $ 2156 $ 235 $ 51 $31 $1,077 $1,022
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2016 30

( )
$ 105 $ 105
$ 39 39
52 52
$ 29 29
116 116
(€Y 74 74
$ 273 $ 113 $ 29 $ 415

@

2016 2015 2016 2015
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( )
2016 $ 1 $ 3 $ 102
2015 $ 16 $ 3 $ -
2017 $ 9 $ 3 $ 6
2017 $ 165 $ 3 $ 4
2018 $ 88 $ 3 $ 4
2019 $ 85 $ 2 $ 5
2020 $ 84 $ 2 $ 5
2021 $ 81 $ 2 $ 5
2022-2026 $ 350 $ 2 $ 27
401k
401k 2016 2015
2014 55 49 46

401k
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11
2016
30 67.8 ( )
2015 30 43.5 ( ) 2016
30
2016 2015 30 2.9 2.2
2016 2015
30 30
( )
$ 1,205 $ 1,023
170 154
1,311 1,178
1,418 971
$ 4,194 $ 3,326
2016 30
( )
@ $ 294
144
375
$ 813

@
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2016

12

78

2014
27

74

20

2016

2015 30

12

1.6

189
17

2016

16
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2016

2015

2016

2016

30

2017

30
30

2015
30

58
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US GAAP
2016 30
1.1 2015 30
2016 30
54
2016 30
1.2
18.8
2016 21 2016 30
218
13
2016 2015
30 30
( )
$ 1,827 $ 1,806
323 82

$ 2,150 $ 1,888
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2016
52 2015 53 2014 54
10
2016 2015 2014
10
14
A
C
2015 A
A
B C
B B A 1.6483
C C A 4.0
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A U.K.&l
U.K.&l 13.952
A A
2016 30 A
A A
@
U.K.&l 2 13.9520 35
3 13.9520 44
A @) 1,871 - 1,871
B 245 1.6483® 405
C 17 4.0000 67
2,422
@ A
) A 2016 30
2016 10
®3) B A
10
2016 @ 2015
(
)
) 91 44

(

) $ 77.05 $  65.98
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@
120
&)
®
2015 10
30
B B
A
c 2016 30
134
550,000

U.K.&l

VE

U.K.&l

2016

2016

170
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$ 6,967 $ 2,910
30
2016 10
5.0 2016
5.8 2015 10
C 550,000
B
B A
B
A
2016 2015
C
C A
2016
2015
U.K.&l
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12

15

U.K.&l
A
B C
2016 1.4
2016 10
U.K.&l
2016 11 18
14
A
A @
B C

165/267

EDINETOOOO

OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)

B
B
0.165
U.K.&l
A

0.14

O]

oOoOooodn

2016



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)

OOooOoOoOoo
2016 @
2 2
@ ® @B M)/ @) A ® B A/ ®)
A $ 4,738 1,906 $ 2.49 $ 5,991 2,414 $ 2.48
1,006 245 $ 4.10 $ 1,004 245 $ 4.09
185 19 $ 9.94 $ 185 19 $ 9.93
® 62 $ 61
$ 5,901
2015 M
2 2
@ @ (B) A/ (B) ®» ® ® A/ B
A $ 5,044 1,954 $ 2.58 $ 6,328 2,457 $ 2.58
1,045 245 $ 4.26 $ 1,042 245 $ 4.25
224 22 $ 10.33 $ 223 22 $ 10.30
® 15 $ 15
$ 6,328
2014 @
2 2
® @ ® (/(B) ®» @ (®) (A/(B)
A $ 4,307 1,993 $ 2.16 $ 5,438 2.523® $ 2.16
892 245 $ 3.63 $ 890 245 $ 3.62
222 2 $ 8.65 $ 221 26 $ 8.62
® 17 $ 16
$ 5,438
(€))
2015
14
)
B 2016 2015 405 2014 413
C 2016 2015 2014
75 87 103
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2007
2007
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2014
2014
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2015 2014
2016 2015 2014
U.K.&l
U.K.&l
A A
14
EIP
RSA
RSU
A 236
EIP
EIP
2016
EIP 2022 31
2016 2015 2014
EIP 211
172 2016 2015
62 54 51 2016 2015
2015

14
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EIP 10
2016 2015 2014
2016 2015 2014
@ 4.35 4.55 4.80
@ 1.5% 1.5% 1.3%
® 21.7% 22.0% 25.2%
® 0.7% 0.8% 0.8%
$ 15.01 $ 12.04 $ 11.03
(¢H)
1PO
2016
77 23 2015 67 33 2014 58
42
)
(©)] 2016
20 23 2015 21 23 2014 22 26
O]
2016
1)
2015 10 9,677,717 $ 28.07
1,438,048 $ 79.98
(463,378) $ 21.76
(1,775,903) $ 20.00
2016 30 8,876,484 $ 38.42 5.2 $ 3903
2016 30 6,204,589 $ 24.87 3.8 $ 359
2016 30
@ 8,582,576 $ 37.35 5.1 $ 389
(1) 2016 82.70
1) 2016 30
2016 2015 2014 103
134 187 35 86 65
2016 30
19 1.4
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EIP RSA RSU
RSA A RSA
A A
RSU A
RSU
RSU
2016 RSA EIP
RSA RSU A
2015 2014 RSA
63.71 49.98 2016 RSA 2016 2015
2014 RSU 79.77 62.88
49.44 2016 2015 2014 RSA RSU
142 132 126
2016 RSA RSU
[6))
RSA RSU RSA RSU RSA RSU
2015 10
4,064,687 1,442,522 $ 54.09 $ 53.80
- 2,735,115 $ - $ 79.77
(2,061,406) (789,180) $ 49.06 $ 51.58
(236,699)  (241,503) $59.34 $ 73.02
2016 30
1,766,582 3,146,954 $ 59.26 $ 75.48 0.8 1.7 $ 146 $ 260
(1) 2016 82.70
2016 30 RSA RSU 54
140 RSA 0.8 RSU 1.7
2016
()
2015 10 1,263,962 $ 57.61
@ 604,219 $ 92.71
(645,320) $ 54.59
(123,387) $ 54.59
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(57,462) $ 73.07
2016 30 1,042,012 $ 78.24 0.9 $ 86
(1) 2016 82.70
@
500
2016 2015 2014
92.71 69.78 56.37
2016 2015 2014
2016 30
18 0.9
2015 A
ESPP ESPP
15 A
ESPP 20 2015
ESPP
17
2016
2015 2014 134 136 134
2016 30

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

$ 126 $ 103 $ 82 $ 61 $ 57 $ 190 $ 619

126 128 120 110 38 33 555
$ 252 $ 231 $ 202 $ 171 $ 95 $ 223 $1,174
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16

2016 30

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

$4,211 $3,752 $ 3,211 $ 2,628 $ 2,245 $ 4,617 $20,664

2016 21 100
1.0 4
18
10
©O) 10
2016 2015 30
10 2016 2015
2014
19
2016 2015 2014
$ 5,839 $ 7,214 $ 6,140
2,173 1,781 1,584

$ 8,012 $ 8,995 $ 7,724
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2016 2015 2014
2.5 2.4 2.3
2016 2015 2014
$ 2,250 $ 1,991 $ 2,353
181 168 237
368 300 274
2,799 2,459 2,864
(508) 181 (576)
(63) 1 (3D
(207) 26 29
(778) 208 (578)
$ 2,021 $ 2,667 $ 2,286

2016

2015

30
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2015 11 FASB

50

2016 30
117

2016 30

2026
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2016 2015
$ 2717 $ 141
106 51
373 391
266 191
32 50
195 203
1,214 -
280 185
(31) (40)
2,712 1,172
(278) (315)
(7,013) (3,964)
(106) (153)
(101) -
(7,498) (4,432)
$ (4,786) $ (3,260)
2015 30 22
2015-17 ASU
2015 10
2016 2015
17 21
2028 2035
15
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2016 25
2016
88
2016
239
2015 2014
2015
2014
191
2016 2015 30
2016 2015
153

911

2015

30
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35
30
2016 2015 2014
) ) ) (D) ) )
$ 2,804 3BY% $ 3,148 3B % $ 2,704 35 %
135 2 % 194 2 % 129 2 %
(553) % (327) @)%  (278) (4%
- - % - - % (191) )%
(88) W% - - % . -
- % (239) )% - -
(89) D% - - % - -
(188) G)% (109) )% (78) (L)%
$ 2,021 5% $ 2,667 0% $ 2,286 30 %
30 2016 2015
1.9
255
2015 296
296
30
296
264
232 77
731 627
2016 2015 30
75
752
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2016 30 8.3

2023 30

2016 2015 2014
235 192 168
0.10 0.08 0.07
740
2016 2015 30
1.2 1.1
926 859
2016 2015
( )
10 $ 1,051 $ 1,303
153 44
(180) (413)
138 120
@ (©))
30 $ 1,160 $ 1,051
2016 2014
15 10 2015 2016
2015 2014
2016 2015 30
61 33 17

2016 30

175/267



2009 2012
2008
2009
2007 2008

2006

2013

2015

CRA

CRA

CRA
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2006

2003 2009

2010

2016
CRA

2002

12



20

10

30

10

30

2014

USA
14 MDL1720
4.0
450
2016 30
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2016 2015
$ 1,024 $ 1,456
2 14
2 -
“n (446)
$ 981 $ 1,024
2016 2015
$ 1,023 $ 1,449
(45) (426)
$ 978 $ 1,023
2014 27
1.1
2014
2014 2016 528
978

1771267
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10
30
ML
2005 USA
1PO
USA
2012
) 4.0
10
2012 12 10 2012
4.0
2014 14
2016 30
2016 11 23
2013 12 16 2000

MDL
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2016
$ -
2
$ 2
MDL1720
1PO
350
2012 10 29
2012
€))
®
Q)
2012
54.0
MDL1720 2014 11 26
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2016 24
2016 10
17 2016 10 31
2013 2012 50
MDL1720
USA
MDL1720 2012
Wal-Mart Stores Inc. The Home Depot, Inc.
USA Home Depot U.S.A. Sears
Holdings Corporation
2012
2004 2012 11 27
MDL1720
MDL1720
MDL 1720
JG JO 1:05-md-01720-J6-J0 (E.D.N.Y.)
MDL1720
MDL1720
23 () )
MDL1720 2012
2012
51
MDL1720 2012
2016 13 USA

USA

2016 10 MDL1720
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2013 100

2016 11 2013

30

2000 2004

2015 12

EEA

2013

EC

EEA
2010 2014
2016

19

SSO EEA

EEA

2015

EC
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2009

SSO
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Dpee 2013 EC
2010 12
2014 26
2010
2010 11 19
Webloyalty.com, Inc.
Corporation
2015
ATM
ATH National ATM Council
System, Inc.
ATM
2011 10 ATM
2011 10
2013 13
2016 18 ATM
2016

EDINETOOOO
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ooooooo
DCC EU
10
2010
Gamestop
2015 10 15
11 12
2011 10 ATM 13 ATM
USA Plus
ATM
28
2016 21

2016 12
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2012 13
CID
CID
PIN
CID
EMvy 2016
Pulse Network
2014 11 25
2015 23
2014 12 23 MDL1720
2015
EMvy
Milam®s Market
B&R Supermarket, Inc.
2016 15
EMVCo
2016 10
USA
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15
PIN
28 EMV
Pulse Network LLC
PIN
2015 12 17
MDL1720
15
B&R
Grove Liquors LLC 2016
USA
EMVCo
2015 10
2016 30 EMVCo
USA

2016 29
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2016 19
2016 27 The Kroger Co.
2016 11 2016 15
2016 12 Broadway Grill Inc.
2004
USA
MDL1720
2016 18
2016 27

2016 10 17
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2016 2015
2016 2016 2016
2016 30 @ 31 (©)] 2015
3 @ ® 12 31 @
$ 4,261 $ 3,630 $ 3,626 $ 3,565 $ 15,082
$ 2,625 $ 428 $ 2,434 $ 2,396 $ 7,883
$ 1,931 $ 412 $ 1,707 $ 1,941 $ 5,991
A $ 0.79 $ 0.17 $ 0.71 $ 0.80 $ 2.49
B $ 1.31 $ 0.29 $  1.17 $ 1.32 $ 4.10
C $  3.17 $ 0.69 $ 2.8 $ 3.20 $ 9.9
A $ 0.79 $ 0.17 $ 0.71 $ 0.80 $ 2.48
B $ 1.30 $ 0.28 $  1.17 $ 1.32 $ 4.09
C $ 3.16 $ 0.69 $ 2.84 $ 3.20 $ 9.93
2015 2015 2015 2014 2015
30 3 @ 3 12 31 ©
$ 3,571 $ 3,518 $ 3,409 $ 3,382 $ 13,880
$ 2,283 $ 2,262 $ 2,281 $ 2,238 $ 9,064
$ 1,512 $ 1,697 $ 1,550 $ 1,569 $ 6,328
A $ 0.62 $ 0.69 $ 0.63 $ 0.63 $ 2.58
B $ 1.02 $ 1.14 $ 1.04 $ 1.05 $ 4.26
9 $ 2.48 $ 2.78 $ 2.53 $ 2.54 $ 10.33
A $ 0.62 $ 0.69 $ 0.63 $ 0.63 $ 2.58
B $ 1.02 $ 1.14 $ 1.04 $ 1.04 $ 4.25
9 $ 2.48 $ 277 $ 2.52 $ 2.53 $ 10.30
Overview within Item 7 -
Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 2016 10-K

184/267



&)

®

O

®

(©)

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn
2016 21 2016 30

2016 21 2016 30 B C

15 2016 30

1.9
152
145

Overview within Item 7 - Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations 2016 10-K
2016
116 42 Overview within Item 7 -
Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 2016 10-K
2015 12 31 255
Overview within Item 7 - Management’ s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 2016 10-K
2015 110
Overview within Item 7 - Management’ s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 2016 10-K
2015 2015
14
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WISA INC,

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Septemibeer 30, Septermber 20,
HHE HAS
fin millions, except par value data)

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 5618 5§ 3518
Restricted cagh—L1.S. Migation escrow (Mote 3) 1,027 1,072
Irvestment securities (Mote 4);

Trading T (1.3

Available-for-sale 3248 2431
Seftlement receiable 1467 408
Accounts receable 1,041 B47
Customer colateral (Note 11) 1,001 1,023
Cument portion of chent incentives 284 303
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (Mote 5) 555 353

Total current assets 14,313 10,021

Imvestment securities, available-for-sale (Mote 4) 354 3,364
Client incentives 448 110
Property, equipment and technology, net (Naote &) 2,150 1,858
Other assets (Nete 5) §93 778
Intangitle assets, net (MNote 7) 27,234 11,361
Goddwyill 15,088 11,825

Total assets § 64,035 5 38,367
Liabllties
Accounts payable 5 203 5 127
Saftlement payable 2,084 a0
Customer coliateral (Note 11) 1,004 1,023
Accrued compensation and banelits E73 502
Client incentives 1,876 1,049
Accreed liabilities (Mote B) 1128 549
Accrued litigation (Mote 207 281 1,024

Total current liakilties 8,045 5355

Lang-term debt (Mote 9) 15,882 —
Deterred tax Habilities (Mote 19) 4808 3,273
Deferred purchase conssdaration (Note 2) 1,226 -
Cther liabiliies (Mote 8) 1,162 Bay

Total l=biities 31,123 89,525

Commaments and contingencles (Note 17)

See accompanying notes, which are an inlegral part of these consolidated financial slatements.

52
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VISA INC,
COMSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS—{Continuwed)

September 30, September 30,
16 2015
(i milllbgays, except par walue data)
Equity
Preferred siock, 30,0001 par value, 25 shares authorized and S issued and outstanding a3 follows:
Series A convertible parficipating preferred stock, none issued (Mote 2 and Mote 14) 5 — 5 -
Series B convertible participating preferred stock, 2 shares issued and outstanding at Saptembear
0, 2016 (Mete 2 and Mot 14) 2,518 -
Serles C convertible participating preferred steck, 3 ghares Issued and cutstanding at Seplember
30, 2016 (Note 2 and Note 14) 3,201 -
Class A common stock, $0.0001 par value, 2,001,622 shares authaorized, 1,871 and 1,550 shares
izsued and outstanding at September 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively (Note 14) —_ —_
Class B common stock, S0.0001 par value, 622 shares authorized, 245 shares issued and outstanding
at September 30, 2016 and 2015 (Mote 14) —_ —
Clags C commen stock, 30,0001 parvalue, 1,097 shareg authorized, 17 and 20 shares issued and
outstanding at Septembar 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively (Note 14) —_ —
Treasury stock (Mote 2 and Note 14) (170} —
Right to récowver for covered losses (Mote 3) [34) -
Additional paic-in capital 17,395 18,073
Accumulated income 10,462 11,843
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net
Imvestment securities, available-for-sale 35 ]
Defined benefit pension and other postretiernent plans {225) [161)
Derhvative instruments classified as cash flow hedges (50) a3
Faoreign currency translation adjustments (218) (1)
Total accumulated other comprehensive koss, net [458) (74)
Total equity 32,812 20,842
Total l=biities and equity 5 84,035 = 8 367

See accompanying nofes, which are an inlegral part of hese consolidated finarcial sfatemants.
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WISA INC,
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the Years Ended
Septembaer 30,
016 HAS 2014
{in millions, sxcept per share data)

Operating Revenues
Semice revenues L3 B, 747 = 5302 & 5,797
Data processing revenuss 6,272 5,552 5,167
International transaction revenues 4,649 4.064 3,560
Cther revenues 823 823 770
Client incentives (2,408) {2.861) {2.592)

Het operating revenues 15,082 13,880 12,702
Qperating Expenses
Farsonnel 2,226 20T 1,875
Marketing BES ar2 =[]
Metwark and processing 538 474 507
Professional fees 189 336 328
Depreciation and amortization 502 494 435
General and administrative 796 547 507
Litigation provision {Mote 200 2 14 453
Viza Eurepe Framework Agreement loss (Mote 2) 1,877 — -

Total oparating expenses 7184 4,816 5,005
Crperating income T.B83 9064 7.697
Hon-operating Income (Expense)
Interest expense {427) 3 (&)
Other (Mote 4 and Note 12) 556 (E6) 35

Mor-operating income (expense) 129 (69} 27
Income before income taxes 8012 8,985 7. 724
Incame tax provision (Mols 19) 2,021 2 BET 2,288
Met income § 5991 s 6328 S 5438

" The Compary did not inchude Visa Eurcpe’s financial results in the Comparny™s consolidated statements of operations from the acquisition date, June 21,
2018, throwgh June 30, 2016 as the impact was immaterial. The Company's consdlidated staternent of operations for the year ended Septernber 30, 2016
includes Visa Europé's financial results for the e months ended September 20, 2016, Seé Mole 2—Acquisition of Visa Ewops

See accompanymg notes, wihich are an flegral part of these consoldated financial slatements,

54

188/267



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

VISA INC.,
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS—{Continued)

For the Years Ended
Soptarmiver 30,

2016 M 15 2014
{im millions, except per share data)

Baslz earnings per share (Mote 15)

Class A common stock 5 249 3 258 3 2.16

Class B common stock % 410 5 426 5 363

Clags C common siock $ 994 = 1033 & B.65
Basl: weighted-average shares sutstanding (Note 15)

Class A common stock 1,808 1954 1,992

Class B common stock 245 245 245

Clags C eommon stock 18 3 26
Diluted earnings per share (Note 15)

Class A common stock § 248 5 258 § 216

Class B common stock % 408 = 425 & 362

Class C common stock - 8483 % 10030 3§ 8.62
Dlluted weighted-average shares outstanding (Mote 15)

Class A common Stock 2414 2467 2,523

Class B common stock 245 245 245

Class C common stock 19 22 26

" The Company did not incude Visa Europe’s financial resulis in e Company's consolidated staternents of operations from the acquisiion dabe, June 21,
2016, through June 20, 2016 as the impact was immaterial. The Compamys consalidated staterment of operations for the year ended September 30, 2016
includes Visa Europe's finandial results for the three months ended September 30, 2016, Seea Nole 2—Acquisition of Visa Euwrope

See accompanying notes, which are an inlegral part of these consoldated financial stafemenis.
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Table of Conte
VISA INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Years Ended
September 20,
2016 2015 Pkl
fim rmillicaes)
Het income % 5991 3§ 6328 5 5438
Other comprehensive (logs) Inceme, net of tax:
Imvestment securities, available-for-sale:
Met unrealized gain (bss) 81 [21) (44)
Income tax effect (18) a 17
Reclassification adjustment for net gain realized in net income (3) (21) n
Income tax effect 1 i —
Defined benefit pension and cther pestretinement plans:
Met unredlized actuarial gain (kss) and prior service credit {108) (122) {27)
Imcarme tax effect 38 45 a
Amartization of actwarial koss (gain) and prior senvice credit realized in net income 10 (1) (8)
Income tax effect (4) 1 3
Dertvative instruments classified as cash flow hedges:
Met uprealized (loss) gain (74) 172 65
Imcome tax effect a (51) (13)
Reclassification adjustment for net gain realized in net income {103) (102) {dB)
Incarme tax effect a5 26 ]
Foreign curmency translation adjustments (218) 1 (n
Cther comprehensive loss, net of tax (384) (57) (38)
Comprehenstve income $ 5607 & 6271 % 5,400

Sedr sccompanying rotes, which are an integral part of these consolidated financisl statemaents.
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VISA INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMEMNTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Comemon Stock -""'“o"'i':;.“
Additional Accumulated Comprefansive Total
Class & Class B ClassC  Paid-n Capital Irscoime Incoms [Loss) Exquity
{in millicans, excapl per share dala)
Balance as of September 30, 2013 2,03 245 27 -3 18875 % 7674 5 21 5 28,870
Met income 5438 5438
Other comprehensnae loss, net of tax (38K (38}
Comprshanisg insome 5,400
Conversion of dlass C common stock upen sale Inte 18 (5 =
public markost
Issuance and wasting of resiriced shock and 4 =
perdormance-based thares
Share-based compensation, net of forfeitures (Mots 18 e 172 172
::nﬁ:ﬂ:sandpﬂumn&bﬂud shares saled 1 (56 186
Excess tax benefit for share-based compensation &0 0
Cash procesds from (ssuance of common stock under 5 a1 a1
Empioyes equly plans
o e o a0
Repurchase of class A common slock (79} 1843 (3275 {4,118)
Balance as of September 30, 2014 1678 245 e 3 182800 3§ 8,131 ] {17y 5 27413

Decrease In Class & common stock related to forfeitures of resticed slock awards

See sccompanying notes, which are an integral part of these consolidated financial statemenis,
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VISA INC,
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY —{Continuad)
Bugcanruilated
Cormmon Stock
Additional Accurmulated Comprehensive Totad
Class A Class B ClassC  Paiddn Copital Income Loss Equity
{in milllons, except per share data)
Balance as of Septamber 30, 2014 1978 245 2 g 18200 & 9,131 H (17 27413
et income A.338 8,328
Other comprahensive loss, net of tax (57 (57}
Comprehenshag income G271
Comversion of dass C common stock upon sale into 1 @ =
public maricet
Issuance and vesting of resiricted stock and 4 —
parfceman ce-based shanes
Shiare-based comparsation, net of forfatures (Note 16) ™ 187 187
Rsiricted siodk and performance-based shares seftled
in cash for taees {1 (o8 108
Excass tax benefi for share-based compensation i a4
Cash procesds from issuance of common shock under 3 a2 a2
emplayes squity plans
Cash dividends dectared and paid, at a quarledy
amount of $0.12 per as-converted share {1,177} (1ATT)
Repurchase of class A common dock (Note 14} {44} {47 1) {2,438 {2,810)
Balance as of September 30, 2015 1650 245 20 35 18073 § 11,843 3 (74) 20,842

' Becrease in Class A common stock related to forfellures of restricted stock awards

See accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these consolidated financial statemeanis.
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Hmﬁ HmeX Common Stock

Series  Series
B c

Class A, Class B Class C

Preferred  Treasury
Stock

VISA INC.

Rigiht e
Recover

for Additional
Covered Paiddn
Stock Losses Capital

Crthvor
Accurmedated  Comprefwensive
Incaame
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Agcumulated

Total

Loss Equity

30, - — 1980

{im millions, sxcept per share data)

— 5§ — % — %1807

§

11843 % 74y  S20.842

comprghansive
los=, net of bax
Comphihanshe
income

Issuance of
prafemed stock
[MNote 2 and Mobs
14)

VE lerritony
cirvened lodies
incumed (Mote 3)
Class € common
slock held by Visa
Europe, a wholly- o
owned subsideary

of Visa Inc. (Moke

2 and Mote 14)

Conversion of dass

C common shock 8 (
upon sale intg

public market

Issuance and

wesling of

resiricled siock 2
and periormane-

based shares

Share-based

compersation, net &
of forfeflures

Hole 15)

Rastricted siook

and parfarmance-

based shares {1
settled in cash for

lanes

Excass Lax beneft

for share-based

compensation

Cash procesds

from issuance of

common stock 3

under amphoyes

equity plans

Cash deddends

declared and paid,

at @ quarterly

amount of 3014
as-oomeerted

share (Mobe 14)

Repurchase of

class A comman

stock (Mate 14)

(1)

5,717

(34)

(170

Fral

(BE5)

5,081 5,861

(384} (384}

5607

5017

34)

(170

82

53

{1.350) {1.2500

{8.022) (6,88T)

Balance as of
Saptember B0, 2 3
2016

14871 245 7

5

5MF F (T 3 (24) 3 17385

H

10462 3 (458 532012

" Senes B and C prefemed stock are altematvely refarmed (o as U K& and Eurcpe prefermed stock, respactively
& Decrease in Class A common stock related o fofefures of restricted stock awards is less than 1 milkon shares.

See accompanying notas, which are an integral part of these consolidated financial stafements.
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VISA INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the ¥ears Ended
September 30,
2016 2015 14
{iry miflions)
Operating Activities
Met income ] 5831 = 6328 3% 5,438
Adjustments to reconcike net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Client incentives 3408 2,881 2,592
Falr value adjustment for the Visa Ewope put option (255} 110 —
Share-based compensation N 187 172
Excess tax benefit for share-based compansation (63) (B4) {90y
Depreciation and amortization of property, equipment, technalogy and intangible assets 502 454 435
Deferred income taxes (T64) 195 (580)
Right to recover for covered I055es reconded in equity 2] — -
Litigation provision (Note 20) 4 14 453
Other % 24 az
Change in operating assets and [Rbiktes:
Setlement recelvable 391 373 13
Accounts receivable (65) (19) (53)
Client incentives (3,508) (2,970) (2,295)
Other assets (318} (41) (379}
Accounts payable 42 {13} {58}
Setthiement payable (302} (552) 107
Accrued and other liabiiities 217 118 513
Accrued litigation (Mote 20) (47) (446) 298
Met cash provided by operating activities 5574 6,554 7,205
Investing Activities
Purchases of property, equipment, technolegy and intangitle assets (523) (414) (553)
Proceeds from sakes of property, equipment and technofog y -_— 10 -
Investment securities, available-for-sale:
Purchases (28,004) (2,850) (2572)
Proceads from maturiies and sales 26,687 1,925 2342
Acquisitions, netof 2.8 billion cash recetved from Visa Europe (MNote 2) (9,082) (93) (143)
Purchases of / contributions to other investments {10} (25) )]
Proceads / distributions from other investments [ 12 —
Met cash used in investing activities {10,918) [1,425) (241)

See accompanying notes, wiich are an integral part of these conselidated finarca! stalemants.
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WISA INC,
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS—(Continued)
For the Years Endeod
September 3,
16 2015 2014
{in millions)
Financing Activities
Repurchase of class A common stock (Note 14) $ (68ET) 3 (2910) & (4,118)
Treasury stock—class C common stock (Note 2) {170} — =
Dividends paid (Mote 14) {1,350) {1,177 (1,006)
Froceeds from Issuance of senior notes (Note 3) 15,871 — =
Debt issuance costs (Mote 9) [98) = =
Deposit inta U5, Itigation escrow account—IULS. retrospective responsibility plan (Mote 3 and MNote 200 — — {4507
Payments from (return ta) U.S. litigation escrow account—U. 5. refrospactive responsibilty pian (Mote 3 and
Mote 20) 46 426 (599)
Cash proceeds from issuance of commeon steck under employee equity plans a5 82 a
Restricted stock and performance-based shares settled in cash for @xes (92) {108) (88}
Excess tax benafit for share-based compensation 63 a4 a0
Met cash pravided by (used in) financing activities 7477 {3,603 (6,478)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents [34) 1 (1)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,10 1.547 {218)
Cashand cash equivalents at beginning of year 3,518 1,971 2,186
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ¥ 65819 3 3518 § 1871
Supplemental Disclosure
Series Band C convertible participating prefemed stock sswed in Visa Europe acquisiton (Note 2) 5 5MT 3 - 5 -—
Deferred purchase consideration recorded for Visa Europe acquisition (Note 2) $ 123 3 - & _
Income taxes paid, net of refunds $ 2842 I 2438 5 2656
Interest payments on debt 5 244 = — % =
Accruals related to purchases of property, equipment. technology and intangible assets 5 42 3 81 & 62
Right to recover for covered losses related to Visa Europe acquisition (Mote 2) 5 M 3 - & -

See BoCOmPanymng rotes. whish are an ftegral part of hese consoloated financal stalements
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VISA INC,

HOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2016

Mete 1—Summary of Signiicant Accounting Policles

Crganization . In a senes of transactions from October 1 to October 3, 2007, Visa Inc. (Visa or the Company) undertook a reorganization in
which Visa U3 A, Inc, (Visa U.5 A, Visa International Service Assecliation (Visa Intemational), Visa Canada Corporation (Visa Canada) and
Inowant LLC (Inovant) became direct or indirect subshdiares of Visa and estabished the U.S. retrogpective responsibility plan (the October 2007
reqrganization or reerganization), See Note 3—U.3, and Europe Retrospective Responsibiity Plans . The reorganization was reflected as a single
transaction on October 1, 2007 using the purchase method of accounting with Visa U.S A, as the accounting acquirer, Visa Europe Limited {Visa
Eurape) did rot become a subsidiary of Visa Inc., but rather remained ewned and governed by its Eutopean member financial institutions. On June
21, 20116, the Company acquired 100% of the share capital of Visa Europe. The Company's consolidated statements of operations do not reflect the
financial results of Visa Europe for the 10 days from the acquisition date through June 30, 2016 as the impact was immaterial. See Noke 2—
Acquisition of Visa Europe .

Visa is a ghobal payments technology company that connects consumers, merchants, financial institutions, businesses, strategic parners and
governments in more than 200 countries and territories to fast, secure and relable electronic payments. Visa and its wholly-owned consclidated
subsidianes, including Visa U.S.A,, Visa International, Visa Worldwide Pte, Limited {VWFL), Visa Europe Limited (Visa Europe), Visa Canada,
Inovant and CyberSource Corparation (CyberSource), operate cne of the workd's largest retail electronic payments network — VisaMet — which
facilitates authorization, clearing and settliement of payment transactions and enables us to provide our financial institution and merchant clients a
wide range of products, platforms and vaiue-added services, VisaMet also offers fraud protection for account holders and assured payment for
merchants. Visa is not a bank and does nol issue cards, exténd credit or set rates and fees for account holders on Visa products. In most cases,
account holder and merchan relationships belong to, and are managed by, Visa's financial instituton clients.

Censoiidation and basis of presentaton . The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Visa and its consolidated entities and
are presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("U.S. GAAPY). The Company
consclidates its majorty-owned and controled entities, including variable interest entities ("VIEs™) for which the Company is the primary beneficiary.
The Company's investments in VIEs have not been material to its consolidated financial statemeants as of and for the perieds presented. All
significant intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated in consclidation.

O March 18, 2015, the Company completed a four -for-one split of its class A common stock effected in the form of a stock dividend. Al per
share amounts and number of shares outstanding in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes are presented on a post-split
basis. See Note 14— Stockholders' Equity |

The Company's activities are Interrelated, and each activity is dependent upon and supportive of the other. All significant operating deciskons
are based on analysis of Visa as a single giobal business, Accordingly, the Company has one repartable segment, Payment Services

Use of eslimaides . The preparation of consolidated financial staternents in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions about future events. These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and labilties and disclosure of
contingent assels and labilties al the date of the consokdated fina nclal staterments and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting peried. Future actual results could differ maternally from these estimates. The use of estimates in specilic accounting policies is described
further below as appropiate.

Cash and cash equivalents . Cash and cash equivalents include cash and certain highly lguid investments with original maturities of 50 days o
less from the date of purchase. Cash equivalents are primarily recarded at ¢ost, which approximates fair vabkee due to their generally short maturites.

Restricted cagh—U.5. Ilgaton escrow . The Company maintaing an escrow account from which monetary labilities from settiements of, or
judgments in, the U.S. covered litigation are paid. See Nole 3—U.5. and Europe Refrospective Responsibility Plans and Nole 20—Legal Matfers for
a discussion of the U.S. coverad tigation. The escrow funds are held in money market investments, tagether with the interest earned, less
applicable axes
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VISA INC,

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
September 30, 2018

payabhe, and classified as restricted cash on the consolidated balance sheets_ Interest eamed on escrow funds is included in non-operating incame
on the consolidated statements of oparations.

Investments and fai valve. The Company measures certain assats and labilities at fair value. Fair value is the price that would be recaived to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date_ Fair value measurements
are reparbed under a three-lavel valuation hierarchy. See Nofe 4—Fai Value Measurements and invesimenis . The classification of the Company's
financial assets and liabilities within the Kerarchy s as follows;

Leval 1 —inputs to the valuaton methodology are unadusted quoted prces in active markets for identical assets or liabiltes. The Company's
Level 1 assets include money market funds, publicly-traded equity securities and LS. Treasury sacurities.

Level 2 —Inputs to the valuation methedology can include: (1) quoted prices in active markets for similar (not identical) assets or kabiites;
(2) quoted prices for identical or similar assets in non-active markets; (3) inputs ather than queted prices that are obsenvable for the asset of llability;
of (4) inputs that are derved princigally from or cormobarated by obsenvable market data, The Company's Level 2 assets and liabilities include
commercial paper, U3 govemment-sponsored debl securities, corporate debt securities and foreign exchange defivative instruments.,

Leved 3 —Inpits to the valuation methodology are unobsendabie and cannotl be comoborated by observable market data. The Company’s Level
3 assets and [Abiies included auction rate securities and the Visa Europe put option at September 30, 2015

TF&HIHQ mvestment securites include mutual fund equity secunty imestments refated to vanious employee compensation and benefit plans.
Trading activity in these investments is at the direction of the Company's employess. These investments are held in a trust and are not availabhe for
the Company's operational or liguidity needs. Interast and dividend income and changes in fair value are recorded in non-operating income, and
offset in personnel expense on the consolidated statements of operations.

Available-for-sale investment securities include nvestments in debt and equily securties. These securites are recorded at cost at the time of
purchase and are carried at fair value. The Company considers these securities to be available-for-sale to meet working capital and liguidity needs.
Imvestments with original maturities of greater than 90 days and stated matwrities of less than one year from the balance sheet date, or Investmants
that the Company intends to sell within one year, are classified as cument assets, while all other securities are classified as non-current assefts.
These investments are generally available to meet short-term liquidity needs. Unrealized gains and losses are reported in accumulated other
comprehensive income or 1055 on the consolidated balance sheets until realized. The specific identification method B used to cakculate realized gain
of kxss on the sale of marketable securities, which is recorded in non-aperating income on the consolidated statemeants of operations. Dividend and
interest income are recognized when earned and are included in non-operating incame on the consobdated statements of operations.

The Company evaluates its debl and equity securities for sther-than-temporary impaiement, or OTTI, an an ongsing bagis. When there has
been a decling in fair value of a debt or equity security below the amortized ¢ost basis, the Company recognizes OTTI & (1) it has the intent to sell
the security; (2) it i mare likely than not that it will be required to sell the security belore recovery of the amortized cost basis: or (3) it does not
expect to recover the entire amartized cost basis of the security.

The Company applies the equity method of accounting for investments in other entities when it holds beteeen 20% and 50% ownership in the
entity of when it exercises signiicant influence. Under the equity method, the Company™s share of each entity's paofit or 88 is reflected in non-
operating income on the consolidated statements of operations. The equity method of accounting is also used for flow-through entities such as
limited partnershipz and limited | bility companies when the investment ownership parcentage is equal to or greater than 5% of outstanding
ownership interests, regardless of whether the Company has significant influence over the investees.

The Company applies the cost method of accounting for investments in other entities when it hobkds less than 20% ownership in the entity and
doeg not exercige significant influence, ar for flow-through entities when the nvestment ewnership is less than 5% and the Company does not
exerciEe significant influence These imvestments
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VISA INC,

HOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—[Continued)
September 30, 2016

consist of equity holdings in non-public companies and are reconded in olher assets on the consolidated balance sheels.

The Company regularly reviews investments accounted for under the cost and egquity methads for possible impairment, which generalty
imealves an analysis of the facts and changes in circumstances influancing the investment, expactations of the entity's cash flows and capital needs,
and the viability of its business modal.

Fimancial instrurments . The Company considers the following 1o be financial instruments: cash and cash equivalents, restricied cash-L.5.
litigation escrow, trading and available-for-sale investment securities, settlernant receivable and payable, customer collateral, non-marketable equity
imvestments, settlement risk guarantee, and derivative instruments. See Nofe 4—Fair Value Messurements and Investments

Settemant receivable and payable . The Company operates systems for authorizing, chearing and setling payment transactions worldwide.
Most U.S. dollar settlemaents with the Company's financial institution clients are seftled within the same day and do not result in a receiable or
payable balance, while settlements in currencies other than the U.S. dollar generally remain owtstanding for one to two business days, regulting in
amounis due from and to clients. These amounts are presented as settlement receivable and setttement payable on the consolidated balance
sheets,

Customer collateral . The Company holds cash deposits and other non-cash assets from certain clients in order fo ensure their performance of
setiement obligations arising fram Visa payment products are processed in accordance with the Company’s rules. The cash collateral assets are
restricted and fully offset by comesponding |abiities and both balances are presented on the consolidated balance sheels, excluding cash coliateral
hedd by Visa Europe as its clients retain beneficial ownership and the cash Is only accessible to the Company in the event of default by the cllent on
its settied obligations. Mon-cash collateral assets are held on behalf of the Company by a third party and are not recorded on the consolidated
balance sheets. See Note 11—Ssitiement Guaranies Management.

Property, equipment and technology. nel. Propery. equipment and technology ane recorded at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and amomtization, which are computed on a straight-line basis over the a5sel’'s estimated useful e, Depreciation and amortization of technology,
furniture, fictures and equipment are computed over estimated usetul Ives ranging from 2 to 10 years, Capital leases are amorntized over the lease
term and keasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the useful life of the asset or lease term. Building improvements ane depreciated
betwen 3 and 40 years, and buikdings are depreciated over 40 years. Improvements that increase functionalty of the asset are capitalized and
depreciated over the asset's remaining useful ife. Land and construction-in-progress are not depreciated. Fully depreciated assets are retained in
property, equipment and technaology, net, until removed from service,

Technology includes purchased and internally developed software, inchuding technology assets obtained through acquisitions. Intarnally
devaloped software represents softwane primarily used by the VisaNet electronic payments network. Internal and external costs incurred during the
preliminary project stage are expensed as incurred, Qualifying costs incurred during the application development stage are capitalized. Once the
project is substantally complete and ready for its intended use these costs are amertized on a straight-line basis over the technology's estimated
ugatul fe. Acquired technology assets are initially recorded at tair value and amortized on a stralght-line basis over the estimated usetul ife

The Company evaluates the recoverability of long-lived assets for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an assel or assel group may not be recoverable. If the sum of expected undiscounted met future
cash flows 15 less than the carying amount of an asset or asset group, an impairment loss i recognized 1o the extent that the carmying amount of the
assel or asset group exceeds its fair value. See Nole 6—Froperly. Equipment and Techrolgy, Net .

Lessas , The Company enters into operating and capital keases for the use of premises, software and equipment Rent expense rekated to
operating kase agreements, which may or may not contain lease incentives, is primarily recorded on a straight-line basis over the lease term,
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VISA INC,

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
September 30, 2018

Infangiblée assels, nel  The Company records identifiable intangible assets at fair value on the date of acquisiton and evaluates the useful life
of each asset

Finite-lved intangible assets primarily consist of customer relationships, reacquired rights, reseller relationships and trade names obtained
thraugh acquisitions. Finite-lved intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basts and are tested for recoverability if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. These intangibles have useful lives ranging from 3 to 15 years. Mo
events or changes in circumstances indicate that impairment existed as of September 30, 2016 | See Nole T—infangible Assels and Goodwil .

Indefinite-ived intangible assets consist of trade name, customer relationships and reacquired rights, Intangible assets with indefinite useful
Ives are not amortized but are evaluated for iImpairment annually or more frequantly If events or changes in circumstancas indicate that imparment
may exist. The Company first assesses qualitative factors to determine whether it is necessary to perform a quantitative Impairment test for
indefinite-lived intangible assets. The Company assesses each category of indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment on an aggregate basis,
which may require the allocation of cash fiows andior an estimate of fair value to the assets or asset group. Impairment exists if the fair value of the
indefinite-lived intangible asset is less than the carrying value. The Company relies on a number of factors when completing impairment
assessments, including a review of discounted net future cash flows, business plans and the use of present value tachniques.

The Company completed its annual impairment review of iIndefinite-lved intangible assels as of February 1, 2016 | and concluded thene was no
impairment as of that date. Mo recent events or changes in circumstances indicate that imparment of the Company's indefinite-Tved intangibie
assels existed as of September 30, 2016 |

Goodwill . Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assels acquired in a business combination.
Goodwill is not amortized but is évaluated for impairment at the reporting wnit level annually as of February 1, or mare frequentlly if events or
changes In circumstances indicate that impairment may exist

The Company evaluated s goodwill for impairment on February 1, 2016 | and concluded there was no impairment as of that date. Mo recent
events or changes in circumstances indicate that impairment existed as of September 30, 2016

Accrued Mtigation . The Company evaluates the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome in kegal or reguiatory proceedings to which it s a party
and records a ioss contingency when it is probable that a kabiity has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasenably estimated. These
judgments are subjective, based on the status of such legal or regulatory proceedings. the merits of the Company’s defenses and consultation with
corporate and external legal eounsal, Actual sutcomes of thase legal and regulatory procesdings may differ materially from the Company's
estimates. The Company expenses legal costs as incurred in professional fees in the consolidated statements of operations. See Note 20—Legal
Malbers

Revenue recagniion . The Company's operaling révenues ane comprised principally of senvice revenues, datd processing revenues,
Imternational transaction revenues and other revenues, reduced by costs incurred under client incentives armangements. The Company recognizes
rewvenue, nat of sales and other similar taxes, when the price is fixed or determinable, persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the service is
performed and collectability of the resulting receivable is reasonably assured.

Service revenues consist of revenues sarmed for services provided in support of client usage of Visa products. Curfent quarter service
revenues are primarity assessed using a calculation of curent pricing applied to the prior quarter's payments volume, The Company also eams
revenues from assessments designed o support ongoing acceptance and volume growth initiatives, which are recognized in the same period the
related volume iz transacted.

Data processing revenues consist of revenues earmed for authonzation, clearing, settlement, netwark access and other maintenance and
guppart services that facilitate transacton and information processing among the Company's clients globally. Data protessing revenues ane
recognized in the same period the related Fansachons oCour OF Services ane rendenad,
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International transaction fevenues ané eamed fof cross-border transaction processing and curfenty conversian activities. Cross-border
transactions arise when the country of origin of the issuer is different from that of the merchant. Intermational transaction revenues ane primariby
generated by cross-border payments and cash volume.

Cther revanuas consist mainky of license feas for use of the Visa brand, revenues samed from Visa Europe in connection with the Visa Europe
Framework Agreement (see Nole 2—Acquisiion of Wisa Europe ) prior to the acquisition of Visa Europe, fees for account holder services, bcensing
and cerification and other activities related to the Company's acquired entiies. Other revenues also include optional service or product
enhancements, such as extended account holder protection and concierge services, Other revenues are recognized in the same peried the related
transactions ooCur oF senvices are rendaraed.

Cient incentives. The Company anters into long-term contracts with fimancial insttution clients, merchants and strategic parners for various
pograms designed to build payments volume, increase Visa product acceptance, win merchant routing transactions over Visa's netwark and drive
innovation. These incentives are primarily accounted for as reductions to operating revenues or as operating expenses if a separate identifiable
benefit at fair value can be established. The Company generally capializes advance incentive payments under these agreements it select criteria
are met. The capitalization criteria include the existence of future economic benefits to Visa, the existence of lagally enforceable recoverability
language (e.g.. early termination clauses), management's abiity and intent to enforce the recovera bility language and the ability to generate future
earnings from the agreement in excess of amounts deferred. Capitalized amounts are amortized over the shorter of the period of contractual
recoverability of the corresponding period of economic benefit. Incentives not yet paid are acerued systematically and rationally based an
managements estimate of each client’s peformance. These accfuals are regularly reviewed and estimates of performance are adjusted, as
appropriate, based on changes in parformance expectations, actual client performance, amendmeants to existing contracts or the execution of new
contracts, See Note 17—Commitments and Contingencies

Marketing. The Company expanses costs for the production of advertising as incurred. The cost of media advertising is expensed when the
advertising takes place. Sponsarship costs are recognized cver the period in which the Company benafits from the sponsorship rights. Promotional
[tems are expensed as incurred, when the retated services are receied, or when the related event occurs

Income faxes . The Company's income tax expense consists of two components: current and deferred. Current income tax expense represents
taxes paid or payable for the current peried, Deferred tax assets and Eabilities are recognized to reflact the future tax consequences attributable to
temparary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and the respective tax tasis of existing assels and labtes, and operating
loss and credil ca rI"ﬁﬂM'ﬂl'dBi. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates npe:bed o appr:,r o taxable income in the
years in which those tem parary differences ane expected to be recovered or setied. In assessing whether deferred tax assets are realizable,
management considers whether & s mone likely than not that some portion of all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. A valuation allowance
i5 recorded for the portions that are not expected 10 be realized based on the bevel of historical taxable income, projections of future tacable income
over the periods in which the temporary differences are deductible, and qualiftying tax planning strategies.

Where interpretation of the tax law may be uncertain, the Company recognizes, measunes and discloses ncome tax uncertainties. The
Company accounts for interest expense and penalties related to uncertain tax positions as non-operating expense in the consolidated statements of
operations. The Company files a consolidated federal income tax return and, in cerain states, combinad state tax returms. The Company alects ta
claim foreign tax credits in any given year if such election is beneficial to the Company. See Mol T8—Income Taxes .

Pension and other postretirement benefit plans . The Company's defined benefit pension and other postretirament benefit plans are actuarially
evaluated, inconporating various critical assumptions inciuding the discount rate and the expected rate of return on plan assets {for qualified pension
plans). The discount rate is based on a cash fiow matching analysis, with the projected benefit payments matching spot rates from a yield curve
developed fram high-quality eorporate bonds. The expected rate of return on pension plan assets considers the current and expected asset
aBocation, as well as historical and expected returns on each plan asset class. Any
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difference betwaen actual and expected plan experience, including asset return expenence, in excess of 3 10% corridor i recognized in net periodic
pension cost ever the expected average employes future service period, which is approximately 9 years for the U.S. plans and 12 years for the Visa
Europe U K. pansion plan. Other assumptions invole demographic factors such as retirement age, mortality, attrition and the rate of compensation
increases. The Company evaluates assumptions annually and modifies them as appropriate.

The Company recegnizes the funded status of its benefit plans in its consolidated balance sheets as other assets, accrued labilties and other
liabilties. The Company recognizes setthement losses when it setfles pension benefit obligations, including making lump-sum cash payments fo plan
participants in exchange for their rights to receive specified pension benefits, when certain thresholds are met See Note 10—Pension,
Fostratirement and Cther Benefils |

Foreign currency remeagureman! and frangiation . The Company's functional cumency is the U.S. doliar for the majarity of its foreign operations
except for Visa Europe whose functional currency is the euro. Transactions denominated in currencles other than the applicabie functional currency
are converted to the functional currency at the exchange rate on the transaction date. At peried end, monetary assets and llablitles are remeagured
to the functional currency using exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Mon-monetary assets and liabilities ane remeasured at historical
exchange rates. Resulting foreign currency transaction gains and losses related to conversion and remeasurement are recarded in general and
administrative expense in the consolidated statements of operations and were not material for fiscal 2016, 2015 and 2014,

Where a nonll 5. currency i the functional currency, translation frorm that functional currency to the U.S. dollar is performed for balance sheet
accounts using exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet dabe and for revenue and expense accounts using an average exchange rate for the
period. Resulting translation adjustments are reparted as a compoenent of accumulated other comprehensive income or loss on the consolidated
balance shests

Devivative financial instruments , The Com pany uses forelgn exchange forward derivative confracts to reduce its exposure to foreign cumency
rate changes on forecasted nen-functienal currency denominated operational cash flows, Derivatives are carried at fair value on a gross basis in
either prepaid and other current assets or accrued liabilities on the consclidated balance sheets. At September 30, 2016, derivatives outstanding
mature within 13 months of less. Galns and losses resulting from changes in fair value of designated derivative Instruments are accounted for either
in accurnulated other comprehensive Income of loss on the consolidated balance sheets, or in the consalidated statements of operationg in the
comegponding account where revenue or expense is hedged, or to general and administrative for hedge amounts determined to be ineffective,
Gains and losses resulting in changes im fair value of derivative instrurnents not designated for hedge accounting are recorded In general and
administrative for hedges of operating activity, or non-operating income {expensa} for hedges of nan-operating activity. See Naofe 12—Derfvative and
Non-derivative Firancial fnslruments .

Non-dérivalive financidl mstrument designated as a nel mvestmen! hedge. The Company designated the eure-denominated defermed cash
consgideration liability, a nen-derivative financial instrument, as a hedge against a portion of the Company's eurc-dengaminated net investment in Visa
Europe, See Nole 2—Acquisition of Visa Evrope . Changes in the value of the deferred cash consideration liability, attributable to the change in
exchange rates at the end of each reporting period, partially offset the foreign currency transtation adjustments resulting from the eurc-derominated
net investment, are reported as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income or loss on the Company's consolidated balance sheet,
See Naote 12—Denvative and Non-dervative Financial! instraments

Guaraniees and indemnifications . The Company recognizes an aobligatien at inception for guarantees and ingemnifications that quality for
recegnition, regardiess of the probability of occurrence, The Company indemnifies its financial institution clients for setement losses suffered due to
the fallure of any other client to fund s settlement obligations in accordance with the Visa Rules. The estimated fakr value of the liabliity for
settement indemnification is included in accrued liabilities on the consolidated talance sheets and is described in Note 11—Setiement Guaranies
Mapagermant

Share-based compensation . The Company recognizes share-based compensation cost using the fair value methed of accounting. The
Company fecognizes compensation cost for awards with anly service conditions on a
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straight-line basis over the requisite service pariad, which is generally the vesting period. Com pensation cost for perfarmance and market-condition-
based awards is recognized on a graded-vesting basis. The amount is initially estimated based on target performance and is adjusted a3 appropriate
based on management's best estimate throughout the pedormance pericd. See Note 16—Share-hased Compensation

Eamings per share . The Company cakulates eamings per share using the tao-class method to reflect the differant rights of each class and
senes of outstanding common stock. The dilutive effect of incremental common stock equivalents ks reflected in diluted eamings per share by
application of the treasury stock method. See Mole 15—FEarnings Per Share .

Recently Issuved Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASE") issued ASU Mo, 2014-09, which requires an entity to recognize the amount
of revenue to which it expects to be entitted for the tranafer of goods or services to customers, The ASU will replace existing revenue recognition
guidance in U.S, GAAP when it becomes effective, In August 2015, the FASE Izsued ASU No. 201514, which defers the effective date of ASU No
2014-09 by ome year. In March 2016, the FASE Issued ASU 2016-08, which clarifies the implementation guidance on principal versus agent
conskierations under the new revenue recognition standard. In Apml 2016, the FASE Issued ASU 2018-10, which clarifies the implementation
Quidance on hﬂentlfyng promised goods or serdices and on determining whether an entity’s promise to grant a license with either a nght to use the
entitys intellectual property (which is satisfied ata point in time) or a right to access the entity's intelleciual property (which is satsfied over time]. In
May 2018, the FASE ssued ASL 2016-11, which rescinds certain SEC staff observer comments upon adoptian of ASU 2014-08, intluding the SEC
comments related to consideration given by a vendor to a customer. In May 2018, the FASE also issued ASU 2016-12, which provides narrow scope
improvemeants and tachnical expedients on assessing collectibility, presentation of sales taxes, evaluating contract modifications and completed
contracts at the ime of transition and the disclosure requirement for the affect of the accounting change for the period of adoption. The Company will
adopt the standard effective October 1, 2018. The standard permits the use of either the retrospective or cumulative effect transition method, The
Company has not yet selected a transition method and is evaluating the full effect that ASU 2014-09 and all of its related subsequent updates will
have on its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU No, 2014-12, which requires a performance target in stock compensation awards that aflects vesting, and
|z achievable after the requisite service period, be treated as a perfformance condition. The Company will adopt the standard effective October 1,
2016, The adoption is not expected to have a material impact an the consclidated financial statements

In Apeil 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-03, which simplifies the presentation of debt issuance costs by requiring that debt isguance costs
be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of debt lmbility, consistent with debt discounts and premiums.
Subsequently, in August 2015, the FASE issued ASU No. 2015-15, which adds SEC staff guidance on the presentation of debt ssuance costs
refated to line-ol-credit arangements, allowing for the deferral and presentation of debt issuance costs as an asset and subseguent amortization of
the deferred debt issuance costs ratably over the term of the line-of-credit arrangament, regardless of whether there are any cutstanding borrowings
on the Ene-of-credit arrangement. The Company elected to early adopt the standards effective October 1, 2015 and the carrying amount of the
Company’s debt liability is presented net of issuance costs on the consolidated financial statements. See Note 8—Debi |

In Apeil 2015, the FASB issuad ASU MNo. 2015-05, which provides guidance about 3 customer's accounting for fees paid in a cloud computing
arrangement The amendment will help entities evaluate whether such an arrangement includes a software Bcense, which should be accounted for
consigtent with the acquisition of other software licenses; otherwise, it should be accounted for as a service contract The Company will adopt the
standard effective October 1, 2016. The adoption is not expected to have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In September 2015, the FASE issued ASU Mo, 2015-16, which simplifies the accounting for post-acquisition adjustments by elminating the
requirement to retrospectively account for the adjustments made to provisional amounts recognized in a business combination. The Company
elected to early adopt this guidance on a
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progpactive basis effecthe Oictober 1, 2015, The adoption did not have a material impact on the consalidated financial statements.

In Movember 2015, the FASHE issued ASU 2015-17, which simplifies the presentation of deferred income taxes by requiring that deferred tax
assets and liabilties be presented as non-current. The standard impacts presentation anly. The Company elected to early adopt the standard on a
retrospective basis effective October 1, 2015 and all deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current. Previously, current deferred tax
assels had been presented separately and current defermed tax liabilities had been included in accrued liabilites on the consolidated balance sheets,
All prior period amounts within the consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform to cument period presentation. The
reclassification did not affect the Company's total equity, operating revenues, net income, comprehensive income or cash flows as of and for the
periods presented, The adoption did not kave 3 material impact on the consalidated financial statements.

In January 2016, the FASE issued ASU 2016-01, which amends certain aspects of recognition, measurement, presentation and disclogure of
financial instruments, including the requirement to measure certain equity investments at fair vaiue with changes in fair value recognized in net
income. The Company will adopt the standard effective October 1, 2018, The adoption is not expected to have a matertal impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

In February 2016, the FASE msusd ASL 2016-02, which requires the recognition of lease assets and lease labilites ansing from operating
leases in the statement of financtal pesition. The Comparny will adopt the standard effective October 1, 2019 and does not anticipate that this new
accounting guidance will have a matenial impact on s consolidated statement of operations, The Company estimates the value of leased assets and
liabilities that may be recognized could be in the hundreds of millions of dollars. The actual impact will depend on the Company’s lease portfolio at
the tme of adoption.

In March 2018, the FASE issued ASU 2016-05, which clarifies that a change in the counterparty to a derivative instrument that has baen
designated as the hedging instrument under Topic 815, Dervatives and Hedging, does not, in and of itself, require dedesignation of that hedging
relationship provided that all other hedge accounting critenia continue te be met. The Company will adopt the standard effective October 1, 2017,
The adoption is not expected to have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements,

In March 2016, the FASE issued ASU 2016-08, which clanfies the requirements for assessing whether contingent calliput options that can
accebzrate the payment of principal on debt instruments are clearly and closely related to thelr debt hests. An entity performing the assessment is
required 1o assess the embedded callput options solely in accordance with a four-step decision sequence. The Company will adopt the standard
effective Octaber 1, 2017, The adoption s not expected to have 3 material impact on the consalidated financial statements.

In March 2018, the FASE issued ASU 2016-07, which eliminates the requirement that an entity retroactively adopt the equity method of
accaunting if an investment qualifies for use of the equity method 2% a result of an increase in the level of ownership of degree of influence. The
equity method investor is required to add the cost of acquiring the additional interest in the investee to the current basis of the irvestor's previously
held interest and adept the equity methad of accounting as of thir dale the investment becomes qualified for equity methad accounting. The
Company will adopt the standard effective October 1, 2017. The adoptian is not expected to have a material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

In March 2018, the FASE isswed ASU 2016-09, which simplifies several aspects of the accounting for share-based payments, including
immediate recognition of all excess tax benefits and deficiencies in the income statement, changing the threshold to qualify for equity classification
up to the employees’ maximum statutory tax rates, aBowing an enfity-wide accounting policy election to either estimate the number of awards that
ane expacted to vest or account for forfeitures as they occur, and clarifying the classification on the statement of cash flows for the excess tax banefit
and employes taxes pald when an employer withholds shares for tax-withholding purpeses. The Company will early adopt the standard effective
Qctober 1, 2016, The adopton i not expected o have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In May 2016, the FASE issued ASU 2016-13, which amends guidance on repaerting credit losses for assets held at amortized cost basis and
available-for-sale debt securities. The amendment requires a financial asset
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measured at amortized cost basis W be présented at the net amount expected b be collected The amendment in this update also réquires that
credit losses on available-for-sale debl securities be presented as an allowance rather than as a write-down. The measurement of credit losses for
newly recognized financial assets and subsaquent changes in the allowance fior credit losses are reconded in the statement of income. The
Company is evaluating the full effect that ASU 2016-13 will have on its consolidated financial statements and will adopt the standard effective

October 1, 2020,

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-15, which provides guidance on eight specific cash flow issues, including debt prepayments or
debt extinguishment costs. The Company will adopt the standard effective October 1, 2018. The adoption is not expected to have a material impact
on the congslidated financial statements.

In October 2016, the FASE Issued ASU 2016-16, which requires that entities recognize the income tax consequences of an intra-entity tramsfer
of an asset, other than imventory, when the transfer cccurs. The Company is evaluating the effect that ASU 2016-16 will have on its consolidated
financial statements and is considering early adoption of the standard.

Nete 2—Acquisition of Visa Europe

On June 21, 2016, the Company acquited 100% of the share capital of Visa Europe, a payments technclogy business, The acquisition
positions Visa to create additional value through incréased scak, eMiciencies realized by the integration of both businesses, and benefits rekated to
Visa Europe's fransition from an association to a for-profit enterprise. At the closing of the transaction (the "Closing™), the Company:

«  paid up-front cash consideration of € 12.2 billion { 513.9 billion };

= issued preferrad stock of the Company comvertible upon certain conditions into approximately 79 million shares of class A common stock of
the Company, a5 described below, equivalent to a value of € 5.3 billion { 56.1 billion ) at the closing stock price of 577.33 on June 21, 2016,
and

» agreed to pay an additional € 1.0 bllion , plus 4% compound annual interest, on the third anniversary of the Closing,

Freferred stock . In connaction with the transaction, threa new series of preferred stock of the Company were created:
= seres A convertible participating preferred stock, par value $0.0001 per share, which is generally designed o be economically equivalent to
the Company's class A common stock (the “class A equivalent preferred stock™);
= seres B converible participating preferred stock, par value S0.0001 per share (the “U.K.&) prefermed stock™), and
= series C convertible participating preferred stock, par value 30.0001 per share (the "Europe preferned stock™),

The Compary issued 2,480 466 shares of UK &I preferred stock 1o Visa Europe’s member financial institutions in the United Kingdom and
Irekand entithe-d 1o receive preferred stock at the Closing, and 3,156,823 shares of Europe preferred stock to Visa Eurape's other member financial
institutions entitled 1o receive preferred stock at the Closing. Under certain conditions described below, the UK 8] and Europe prefered stock is
comeertible inte shares of class A commen stock or class A equivalent preferred stock, at an initial conversion rate of 13.952 shares of class A
common stock for each share of UK &I prefarred stock and Eurape preferred stock. The conversion rates may be reduced from time to time to offset
certain liabilties, if any, which may be incurred by the Company, Visa Europe or their affiliates as a result of certain existing and potential litigation
relating to the setting of multilateral inbercha nge fee rates in the Visa Europe territory (the "VE termtory covered |itigation®), whera, generally, the
relevant claims (and resultant liabilites and losses) relate to the period before the Ciosing. Only seventy percent of such liabiltes may be offset
where the llability arises from a claim related to inter-regional multilateral Inferchange fees applied to transactions where the issuer is located outside
the Visa Eurgpe territory while the merchant cutiet s located within the Visa Eurgpe territery, A reduction in the conversion rates of the UK &I
preferred stock and the Eurspe preferred stock have the same economic effect on diluted class A common stock eamings per share ag repurchasging
the Company’s ckass A common slock because it reduces the as-converted class A commaon stock share count. Additionally, the shares of LK &I
and Europe prefered stock ane subject o
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rastrictions on transter and may Become convertible in stages based on developients in the VE territory covered litigation. The shares of U K &1 and
Europe preferred stock will become fully convertible on the 12th anniversary of the Closing, subject only to a holdback to cover any then-pending
claims. Upon any such conversion of the UK &1 or Europe prefermed stock (whether by such 12th anniversary, o thereafter with respect to claims
pending on such anniversary), the holder would receive sither class A comman stock or class A equivalent preferred stock (for those wha are not
algible to hold class A common stock pursuarnt to the Company's charter). The class A equivalent preferred stock will be freely fransferable and
each share of class A equivalent preferred stock will automatically convert into 100 shares of class A commaon stock Upon a transfer to any holder
that is eligibde to hold class A common stock under the charter, See Note 3—U.5. and Ewope Retrospective Responsibilily Plans .

The holders of the U K _&] and Ewrope prefemed stock have no right to vote on any matters, except for certain defined matters, including, in
specified circumstances, any consolidation, merger or combination of the Company. Holders of the class A equivalent preferred steck, upoen
isguance at conversion, will have simiar voting rights to the rights of the holders of the UK .&1 and Europe preferred stock. With respect to those
limited maters on which the holders of preferred stock may vote, approval by the holkders of the preferred stock requires the afirmatie vote of the
autstanding voting power of each such series of preferred stock, each such senes voting as a single class. Upon issuance, all three senes of
preferred stock will participate on an as-convened basis in regular quanery cash dividends declared on the Company's class A common sock.

LK. kpss sharing agreemen! . On November 2, 2015, the Company, Visa Europe and certain of Visa Europe’'s membet financial institutions
located in the United Kingdorn (the "U. K. LSA members”) entered into a loss shaning agreement (the LK. loss sharing agreement”). Each of the
UK LA members has agreed, ona several and net joint Basis, to compensate the Company for certain losses which may be incurred by the
Company, Visa Europe of their affiliates as a result of certain existing and potential litigation relating to the sefting and implementation of domestic
multitateral interchange fee rates in the United Kingdom prior to the Clasing (the LK. covered claims®), subject to the terms and conditions set forth
therein and, with respect o each UK. LSA member, up to a maximum amount of the up-front cash consideration recened by such UK. LSA
member. The U K, LSA members' obigations under the U K. loss sharing agreement are conditonal upan, ameng other things, either (a) losses
valued in excess of the sterling equivalent at the Closing of € 1.0 bilion having ansen in U K covered claims (and such losses having reduced the
conversion rate of the U K & preferred steck accordingly), or (b the conversion rate of the UK &I preferred stock having been reduced to zero
pursuant to losses arising in claims relating to multilateral interchange fee rate setting in the \iga Europe territory. See Note 3—LU. 5. and Europe
Retrospeciive Responsibilty Plans .

Litigation management deed . On June 21, 2016, the Company and Visa Europe enfered Info a litigation management deed (the *Itigation
ranagement deed”), which sats forth the agreed upon procedures for the management of the VE territory covered litigation, the allocation of losses
resulting from the VE territory coverad litigation ("VE territory covered losses”) between the U K&l and Europe preferred stock, and any accelerated
comversion or reduction in the comversion rate of the shares of U K. &l and Europe preferred stock. The [Rigation managemeant deed applies only to
VE territory covered litigation (and resultant losses and kabdities). Subject to the terms and conditions set forth therein, the IRigation management
deed provides that the Company will generally contrel the conduct of the VE termitary covered itigation, subject to cerain obligations 1o reporn and
consult with the newly established litigation managemaent committees for VE territory covered [Rigation (“VE territory ltigation management
committeas”). The VE territory litigation management committees, which are compased of representatives of certain Visa Europe members, have
also bean granted consent rights to approve certain material decisions in relation to the VE territory coverad litigation.

Framework Agreement. In connection with the Company's Octeber 2007 reorganization, the Company granted to Visa Europe exclusive,
imevocable and perpetual licenses to use the Visa trademarks and technology intellectual property owned by the Company and certain affiliates
within the Visa Europe region for use in the field of financial services, payments, related information technology and information processing services
and participation in the Visa system (the *Framework Agreement®).

We recorded $101 millien , $255 million and $226 milion of revenue in accordance with the Framework Agreement during fiscal 2016, 2015
and 2014, respectively. As a result of the acquisiton, the fee recognized in fiscal year 2016 was pro-rated for the period prior to the Closing, and no
fees related to the Framework Agreement were recognized in the three months ended September 30, 2016, nor will they be recognized in future
periods
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Acquistion-refated costs. The Company incurted $152 millian of non-recurfing oparating expense during fiscal 2016 . This amount is comprised
of $60 million of ransaction expansas recorded in professional fees, and 392 million of expense refated to U K. stamp duly, which was recorded in
general and administrative expenses.

Accounling trealment for the acquisiton. The following table details the purchase consideration;

Accounting Purchase Consideration
i il e

Cash payment § 13,882
Fair value of preferred stock "' 5,602
Total upfront conside ration $ 19,574
Fair value of deferred cash consideration 1,238
Total consideration before adjustments 2 20,810
Less: Visa Europe Framewark Agreement lass {1,888)
Less: Treasury stock (70)
Tatal accounting purchase consideration § 18,784

1 The fair value of preferred stock was determined based on its as-corverted value of $6.1 bilion on June 21, 2016, less a &% discount for
ilbguidity as these shares are subject to limitations on transferability. The fair value was also adjusted to reflect $25 million of “right to
recover for covered losses” related to VE territory covered losses prior to the Closing. See Node 20— egal Maflers .

“F - This amount reflects the falr value of deferred cash consideration of € 1.0 billon , plus 4.0% compeund annual interest, payable on the
third anniversary of the Cloging, discounted at a rate of 1.2% . At Septermber 30, 2016, the deferred consideration of $1.2 bilkon reflects
Interest aceretion recognized during the three months ended September 30, 2018, more than affset by the Impact of changes in the eurg
1o LS. dollar exchange rate from the Closing.

Tatal consideration has been adjusted 1o account for the follewing iems to arrive at the accounting purchase consideration:

A the loss upon consummation of the transaction resulting from the effective settlement of the Framewoark Agreement between Visa and
Visa Europe. The Visa Europe Framewerk Agreement provided Visa Europe with a perpetual, exclusive right to operate the Visa business
in the Wisa Europe region in exchange for a license fee paid to Visa. Under the terms of the Framework Agreement, the license fee paid
by Wisa Europe has increased modestly since inception in 2007, while the value of the Visa Europe business has increased at a greater
rate. Using an income approach, the Company assessed the contractual terms and conditions of the Framework Agreement as compared
to current market conditions and the historical and expected financial performance of Visa Eurcpe. Based on the analysis performed, the
Company determined that the terms were not at fair value as determined under U.S. GAAP at the Cloging, The present value of the
expected differential between payments required by the Framework Agreement and those that would be required if the contract were at
fair value under U.S. GAAP was calculated over the Framework Agreement's contractual perpetual term, resulting in a loss of 1.2 billion
recegnized within operating expenss in the Company's consolidated statemant of operations during the thind quarner of fiscal 2016, and a
reduction to the purchase accounting conssderation; and

# o the fair value of the Visa ¢lass C common stock held by Visa Eurcpe as of the Closing.

Tatal purchase consideration has been alocated to the angible and identifable intangible assets acquired and labilites assurmed tased on a
prefiminany vakmation a8 we continue to gather additional information necessary to finalize the valuation. These preiminary values may further
changs in future reporing pefiods untl finalization of the valuation, which will eccur no Bter than the third quarntes of fiscal 2017.
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The following table summarizes the preliminary purchase price allocation
Preliminary Purchase Price

Allocation
(i rillians)
Currant assats [ 5 4 457
Non-current assets 258
Current [@bilities (2.731)
Non-current liabilives (2.605)
Tanglble assets and llabilities 5 (621}
Intangible assets — customer relationships and reacquired rights & 16,137
Goodwlll ¥ 3,268
Fair value of net assets acquired 4 18,784

[E]

Current assets are Birgely comprised of cash and cash equivalents and setlement receivable.

Intangible assets consist of customer relationships and reacquired rights, which have been valued as a single composite intangible asset as
ey are inextricably linked. These intangibles are considered indefinite-lived assels as the associated customer relationships have historically
not experianced significant attrition, and the reacquired rights are based on the Framewark Agresment, which has a perpetsal term. Mon-
current agsets and abdites include deferned tax assets and liabilibes that result in net deferred tax labilities of 52 .4 billion , which are primarily
ralated to these indefinite-lived intangible assets, and are not expectad to be realized in the foraseeable future.

Current kabilties assumed mainly include sefliement payabie, chent incentives llabilities and accrued labilites

The excess ef purchase congideration over net assets acquired was recorded as goodwill, which represents the value that is expected from
increased scale and synergles as a resull of the integration of both businesses

Actual and pro forma impact of acquisiion. The Company did notinclude Visa Europe’s Tinancial results in the Company's consolidated

statements of operations from the acquisition date, June 21, 2016, through June 30, 2015 as the impact was immatenial. Total consolidated Visa Inc.
net revenue for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016 incluedes 5554 millien from Visa Ewrope’s operations for the three months ended
September 30, 2016 Had the Company net acquired Visa Europe, approximately S65 mllion of revenue woukd have been recorded under the
Framework Agreement during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2016, Therefore, the acquisition of Visa Europe resulted in a net increase of S489 milion in
nit fevenue
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Taotal consolidated Visa Inc. net income for the iscal year ended September 30, 2016 includes S298 milion from Visa Europe®s operations fof
the three months ended September 30, 2016. This includes the non-cash, nen-recurring S88 million tax benefit upon remeasurement of a deferred
tax Hability to reflect a tax rate change in the United Kingdom. |n connection with the acquisition, Visa Int. recorded several significant items that
would not have been incurred had we not acquired Visa Eurape. Therefore, the acquisition of Visa Europe reduced Visa Inc. fiscal year 2016

consolidated net income by approximately 3872 million | as folows:

Impact of Visa Europe acquisition on fiscal 2018 consolidated net income: fir Frillicavs)

Visa Europe netincome included in consolidated net income
Less approximately 385 million of revenue that would have been recorded by Visa Inc. under the Frameweork

OO O(E15692)
oooooog

Agreament, net of tax {41)
Less acquisition-related expense recorded by Visa Inc., net of tax, upon:
Effective settement of the Framework Agreement {1,184)
Interest expanse incurred on $16.0 billion debt, net of interest income earned (243)
Transaction costs ncurred (96)
Add acquistion-related gaing recorded by Visa Inc., net of tax, upon:
Revaluation of Visa Europe put option 255
Remeasurement of eurc deposits 21
Remeasurement of currency forwarnd contracts &7
- (872)

Total Impact of Visa Europe acquisition on consolldated net Income

Tha following table presents supplemental pro forma information as if the acquisition and related issuance of senior notes had occurred on
October 1, 2014, The pro forma finrancial information is not necessarily indicative of the Company's consolidated results of operations that would
have been realized had the acquisition been completed on Oclober 1, 2014, nor does it purport to project the future results of operatians of the
combined company ar reflect any reorganizations, or cost or other operating synergies that may occur subsequent to the Closing. The atctual results
of operations of the combined company may differ significantly from the pro forma results presented here due to many factors.

Pro Forma Consolidated Results

Fiscal 2016 Fiscal 2015
{irs méllépms, except por share data)
Total oparating revenues -1 16080 % 15425
Met income 3 7072 % 5.210
Diluted eamings per share 5 293 % 206

The pre Torma financial information above reflects the folowing material pro forma adjustments.

+  comversion of Visa Europe's historical results of operations from eurg te U S, dollar, and from International Financial Reporting Standards

to US. GAAP,
« glimination of transactions between Visa and Visa Europe upen consoldation, primarily related to annual icense and various other fees

paid by Visa Eutope to Visa in accordance with the Framework Agreement.
«  anincrease in non-operating ex pense for additional interest expense and amortization of debt issuance costs resulting from the ssuance

af the $16.0 bdlion senior notes;
= exclusion of a 3255 million gain in the twebse months ended September 30, 2016 and 110 million loss in the twehee months ended
Septemnber 30, 2015 related to the revaluation of the Visa Europe put option /', and
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+  the inclusion of non-recurting amounts on October 1, 2014, the date the acquisition i presumed o have cccurred for purposes of

presenting pro forma results, and a corresponding reduction of these amounts in the period originally recognized, as follows:

« 51.9 billion Visa Europe Framework Agreement loss related to the effective setiiement of the Framework Agreement recognized in
the twele months ended September 30, 2018,

= 5152 millizn of acquisition-related costs for the tvebve months ended September 30, 2016;

» $145 millizn of foreign exchange gaing related to euros hetd during the twelve months ended September 30, 2016, and

+ 574 millan of gains for the twehe months ended September 30, 2016 related to currency forward contracts entered into to mitigate
a portion of the foreign currency exchange rate risk associated with the upfront cash consideration,

M For purposes of preparing this pro forma financial information, the fair value of the Visa Europe put option is presumed to have been
reduced to zero prior to Octeber 1, 2014, Therefore, gaing or losses associated with changes in the fair value of the Visa
Europs put option kabiiity are not included in pro farma net income for either period presented,

The pro forma resulls alse reflect the applicable tax impact of the pro forma adjustiments. The taxes associated with the adiustments refiect
the statutory tax rate in effect duning the respective perods

Mete 3—U.5. and Eurcpe Retrospective Responsibliity Plans
U.&. Retrospective Responsibillty Plan

The Company has established several related mechanisms designed o address potential liability under certain litigation refermed to as the "LULS.
covered Itigation.” These mechanisms are included in and referred to as the U.S. retrospective responsibility plan and consist of a U.S. litigation
escrow agreement, the conversion feature of the Company's shares of class B common stock, the indemnification obligations of the Wisa US A,
memiers, an interchange judgment sharing agreement, a loas sharing agreement and an omnibus agreemant, as amended.

U.5. covered litigation consists of a number of matters that have been settled or ctherwise fully or substantally resolved, as well as the
fallowing:

= the interchange Multidistrict Lifigetion . In re Payment Card Interchange Fee and Merchant Discount Antitrust Litigation, 1:05-md-01720-
JG-JO(E.D. MY )or MDL 1720, including all cases currently included in MDL 1720, any other case that includes claims for damages
refating to the period prior to the Company's IPO that has been ar is transferred for coordinated or consolidated pre-trial proceedings at
any time to MOL 1720 by the Judicial Fanel on Multidistrict Litigation or otherwise included at any time in MOL 1720 by order of any court
of competent jurisdicton;

= any claim that chabenges the rearganization or the consummation thereol, provided that such claim is ransfermed for coordmated or
consokdated pre-trial proceedings at any time i MDL 1720 by the Juedicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation or athenwise included at any
tami in MDL 1720 by order of ary court of competent jurisdiction; and

= any case brought after October 22, 2015, by a merchant that opted out of the Rule 23(0)(3) settlement class pursuant to the 2012
Settlermnent Agreement in MDL 1720 that anses oul of facts of circumstances substantially similar to those alleged in MDL 1720 and that
is not transferred to or othenwise included in MOL 1720, See Nofe 20—Legal Matters .

U5 Liigation escrow agreament. In accordance with the U.S. IRigation escrow agreament, the Company maintains an escrow account, from
which settliements of, or judgments in, the U.5. covered litigation are paid. The amourit of the ascrow is determined by the board of directors and the
Company®s liligation committes, all members of which are affiiated with, or act for, certain Visa U.5.A. members. The escrow funds are held in
money market imvestments along with the interest earned, less applicable taxes, and are classified as restricted cash on the coensolidated balance
sheets

The foliowing table sets forth the changes in the U.S. litigation escrow account
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Fiscal 2016 Fiscal 2015
{in rrallions)

Balance at October 1 5 1,072 % 1,458

Payments to opt-out merchantg ! (45) {426)
Balance at September 30 H i,02r % 1,072

1 These payments are associated with the interchange muttidistrict litigation. See Note 20— egal Matters

An accrual for the U5 covered Eigation and a change 1o the litigation provision are recorded when 1055 s deemed to be probable and
reascnably estimable. In making this determination, the Company evaluates available information, including but not limited to recommendations
made by the Itigation committee. The accrual related te the U.5. coverad litigation could be either higher or lower than the U 5. litigation escrow
account balance. The Company did not record an additional accrual for the U.S. covered Itigation during fiscal 2016. See Nofe 20—Legal Matters .

Conversion feature. Under the terms of the plan, when the Company funds the U.S. Iitigation escrow account, the shares of class B commaon
gtock are subject to dilution through an adjustment to the conversion rate of the shares of clags B common stock to shares of clags A common stock.
This has the same economic effect on diluted class A common stock earnings per share as repurchasing the Company's class A common stock,
because it reduces the class B conversion rate and conseguently the as-converted ¢lass A common stock share count See Nale 1d=—Stockholders”
Equity

Indemnficalion oblgatons . To the extent that amounts avallable under the U.S. litgation escrow amangement and other agreements in the
plan are insulficient to fully resole the U.S. covered lligation, the Company will use commercially reasonable effonts to enforce the indemnification
obligations of Visa U.5.As members for Such excess amount, including but not Bmited to enforcing indemnification obligations pursuant to Visa
LLS.ACS certificate of incorporation and bylaws and in accordance with their membership agreements

Inferchange judgmen! sharing agreenment, Visa U5 A, and Visa International have entered into an interchange judgment sharing agreement
with cemtain Visa U5 A members that have been named as defendants in the interchange multidistrict igation, which is described in Note 20—
Legal Matters  Under this judgment sharing agreement, Visa U 5.4 members that are signatories will pay their membership proportion of the
armount of a final judgment not allocated to the conduct of MasterCard

Loss sharing agreement. Visa has entared into a loss sharing agreement with Visa U5 A, Visa International and certain Visa U.5.A membars.
The loss sharing agreement provides for the indemnification of Visa U5 A, Visa International and, in certain circumstances, Wisa with respect to:
(i) the amount of a final judgment paid by Visa U.5.A. or Visa International in the U.5. coverad Etigation after the cperation of the interchange
judgment sharing agreament, plus any amounts raimbuwrsable to the interchange judgment sharing agreement signatories; or (i) the damages
portion of a settlement of a LS, covered Migation that is approved as required under Visa U.S A s certificate of incorporation by the vate of Visa
U5 A's specified voting members. The several obligation of each bank that is a party to the loss sharing agreement will equal the amount of any
firal judgment enforceable against Visa U.S A, Visa International or amy other signatory to the interchange judgment sharing agreement, or the
amount of any approved seflement of a U.S. covered litigation, multiplied by such bank's then-cument membership proportion as calkoutated in
accordance with Visa U.S.A s certificate of inconparation.

On October 22, 2015, Visa entered inte an amendment to the loss sharing agreement. The amendment incledes within the scope of LS,
coverad Bigation any action brought after the amendment by an opt out from the Rule 23(b)}3) Settlement Class in MDL 1720 that arses out of facts
or circumstances substantially similar to these alleged in MDL 1720 and that is not transferred to or otherwise included in MDL 1720, On the same
date, Visa entered inte amendments to the interchange judgment sharing agreement and emnibus agreement that include any such action within the
scope of those agreemeants as well.

Cynnibus agreement Visa entered info an emnibus agreement with MasterCard and certain Visa U.5.A. members that confirmed and
memornalized the signatories’ intentions with respect to the loss sharing agreement, the interchange judgment sharing agreement and other
agreements relating to the interchange multidistrict
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litigatian, sae Nate 20—Legal Matters | Under the omnibus agreament, the monetary portion of any seftlemant of the interchange multdistrict
Iitigation covered by the omnibus agreement would be divided inte a MasterCard portion at 33.2233% and a Visa portion at 86.6657% . [n additon,
the monetary portion of any judgment assigned to Visa-related claims in accordance with the omnibus agreement would be treated as a Visa portion.
Wisa would have no liability for the monetary pertion of any judgment assigned to MasterCard-related claims in accordance with the omnibus
agreement, and If a judgment is not assigned o Visa-related claims or MasterCard-re lated ciaims in accordance with the omnibus agreement, then
any monetary labllity would be divided into a MasterCard portion at 33,3233% and 2 Visa portion at 66.6567% . The Visa portion of a setiement or
Judgment covered by the omnibug agreement would be allocated in accordance with specified provisions of the Company's U.S. retrospective
responsibility pian. The litigation provision on the consolidated statements of operations (s not impacted by the execution of the omnibus agreement

O Augus‘t 28, 2014, Visa entered into an amendment o the omnibus agmment The omnibus amendment makes applicanﬁe 1o cemain
sethements in opt-out cases n the interchange multdistrict litigatian the sethement-sharing provisions of the omnibus agreement, pursuant to which
the moretary partisn of any setlemant of the interchange multidistriet itigation sovered by the smnibus agreement would be divided into a
MasterCard portion at 33.3333% and a Visa porion at 65.6667% . Thie omnibus amendment ko provides that in the event of termination of the
class Settlernent Agreement, Visa and MasterCard would make mutually acceptable arrangements 50 that Visa shall have recehed bwo-thirds and
MasterCard shall have received one-third of the total of (i) the Surms paid to defendants as a result of the termination of the Settlement Agreement
and (i) the takedown payments previously made to defendants,

Europe Retrospective Responsibility Plan

The Company obtained certain protections for VE termtary coverad losses through the UK &1 and Europe preferred stock, the UK. loss sharing
agreament, and the litigation management deed, referrad to as the "Eurcpe retrospective respansibility plan® See Nole 2—Acguisiton of Visa
Euwrope and Nole 20—Legal Matters - The plan covers VE territory covered ltigation (and resultant liabilibes and lossas) relating to the covered
period, which genarally refers to the period before the Closing. Visa's protection from the plan is further limited to seventy percent of any liabilties
where the claim relates to inter-regional multilateral interchange fee rates where the issuer is located outside the Visa Europe territory, while the
merchant is lecated within the Visa Europe termitory, The plan does not profect the Company against all types of litigation in Europe, only the
Imerchange litigation specifically coversd by the plan's terms.

Uniike the U.5. retrospective responsibility plan, the Europe retrospective respansibility plan does not have an escrow account that is used to
fund settliements or judgments. The Company |s entitied to recover VE temitory covered losses through a periodic adjustment to the class A common
stock comversion rates applicable to the U K. &I and Europe preferred stock. The tatal ameunt of protection available throwgh the preferred stock
companent of the Eutope retrospective responsibility plan i equivalent to the as-converted value of the prefened stock, which can be calculated at
any point in ime as the product of (a) the outstanding number of shares of preferred stock: (b) the cuntent corversion rate applicable to each class
of preferred stock; and [c) Visa's class A comman stock price. This amount differs from the value of the preferred stock recorded within stockholders'
equity on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet The book value of the preferred stock reflects its historical value recorded at the Closing less
WE terrtory covered losses recovered through a reduction of the applicable conversion rate. The book value does not reflect changes in the
underlying class A common stock price subsegqueant to the Closing.

Visa Inc. netincome will not be impacted by VE territary covered losses as long as the as-corverted value of the prafamed stock is greater than
the covered loss. VE territory covered losses will be recorded when the loss is deemed to be probable and reasonably estimable, or in the case of
attorney's fees, when incurred. Concurrently, the Company will record a reducticn to stockholders' eguity and operating expenses, which reprasents
the Company's right to recover such lasses through adjustments fo the corversion rate applicable to the preferred stock. The reduction to
stockholders’ equity is recorded in a contra-equity account refermed 1o a% “right to recaver for covered losges.”
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WE tefritory eovered losses may be recorded before the coresponding adjustment to the applicable conversion rate is effected. Adjustments to
the comversion rate may be executed once in any six-month pericd unless a single, individual loss greater than € 20 million is incurred, inwhich
case, the six-month limitation does not apply. When the adjustment to the comversion rate is made, the amount previously necorded in “right to
recover for covered lossas” as contra-equity will then be recorded against the book value of the preferred stock within stockholders' equity. As of
Septermnber 30, 2016, the Company had recorded 334 million inthe “right to recover for covered osses” related o VE territory covered losses, of
which 525 million was incurred prior to the Closing. There were no adjustments to the cormversion rate in figeal 2016

The foliowing table sets forth the as-converted value of the preferred stock avalilable to recover VE territory covered losses compared to the
book value of preferrad shares recorded in stockholders' equity within the Company’s consoiidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2016 1

September 30, 2016
As-Converted Value of Preferred
Stock M Book Valus of Preferred Stock
(i milbens)

LK &I prefered stock k3 2862 S 2516
Eutape prefermed stock 3,642 3,201
Total 5 6504 S 5717

Less: Right t resover for coveted keses {34) {34)
Total recovery for covered losses avallable 3 6470 5 5682

" Figures in the table may net recalculate exactly due to rounding. As-converted and book values are based an unrounded num bers

F The as-corverted value of preferred stock i calcutated 2 the product of: (a) 2 million and 3 million shares of the UK &1 and Europe preferred
stock autstanding, respectively, as of September 20, 2016, (b) the 13 952 ckass A common S10ck conversion rate applicable to both the UK &I
and Europe prefered stock as of September 30, Z0716; and (¢] S82.70 , Visa's class A common stock closing slock price as of September 30,
2016. Figures in thi: table may not recaleulate exactly due ta rounding. Eamings per share i calculated based on unfounded numbers.
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Mete 4—Fair Value Measurements and Investments
Fair Value Measuremenis
The Corpany measures certain assels and liabilities at fair value. See Note T—Summany of Signficant Accouniing Policrés |
Assels and Liabiibes Measired al Far Value on & Recurring Basis

Fair Valus Measuremens o Seplamber 30
U‘H!ﬂ Inputs Considerad as

Lewval 4 Lewel 2 Lewel 2
Fald 2015 216 2015 2016 25
{im millions)
Ansets
Cash equivalents and restricted cash:
Money market funds $ 4537 % 3,051
U5, government-sponsored debt securities 5 186 3% 280
Investment securithes, trading:
Equity securities 7 66
Investment securithes, available-for-sale:
.5, government-sponsored debt securities 4,658 2,615
WS, Treasury securities 2,178 2 656
Equity securities 53 4
Corporate debt securities 248 533
Auction rate securities - - 5 7
Prepald and other current assets:
Foreign exchange derivative instruments 50 76
Other Assets:
Fafelgn exchange dervatie instruments &
Total $ 6838 % 5717 % 200 % 3504 % - % T
Liabilities
Accrued labilithes:
Visa Europe put option 5 -_ & 55
Foreign exchange derivative instruments 3 118 3 13
Other liabllitles:
Foreign exchange derivative instruments $ 20
Total $ - & —_ % i3 3 13§ -_ 8 255

Thene were no transfers betwean Level 1 and Level 2 assets during fiscal 2016 .

Level 1 assels measwed at far value on 8 recuvming basis. Money market funds, publicly-traded equity securities and U S, Treasury secunties
are classified as Level 1 within the fair value hierarchy, as fair value is based on quoted prices in active markets.

Level 2 assels and labiies measured al fair value on @ recurming basis. The falr value of U.S. government-sponsored debl securities and
corporate debt securites, as provided by thisd-party pricing vendors, i based on quoted prices in actve markets for similar, not identical, assets.
The pricing data obtained from outside sources is reviewed internally for reasonableness, compared against benchmark guotes from independent
pricing sources, then confirmed or revised accordingly. Foreign exchange derivative instruments are valued using inputs that are observable in the
market or can be derived principally from or commoborated by observable market data. There were no substantive changes to the valuation
technigues and related inputs used to measure fair value during fiscal 2016
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Laved 3 azsels and ¥abiities measurad al fair vakne an a recivring basis. Auction rate secufities are classified as Lovel T due to a lack of trading
in active markets and a lack of obserabie inputs in measuring fair value. There were no substantive changes to the valuation techniques and
related inputs wsed to measure fair value during fiscal 2016 .

Visa Eurape put option agreement. On June 21, 2016, the Company acquired 100% of the share capital of Visa Europe, effected by the Visa
Europe board of directors' exercise of the amended Visa Europe put oplion. Tharefore, the Visa Europe put option was contractually terminated as a
result of the transaction. During the first quarter of fiscal 2016, the Company recorded a $255 million non-cash decrease in the fair value of the put
optian as non-operating income in the Company's consolidated statements of operations, reducing the fair value of the liability to zero . See Note 2
—Acquisition of Viza Europe - The liability was classified within Level 3 as the assumed probability that Visa Europe would elect to exercise its
aption in it unamendead form, and the estimated PIE differential werne among several unobservable Inputs used to value the unamended put option

Assels Measwned af Fak Value on & Non-recurring Basis

MNon-marketable equily investmenis and investmenis accounted for under the equity meihod . These investments are classified as Level 3 due
to the absence of quoted market prices, the inherent lack of liquidity, and the fact that inputs used to measure fair value are uncbsernvable and
require management's judament. When certaln events or circumstances indicate that impakrment may exist, the Company revalues the investments
using various assumptions, including the financial metrics and ratos of comparable public companies, There were no signifcant impairment charges
incurred during fiscal 2016 | 2015 and 2014 . At September 30, 2016 and 2015 | these investments totaled $46 milllon and 545 milllon | respactively
These assets are classified in other assets on the consolidated balance sheets.

Nendinancial assels and Kabites. Long-Ived assets such as goodwill, indefinite-lved intangible assets, finite-lived intangible assets, and
property, equiprment and technology are considered non-financial assets. The Company does nat have any non-financial iabibtes measured at fair
value on a non-recurring bases. Finite-Fved intangibke assets primarily consist of customer relationships, trade names, and reseller relationships, all
of which were abtained through acquisitions. See Nofe T—infangible Assels and Goodwil .

If the Company were required to perform a quantftative assessment for impairment testing of goodwill and indefinite-Tved intangitle assets, the
fair values would generally be estimated using an income approach. As the assumptions employed to measune these assets ona NON-recurring
basis are based on managements judgment using internal and external data, these fair value determinations are classified as Level 3 in the fair
value hierarchy. The Company completed its annual impairment review of &3 indefinite-ived intangible assets and goodwill as of February 1, 2016,
and concluded that there was no impairment, No recent events or changes in cireumstances indicate that im parment existed at September 30, 2016
. Bee Nole 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Polcies

Other Far Value Disclosunes

Long-term debt In Dacember 2015, the Company issued fixed-rate senior notes in an aggregate principal amount of $16,0 bilkon | with
maturities ranging between 2 and 30 years. See Note 8—0Debt . These debt instruments are measured at amortized cost on the Company's
consclidated balance sheet at September 30, 2016 . The fair value of these notes, as provided by thind-party pricing vendors, is based on quoted
poices in active markets for similar, not identical, assets. The pricing data obitained from outside Sources is reviewed internally for reasonablieness,
compared against benchmark quotes Trom indepandent pricing sources, then confirmed of revised accordingly. I measured a1 fair value in the
financial statements, these instruments would be classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.
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HOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—[Continued)
September 30, 2016

The following table presents the carrying amount and estimated faif value of the Company's debt in arder of maturity:

Seplember 30, 2016
Carrying Amount Estimated Fair Value

(i millians)
1.20% Senior Notes due December 2017 5 1746 § 1,754
2.20% Senlor Motes due December 2020 2988 3077
2.B0% Senlor Notes due December 2022 2,238 2,350
3.15% Senior Motes due December 2025 3,564 4225
4.15% Senior Motes due December 2035 1,485 1,688
4,300 Senior Notes due December 2045 3,451 4,045
5 15882 % 17,158

Cither Financial instruments not Measured al Far Value

The following financial instruments are not measured at fair value on the Company's consolidated balance sheet at September 20, 2016 | but
recquire disclosure of their falr values: time deposits recorded in prepaid expenses and other current assets, setlement recelvable and payable, and
customer collateral. The estimated fair value of such instruments at September 30, 2016 approximates their camying value due to their generally
shart maturities. I measured atfair value in the financial statements, these financial instruments woulkd be classified 28 Level 2 in the fair value

hierarchy.
Investmenis
Trading fnvestmen! Secwibes

Trading investment securitias include mutual fund equity security investments related to various employee compensation and banefit plans.
Trading activity in these investments is at the direction of the Company's employees. These investments are held in trust and are not available for
the Company's operational or liquidity needs, Interest and dividend income and changes in fair value are recordad in non-operating income, and
offset in personnel expense on the consolidated statements of operations. As of September 30, 2016 and 2015 | trading investment securities
totaked 571 milllon and 356 millien , respectively,

&1
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HOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
September 30, 2016

Avadable-for-sale Investment Securiies

The amortized cost, unrealized gains and bosses and fair value of available-for-sale investment securites are as follows:

September 30, 2015
September 30, 2016
- Gross Unreallzed Eair - Gross Unrealized Eair
Cost Gain Loasas Valus Caoat Gaing Losnes Walus
{ir rillions)
.5, government-sponsored debt
sacurities 5 4693 5 B S - 5 4699 5 2612 3§ 3 5 — 5 2615
LS. Treasury securities 2176 3 — 2,179 2652 4 —_ 2,656
Equity securities 7 46 — 53 4 — — 4
Corporate debt securities 248 - - 248 532 - - 533
Auction rate securities _ - _ — 7 — — T
Tatal 5 7,024 S 55 S — 5 7178 5 5808 % 7T % — 5 5815
Less: current portion of available-
for-sale investment securities {3.248) (2,431)
Long-term available-for-sale
investment securities 5 39831 5 3,384

The availabie-for-salke investment Securties primarily inclede U5, Treasury securnities, .S, govemnmmeni-sponsoned debt securites and
corporate debt securities. Available-for-sale debt securities are presented below in actordance with their stated maturities, The majority of these
investments, 5 3.9 billion |, ane classilied as non-current, as they Rave stated maturities of more than one year from the baknce sheet date,
Howver, these investments are generally available to meet short-term liquidity needs.

Armortized Gost Fair Value
{im milians)

Septembber 30, 2016:

Due within one year H 3183 5 3,185
Dl after 1 year throwgh 5 years 3,925 3931
Due after 5 years threugh 10 years - —
Due afier 10 years — —_
Total $ EAL L. 7128

&2
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September 30, 2018
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Invastment income &5 recorded as non-operating income in the Company's coensolidated statements of cperations and consisted of the

fallowing:

Interest and dividend Income an cash and investiments

Gain on other investments

For the Years Ended

Investment securities, trading:

Unrealized gaing (losses), net

Realized gaing, net
Investment securities, available-for-sale:
Realized gains, net
Cther-than-temporary impairmeant on investments
Investment income

MHote 5—Prepald Expenses and Other Assets
Prapaid expenses and other current assets consisted of the following:

Prepaid operating expenses and maintenance

Incame tax recehvable [ See Note 15—income Taxes)

Foreign exchange dervative instruments [ See Nole 12—Derivative Financial insirumenis)
Other

Total

Other nen-current assets consisted of the following:

Mon-current income tax receivable ( See Nole T9—income Taxes)

Pansion assels [ See Nole 10—Pensian, Postrelirement and Other Benefits)
Caher imvestments | See Nole 4—Far Valve Measuremenls and Investments)
Long-term prepakd operating expenses and other

MNorn-current deferred tax assets [ See Mole 18—income Taxes)

Tatal

September 30,
06 2015 2014
i millicms)
78 5 31 ]
5 3 ]
3 (€) (2
- 2 &
3 21 1
(4) (=) #
g2 3§ L 35
30, Septamber 30,
16 2MmM5
(i ol bezavs)
§ 151 5 137
232 T
50 T8
122 63
5 558 S 353
September 30,
2016 205
firy rrdl licaws)
5 ™ 3 627
22 36
Ll 45
T2 57
22 13
H B93 5 77

1 The Company elected to early adopt ASU 2015-17 on a retrospective basis effectve October 1, 2015 and all deferred tax assets and llabilities
are clasaified as non-current. Previously, current deferred tax assets had been presented separately and current deferred tax liabilities had been
ineluded in acorued lablities on the consolidated balance sheets. See Note T—Summary of Signdicant Accounting Policies and Note 75—

Income Taxes

83
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HOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—[Continued)
Sepltember 30, 2016

Mote 6—Property, Equipment and Technaology, Met

Froperty, equipment and technology, net, consisted of the following:

30, September 30,
2B 2015
firn Frillionms)

Land H T4 35 71
Buildings and building improvements 838 503
Furmniture, equipment and leasehold improvements 1,382 1,267
Construction-in-progress 125 120
Technolagy 2,378 2,022
Total praperty, equipmant and technalogy 4,798 4283

Accumulated depreciation and amortization (2,648) (2,385)
Froperty, equipment and technology, net § 2150 3 1,838

Technobagy consists of both purchased and internally developed software. Internally developed software primarily represents software utilized
by the VisaMet electronic payments network. At September 30, 2016 and 2015 , accumulated amortization for technology was 31.5 billlon and 51.4
Dilln | respectively

At September 30, 2016 | estimated future amortization expense on technology was as follows;

2021 and
Fraeal: 27T 2018 018 2020 thereafter Total
{in millions)
Estimated futune amortization expense 3 274 5 209 3 161 % 108 3 24 = Bas

Depreciation and amaonization expense related to property, equipment and technology was 5452 million , $431 milken and S365 million for
fiscal 2016 , 2015 and 2014 |, respectively. Inchuded in those amounts was amortization expense on technology of 3259 million , 5251 million and
3198 million for fiscal 2016 |, 2015 and 2014 | respectively.
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HOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—[Cantinued)
September 30, 2016

Mete T—Intanglble Assets and Goodwill

Indefinite-Inved and finite-lived intangible assets consisted of the following:

September 30, 2018 Septermber 30, 2045
Accurradated Accurmulated
Gross Aot zation Wt Gross A Fation Nt
{in millions)

Finite-lived intangible assets:

Customer relationships 5 L (220) 5 131 5§ 351 % (196} 5 155

Trade names 192 (80) 112 192 {ET) 125

Reseller relationships 95 (70) 25 95 (59) 36

Other 18 ()] g 53 (17 36
Tetal finite-lived Intangible assets s 656 § (are8) % 2T 8 631 § (338) § 352
Indefinite-lived intangible assets:

Customer relationshigs and reacquired rights 5 22873 % - % XETI % 5925 % — & 65925

Visa trade name 4,084 —_ 4,084 2 564 —_ 2,564

Visa Europe franchise right — — — 1,520 — 1,520
Total Indefinite-lived intangible assets $ 26957 § — ¥ 26957 § 11,008 § — § 11,009
Total intangible assets, net § 2TE13 3 (379) § 27,234 § M,700 % (339) § 11,361

Amortization expensa related o finite-lived intangible assets was $50 milllon , $63 million and $66 million for fiscal 2016 , 2015 and 2014 |
respectively. Al September 30, 2016 | estimated future amortization expense on finfe-lved intangible assels 8 as follows:

2021 and
Fiscal: 2017 018 2019 itk theraalter Todal
(o ralllbaia
Estimated future amortization expense 3 46 40 40 40 11 3 277

Thene was no impairment nelated to the Company's indefinite-Fved or finite-lved intangible assets during fiscal 2006 | 2015 or 2014 .

The mcrease in total net intangible assets duning 2016 was primarily related to the Com pany's acquisition of Visa Ewope. Total purchase
congideration of S18.8 bilion was allocated to the tangible and entifiable intangible assets acquired and kabitkes agsumed based on their
respective fair value an the acquisition date. Related indefinite-lved intangibde assets recorded totaled $16.1 bilkon consisting of customer
relationships and reacquired rights. Upon cansummation of the acquisition, the Visa Europe franchise right of $1.5 billlon , previously acquired as
pant of the Company's October 2007 recrganization, was reclassified as a Visa trade name intangible asset as the franchise right permitted Visa
Europe's use of the Visa rade name and technology prior to acquisition. Goodwill of 32.3 bilon was recofded o refiect the excess punchase
consideration over nat assets acguired. Intangible assets and goodwill recorded as a result of the Visa Europe acquisition are denominated in euros
and transiated into L. 5. doltare, As such, the change in goodwill balance from the acquisition date to September 30, 2016 primarily includes the
impact of & 38 million resulting from changes in the euro to U5, dollar exchange rate during the pericd. See Nofe 2—Acguisition of Visa Europe

&5
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Mote B—Accrued and Other Liabllities
Accrued labilites consisted of the following:

oOoOooodn

Septambar 30, Saptembear 30,
016 215
iy mmillions)
Accrued operating expenses ' $ 347 3 257
Visa Europe put option (See Mofe 2—Acquisition of Wisa Europe ) & - 255
Accrued interest expenses 145 =
Accrued income taxes (See Nole 18—Income Taxes ) 153 T8
Cther *! 483 262
Tatal ] 1128 3 B45
Ctiner non-current liabilites consisted of the Tollowing:
Septembar 30, Saptembar 30,
016 215
i mmillios)
Accrued income taxes (See Nole 19—Income Taxes ) ™ 5 g1 3 752
Emplayes Denefits 137 77
Cther 114 13
Total ¥ 1,162 3 Ba7

1 Increase includes accrued operating expenses assumed from the Visa Europe acquisition

O June 24, 2016, the Company acquired 100% of the share capital of Visa Europe, effected by the Visa Europe board of directors’ exercise of
the amended Visa Europe put option, Therefore, the Visa Europe put option was contractually terminated as a result of the transaction. See Nole

2—Acquisition of Visa Europe

5
A

5

E

Interest expenses accrued as at September 30, 2016 i3 related to the issuance of long-term debt in December 2015, See Note 8—Debt
The increase in non-current accrued Income taxes is primarily related o the increase in Kabiites for uncertain tax positions.
Current year balance includes amounts assumed from the Visa Europe acquisition related to uncertainties around forelgn non-income bax

abligations, Prior year cwrrent deferred tax labiites have been retroactively reciassed to non-current deferred tax liabilities on the congolidated
balance sheets upon adoption of FASE issuad ASU 2015-17. See Note T—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Nofe 18—income

Taxes .
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Note S—Debt

The Company had cutstanding debt as follows:

Sepiember 30, 2B
Unamortized
Discounts avd Dbt Effective Interest
Principal Amourt Issuance Costs Carrying Amount Rate
iy millions, excepl percentages)

1. 20% Senor Motes due December 2017 (the “2017 Notes®) g 1750 % {4 8 1,746 1.37%
2.20% Senior Notes due December 2020 (the “2020 Motes®) 3,000 (12) 2,983 2.30%
2.80% Senior Notes due December 2022 (the 2022 Notas”™) 2,250 (12) 2,238 2.89%
3.15% Senior Motes due December 2025 (the “2025 Notes”®) 4,000 (38) 3,964 3.26%
4.15% Senior Notes due December 2035 (the “2035 Notes®™) 1,500 (15) 1,485 4.23%
4.30% Senlor Notes due December 2045 (the 2045 Notes”) 3,500 {38y 3,461 4.37%
Total long-term debt 5 16,000 5 {118) % 15,882

Senior Notes

In December 2015, the Company issued fixed-rate senior notes (the 2017 Notes, 2020 Motes, 2022 Motes, 2025 Notes, 2035 Motes and 2045
Motes, or collectively, the "Notes”) in conjunction with the acquissiien of Visa Europe, in an aggregate principal amount of $16.0 billion , with
maturities ranging between 2 and 30 years, Interast on the Notes, at a rate ranging between 1,20% and 4,30% |, is payable semiannually on Jung
14 and December 14 of each year, commencing June 14, 2016, The Com pany recognized retated interest expense of $350 milion in fiecal 2016 ag
non-operating expense. The net aggregate proceeds from the issuance of the Notes, after deducting discounts and debt issuance costs, were 5159
billien . The discounts and debt issuance costs are amortized over the respective term of each note using the effective interest method, The
indenture governing the Nates containg customary event of default provisions. The Notes are senior unsecured obligations of the Company, ranking
equally and ratably among themseb s and with the Com pany's existing and future unsecured and unsubordinated debt. The Motes are not secured
by any assets of the Company and are not guaranteed by any of the Company's subsidiaries. The Company was in compliance with all retated
covenants as of September 30, 2016 .

Each series of tha Motes may be redeemed as a whobe or in part, at the Company’s option at any time, prior to, with respact to the 2017 Motes,
their maturity date, and with respect to the 2020 MNotes, the 2022 Notes, the 2025 Mates, the 2035 Notes and the 2045 Motes, the applicable par call
date (as set forth in the table below), at a price equal to the greater of

= 10049 of the principal amount of such Motes; and

« the sum of the present value of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest through the maturity or par call date for each of
the Maotes below at the treasury rate defined under the terms of the Notes, plus the appicable spread for such Motes (as set forth in the table

below),
plus, in each case, accrued and unpaid interest to, but excluding, the date of redemption.

ar
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Sories Maturity/Par Call Date Spread
2017 Motes December 14, 2017 5 bps
2020 Motes Movember 14, 2020 10 bps
2022 Motes October 14, 2022 12.5 bps
2025 Motes Septernber 14, 2025 15 bps
2035 Motes June 14, 2035 20 bps
2045 Motes June 14, 2045 20 bps

On or after the applicable par call date, the Notes, except the 2017 Notes, may be redeemed as a whaole or in part, at the Company’s option at
any time, at a redemption price agual to 100% of the principal amount of the Motes being redeemed plus accrued interest.

Future principal payments on the Company's outstanding debt are as follows:

Figcal Yaar 2T 018 Fagk ] 0 2081 Theraaiter Total
{in millons) 0 — 175 = — T 3000 11,250 § 16,000

Commaercial Paper Program

Wisa maintaing a commencial paper program o support its working capital requirements and for other genalal corporate purpeses. Uinder the
program, the Company is authorized to Bsue up te 53.0 billon in owtstanding notes, with maturities up to 387 days from the date of issuance. The
Company had no cutstanding obligations under the program at September 30, 2016 .

Credit Fachily

On January 27, 2016 | the Company, Visa Inemational Service Association and Visa U.S.A. Inc., and subsequently, Visa Europe Limited and
Visa Europe Services [nc. (collectively, the “Bommowers™) entered into a S-year, unsecuned 54.0 billion revolving credit facility (the “Credit Facility”)
with Bank of Amernica, M.A., as administrative agent and the lenders party thereto. JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A_ acted as syndication agent in
connection with the Credit Facility, Bank of China, Los Angeles Branch, Barclays Bank PLC, Citibank, N.A., HSBC Bank USA, M.A., Raoyal Bank of
Canada, Standard Charered Bank, The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd., U.5. Bank Mational Association, Wells Farge Bank Matioral
Association, Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. and Toronto Dominion (Wew York) LLC, acted as Documentation Agents; and J.P, Morgan Securities
LLC, Merrill Lynch, Fierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, Bank of China, Los Angeles Branch, Barclays Bank PLC, Citigroup Global Markets, Inc.,
HSBC Bank USA, A RBC Capltal Markets, Standard Chartered Bank, The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Lid , U.S. Bank Mational Association,
Wells Farge Securities, LLC, Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. and TD Securites (LSA) LLC, acted as pintlead arrangers and joint book runners, The
Credit Facility, which expires on January 27, 2021 | replaced the Company's prior $3.0 billkxn credit tacility, which expired on January 27, 2016 |

The Credit Faciity provides the Bomrowers with 2 borrowing capacity of up 1o 54,0 billion . Borrowings under the Cradit Facility are avaitable for
general corporate purposes, Inferest on the borowings under the Credit Facility would be charged at the London |nterbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) or
an aRemative bage rate, in each case plus applicable marging that fluctuate based on the applicable rating of senior unsecured longterm securibies
of the Company. The Borrowers have agreed to pay a commitment fee which will fluctuate Based on such applicable rating of the Company.

Other material Brms ane:

= afinancial covenant which requires the Company to maintain a Consobdated Indebtedness to Consolidated EBITDA Ratio (as defined in the
Credit Faciity) of not greater than 3.75 to 1.00,

« customary restrictive covenants, which limit the Borrowers' ability to, among other things, create certain liens, effect fundamental changes to
their business, or merge or dispose substantially all of their assets, subject in each case to customary exceptions and amounts;

&8
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September 30, 2016

«  customary events of default, upon the cccurrence of which, after any applicable grace penod, the requisite lenders will have the ability 1o
accelerate all outstanding loans thereunder and terminate the commitments; and
+ other customary and standard terms and conditions.

The Borrowers had no borrowings under the Credit Facilty and the Company was in compliance with all related coverants as of and during the
year ended September 30, 2016 . The participating lenders in the Credit Facilty include certain hokders of the Company's class B and class C
common stock and U K21 and Europe preferred stock, certain of the Borrowers' customers and thelr affillates.

MNote 10—Pension, Postretirement and Other Benefits

The Company Spansers vanous qualified and nen-guakified defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plans that provide Tor
retiremeant and medical benefits for substantially all employeas residing in the United States. The Company also sponsors othar pension benefit
plans that provide benefits for internationally-based employees at certain non-U.S. locations. As a result of the acquisition of Visa Europe, the
Company assumed the obligations related to Visa Europe's defined benafit plan, primarily consisting of the UK. funded and unfunded pension
plans.

Disclosures presented below include the U5, pension plans and the mon-U.5. plans, competsing only the Visa Europe plans, Disclosures
relating to other non-U. S, pension benefit plans are not included as they are immaterial, individually and in aggregate, The Company uses a
Septemnber 30 measurement date for its pension and other postretirement benefit plans,

Defined banefil pension plang, The U.E, pension benefits under the defined benefit pengion plan are eamed baged ona cagh balance formula, An
employee’s cash balance account is credited with an amount equal to 6% of eligible compensation plus interest based on 20-year Treasury
securtes. In October 2015, the Company's board of directors approved an amendment of the LS. qualfied defined beneft pension plan such that
the Company diecontinued em ployer provided credits atter December 21, 2015, Plan paricipants continue to earn interest credits on existing
balances at the time of the freeze, As a resull, a curtailment gain ttaling 52 million was recognized in fiscal 2016 as part of the Company's net
pefiodic benefit cost

The funging pelicy for the U5, pension benefits is to contribute annually no less than the minimum required contribubion under ERISA

Under the Visa Europe U K. pension plans, presented below under “non-U.S. plans™, retirement benefits are provided based on the participants'
final pensionable pay and are currently ciosed to new enfrants, However, future benefits continue 1o accrue for active participants, The funding palicy
Is to contribute in accordance with the appropriate funding requirements agreed with the trustees of the U K. pension plans, Addiional amounts may
be agreed with the LK. pension plan trustees

Postretrement benefits plan. The postretirernent benefits plan provides medical benefits for retirees and dependents who meet minimum age and
sérvice requirements. Benefits are provided Trom retitement date until age 65 . Retirees must contributé on @ monthly Basis for the same coverags
that is generally avaitable 1o active employees and their dependents. The Company's contributions are funded on a current basis.

4g
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Surmmany of Plan Acthvibes
Change in Benefit Obligation:

Benefit obligation—beginning of fiscal year
Viga Eurcpe acquisition

Service cogt

Interast cost

Actuarial loss (gain)

Benefit payments

Ptan amendment

Foreign currency exchange rate changes
Benefit abligation—end of fiscal year
Accumulated benafit obligation

Change In Plan Assets:

Fair value of plan assets—beginning of fiscal year
Visa Europe acquisition

Actual return on plan assets

Company contribution

Benefit payments

Foreign currency exchange rate changes
Fair value of plan assets—end of fiscal year
Funded status at end of fiscal year

Re¢ognized in Consolidated Balance Sheets:
Mon-current asset

Current liability

Mon-currint liability

Funded status at end of fiscal year

VISA INC,

September 30, 2018
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U5 Plan= Hon=l1. 5. Plans
Pansion Benafits Pﬁﬂﬂlh:r::: Bonafits Pansion Banefits

Septerriber 30, Septemibar 30, Saptember 30,

2016 2015 e 2015 206
{im millions)
$ 1,008 3 583 % 18 35 2o % it
— K el — 281
13 47 - — 1
40 40 1 1 3
BB 40 (2) — 85
(B4} {105) 3 (3 ]
() - - - -
= = — — 4
1072 § 1,005 % 14 3 % % 474
1,072 % a904 NA MA % 474
5 1,022 5 1,117 % — 8 =i R
—_ = = — 287
118 {6} -_ — 25
1 16 3 3 102
(B4} {105} (3} (3 (1
— — — — 2
- 1,077 1022 % - 5 . 415
$ & 17 ¥ (14) % {18) % (59)
5 22 3 26§ — 5 — % —
() (4 (3 ()] (5)
2) (10 (11} {15} (53)
5 5 5 17 % {14) s (18} § (58)
a0
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Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive Income before tan:

oOoOooodn

ULS. Plans Nan-U.5. Plans
Cethear
Pernsion Benefits Postretirerment Bensfis Pervsion Banefits
September 30, September 30, Seplomber 30
e 25 1e 2015 2016
(in milliorsy
Met actuarkal loss (gain) ] 241 5 232 § 8 = H 5 5]
Prior service credit - {9y (2) {5) —
Total 5 241 § 223 % m 3 (10) % 66
Amounts from accumulated other comprehensive Income to be amortized Into net periedic benefit cost in fiscal 2017 -
U5, Plans Hondl, 5. Plans
Other
Porstrating i
Pension Benafits Bonafits Pansion Bonefits
fin millioms)
Actuarial loss (gain) s 15 5 (1} % 2
Prior service credit — {2y —
Tatal g 15: § (3) 5 2
Benefit obligations in excess of plan assets related to the Company’s U.5. non-gqualifled plan and the non-U_5. pansien plans:
U.5. Plans Non-U.5. Plans
Saptermber 30, September 30,
2016 2015 2016
{ir rmillioms)
Accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets
Accumulated benefit oblgation—end of year (18} % (19 % [4T4)
Fair value of plan assets—end of year 5 — 5 — 3 415
Frojected benefit cbligation in excess of plan assets
Benefit abligation—end of year (18} % (19 % 474
Fair value af plan assets—end of year L1 - % - % 415
o
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Met periadic pension and othér postretirement plan cost:

LLS. Plans Hon-L1.5. Plans !
Other
Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits Pension Benefits
Fiscal
2016 2015 2014 2018 205 2014 2016
i il bens)

Sarvice cost - 13 % 47 % 45 § — & - 5 — % 1
Irberest cost 40 40 42 1 1 1 3
Expictid retum on assets (69) {r2) (B8] - — — [4)
Amortization af:
Prior sarvice credit (1) (7 8) 2} 3 (3 —
Actuarial less (gain) T 1 1 {2) (22 (1 s
et benefit cost ] (10) s 9 % 13 % 4) s 4 = (3 % =
Curtallment gain (8) — (3 — — — -
Settlement loss 13 T 3 e — — -
Totai net periodic bemefit cost ] 5 = 1B $ 13 % 4y & 4 s (2 % —

' Represents Yisa Europe’s UK. pansion plans' net pension benafit cost recegnized from the Closing through September 30, 2016.

Other changes in plan assets and benefit abligations recognized in other comprehensive income:

L5, Plans Hom-LLE, Plans
Pension
Peivsion Benefits Other Posiretirement Benefits Benefits
2016 2015 2016 213 2016
{in millions)

Current year actuarial koss (gain) 5 w 5 118  § {2) 3 — § 65
Amortization of actuarial (losz) gain [20) (&) 2 2 -_
Cument year prior service credit —_ -_ -_ —
Amortization of prior service credit ] 7 3 3 —_
Tatal recegnized in other comprahensiog income 5 19 5 118 % 3 5 5 %
Total recognized in net periodic benefit cost and other
comprehensive income H 14 5 134 § (1] 5 1%
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Weighted Average Actuarlal Assumptions:

U5, Plans Horel 5. Plans
Fiscal
26 2015 2014 2016

Discount rate for benefit obligation; \"
Pension 3.62% 4.33% 4. 2T% 2.40%
Postretsre mant 1.91% 2.43% 2.55% HA
Discount rate for net periodic benefit cost:
Pension 4,33% 4.27% 4.81% 310%
Pastretire ment 2.43% 2.55% 2.76% HA
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets T.00% 7.00% 7.00% 3.92%
Rate of increase in compensation levels for:
Benefit obligation HA 4.00% 4.00% 3.20%
Met periodic benefit cost NA 4.00% 4 50% 2.00%

N Represents 3 single weighted-average discount rate derived based on a cash fow matching analysis, with the projected benefit payments
riatehing spot rates from 3 yiekd curve developed from high-gquality corporate bonds,

5 Primarily based on the targeted allocation, and evaluated for reasonableness by considering such factors as: (i) actual return on plan assets;
(i} histosical rates of return on vanious asset classes in the porfolo; (i) prejections of retums on various asset chasses; and (iv) current and
prospective capital market conditions and ecanomic forecasts.

F This assumption is not applicable for to the U.S. plans in fiscal 2016 due o the amendment of the LS. qualified defined benefit pension plan in
Cetober 2015, which discontinued the employer provided credits effective atter December 31, 2015

The assumed annual rate of futwne increases in health be nefits for the other postretiterment benefits plan is 8% for fiscal 2017 . The rate is
azsumed o decreasa to 5% by 2021 and remain at that level thereafter. Thase trend rates reflect management's expectations of future rates.
Increasing or dacreasing the healthcare cost trend by 1% would change the postretirament plan benafit ebligation by kess than 51 million

Pension Plan Assels

Pension plan 3ssets are managed with a long-term perspective to ansure that there is an adequate level of assats to support benafit payments
to participants over the life of the pension plan. Pension plan assets are managed by external investment managers, Investment manager
performance is measured against banchmarks for each asset class on a quarterly basiz, An indepandent consultant assists management with
investment manager selections and performance evaluations.

Fenskn plan assets are broadly diversified to maintain a prudent level of risk and to provide adequate liguidity for benefit payments. The
Comparny generally evaluates and rebalances the pension plan assets, as appropriate, 1o ensure that allocations are consistent with target allscation
ranges, The weighted average targeted allpcation for U.S, pension plan assets i3 as follows: equity securities of 50% to 80% |, fixed income
securities of 25% to 35% and other, primarily consisting of cash equivalents to meet near term expected benefit payments and expenses, of up to
T4 . At September 20, 2016 , U.S. pension plan asset allocations for these categories were 62% , 34% and 4% . respectively, which were within
target allecation ranges.

The weighled average targeted allocation for non-LULS, pension plans & as follows: equity securities af 40% | fixed income securities of 20%
and other of 40% , consisting of cash, mult-asset furkds, and property. At September 30, 2016 , non-U.S. pension plan asset allocations for these
categones were 28% , 22% and 50% , respectively, The actual allecated percentage to other category exceeding the target is atiributed to the 5102
million cash contribution made in September 2016.
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The following table sets forth by kevel within the fair value hierarchy, the pension plan's investments at fair value as of September 30, 2018
and 2015 |, including the impact of ransactions that were not settied at the end of September.

U.5. Plans
Fair Value Measurements al September 30,
Level 4 Lawal Lavwel 3 Total
2016 2015 2016 015 2016 2015 2016 2015
{imy millions)
Cash equivalents % | 3 1 5 | 3 1
Caorporate debt securities § 188 5 188 188 168
.5, govemment-sponsoned debt securities an 66 a0 66
U.8. Treasury gecurities 100 T4 100 74
Asset-backed securities 5 - -1 3 51 3
Equity securities 672 671 672 BT1
Total $ B11 % 756 § 26 5 25 % L - 31 5 1,007 § 1022
. S S I T ———— A i==————— ————
Hon-UL.5. Plans
Fair Walue Measurements af Seplember 30, 2016
Lovel 1 Lavel 2 Lavil 3 Total
{im milions}
Cash equivalents $ 105 ] 105
Corporate debt securites $ k] k3]
UK. Treasury securities 52 52
Asset-backed securties H 28 28
Equity securities 118 116
Mult-asset securities | 74 T4
Total H 2T 5 113 § 28 § 415

M Mulb-asset securities represents pension plan assets that are invested in funds compnsed of broad ranges of assets,

Level 1 assels. Cash equivalents (money market funds, time deposits and treasury bllts), U.S. and UK. Treasury securties and equity
securities are classified as Level 1 within the fair value hieranchy, as fairvalue is based on quoted prices in active markets.

Level 2 assets, The falr values of U.S. government-spongored, corporate debt and multi-asset securties are based on quoted prices in active
markets for similar assets as provided by third-party pricing vendors. This pricing data s reviewed internally for reasonablenass through
compartsens with benchmark gquetes from independant third-party sources, Based on this review, the valuation ks confirmed or revised accordingly

Level 3 assets. Asset-backed securities are bonds that ane backed by various types of assets and primarily consist of morgage-backed
securities. Asset-backed securities are classified as Level 3 due to a kack of observable inputs in measuring fair valee,

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 assets during fiscal 2016 or 2015 . A separate roll-forward of Level 2 plan 255818
measured at fair value is not presented because activities during fiscal 2016 and 2015 wene immaterial
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Cash Flows

UL, Plans Noneld, 5. Plans

Other
Pension Postretirement
Benafits Benefits Pension Benefits

Actual employer contributions fin millions)

206 2 1 5 - 102
2015 5 16 3 3 % =
Expected employer contributions
2017

Expected benefit payments

2017

20138

2019

2020

2021

2022-2026

o
w0
A
(4]
A
[+:]

WM AR

=k
ZERESR
w9 U A B o
I N R N T N R C R
o U O A WO
ohoth o B

350

Other Banefits
The Company spensors a defined contribution plan, or 401(k) plan, that covers substantially all of its employees residing in the United States.
Personnel costs included 555 million , 545 million and 546 million in fiscal 2016 | 2015 and 2014 | respectively, for expanses atiributable to the
Company’s employees under the 401(k) plan. The Company's contributions to this 401(k) plan are funded on a current basis, and the ralated
expanses are recognized in the period that the payroll expenses are incurred.

HNote 11—=Settiement Guarantes Management

The Com pany Indemnifies its clients for settlement logses sulfered due to failure of any ather client 1o fund &S setiement abligations n
aceordance with the Visa Rules. This indemnification creates seftiement fisk for the Company due T the difference in tming between the date of a
payment transaction and the date of subsequent setlement Settlement at risk, or exposure, i5 estimated based on the sum of the Tollowing inputs:
{1} average daily volumes during the quarer multiphied by the estimated number of days to settle plus 3 satety marging (2) four months of raling
average chargebacks volume, and (2) the total balance for outstanding Visa Travelers Chegues.

The Comparny maintains and regularly reviews global setement risk policies and procedures to manage settement exposure, which may
require clients to post collateral if certain credit standards are not met

The Company's setfement exposure is limited to the amount of unsetiled Visa payment transactions at any point in ime. The Company's
estimated maximuem settlement exposure was $67.8 bilkon for the period ended September 30, 2016 | inclueding Visa Ewrope, compared to 543.5
billizn for the perod andad Septamber 30, 2015 , which excludes Visa Europa. The increase in the Company's estimated maximum setemeant
exposune for the pariod endad Septamber 30, 2016 is due to the Visa Europe acquisition. Of these amounts, 525 billion and $2.2 billian at
September 30, 2016 and 2015 | respectively, were covered by collateral. The total available collateral balances presented below were greater than
the settlement exposure coversd by customer collateral hebd due to instances in which the avallable collateral excesdad the tolal settlement
exposure for certain financial institutions at each date presented
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The Company maintained collateral as follows:

Septernber 30, September 30,
Py 2015
(i millians)
Cash equivabents 5 1,288 3 1,023
Fledged securites at market value 170 154
Letters of credit 1,311 1,178
Guarantees 1,418 ari
Tatal $ 4184 = 3,326
The balances above included collateral held by Visa Europe as follows:
September 30,
2016
{in milEons)
Cash equivalents "' 5 294
Pledged securities at markat valua —
Letters of credit 144
Guarantees 375
Taotal 5 813

M Cash collateral held by Visa Europe i3 not included on the Company's consolidated balance sheet as #z clients retain beneficial ownership and
the cash is only accessible o the Company in the event of default by the client on its settiement obligations,

Cash equivalents coltateral, excluding cash coltateral held by Visa Europe, i reflected in customer collateral on the consolidated balance
sheats as it 15 held in escrow in the Company's name. All other collateral is excluded from the consolidated balance sheets, Pladged securities are
held by third parties in st for the Company and clients, Letters of credit are provided primarily by client financial institutions o serve a8 imevocabie
quarantees of payment. Guarantees are provided primarily by parent financial institutions to secure the obligations of their subsidiaries, The
Compary routinely evaluates the linancial viability of institutions providing the guarantees

Thue fair valoe of the settlement fisk guarantes is estimated using a proprietary model which considers statistically derived loss factors based on
histonical experience, estimated settiement exposures at penod end and a standardized grading process for chents (Using, whene avaitable, third-
party estimates of the probabilty of customer failure). Historically, the Company experienced minimal losses, which has contributed to an estimated
probability-welghted value of the guarantes of approximately 52 million and $1 milion at September 30, 2016 and 2015 , respectively. These
amounts were reflected in accrued liabilties on the consolidated balance sheets.

Hote 12—Derivative and Non-derivative Financlal Instruments
Derfvative Financlal Instruments

Deagrated derfvative financial mstrument hedges. The Company maintains a rolling cash flow hedge program with the objective of reducing
forelgn currency exchange rate risk from forecasted net exposures of revenues and expenses derived from and payments made in non-functional
currencies during the fallowing twele months. The aggregate notional amount of the Company’s denivative contracts sutstanding In its hedge
program was $1.6 billon at September 20, 2016 and $1.2 billion at September 30, 2015 . The increase in the aggregate notional amounts of the
Companys dervative contracts includes the addition of 3189 million notional of dervative contracts entered into for Visa Europe after the Closing,
As of September 30, 2016 , the Company's cash flow hedges In an asset position totaled 317 milion and were classified in prepaid expenses and
other current asets on the consolidated balance sheel, while cash flow hedges in @ liability position totaled $T8 milkon and were classified in
accruad liabiities on the consolidated balance sheet These amounts are subject to master netting agreaments, which provide the Company with a
legal right to nat setthe multiple payable and receivable positions with the same counterparty, ina
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singke cufrency thiough a singke payment However, the Company presents fair values on a gross basis on the consolidated balance sheats | See
Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies .

To qualify for cash flow hedge accounting treatment, the Company formally documents, at inception of the hedge, all relationships between the
hedging fransactions and the hedged ftems, as well as the Company's risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions, The Company also formally assesses whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in the cash flows of the hedged items and whether those dervatives may be expected to remain highly effective in future periods.

The Company uses regression analysis to assess hedge effectiveness prospectively and refrospectively. The effectivenesas tests are performed
on the foreign exchangs forward contracts based on changes in the spot rate of the derivative instrument comparad to changes in the spot rate of
the forecasted hedged transaction. Forward points are exciuded for effectiveness testing and measurement purposes, The excluded forward points
are reported In eamings, For fiscal 2016 , 2015 and 2014 | the amounts by which eamings were reduced relating to excluded forward points were
$30 milllon . $29 milllom and 527 million |, respectively.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of dervative contracts is recorded as a component of accumulated other comprehensive
Income orf o33 on the consolidated bakance sheets. When the forecasted transaction eccurg and i recognized in eamings, the amount in
accumulated other comprehensive income or S related to that hedge is reclassified to operating réevenue or expense. The Company expects to
reckassity $58 million of pre-tax losses 1o eamings during fiscal 2017

Naon-desigrated dervative financial instrument hedges. The Company entered inte currency forward contracts during the second and third
quarters of fiscal 2016 to mitigate a portion of the foreign currency exchange rate risk associated with the upfront cash consideration paid in the Visa
Europe acquistion with addtional offsefting currency forward contracts entered into subsequently b aliminate its risk-mitigation positions. All
contracts matured during the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2016, As these contracts were not designated in hedging relationships, related gains
and losges were recorded directly in earnings as part of nen-operating income in the consolidated financial statements, The Company recorded net
gains of $74 million related to these contracts In fiscal 2016

Subseguent to the acquisiton of Visa Ewope, the Company entered into currency forward contracts to offset Visa Europe hedges outstanding
at the date of the acquisition that did not qualify for cash floew hedge accounting reatment in accordance with U5, GAAP or the Company's
accounting palicy, The fair vakses of both the ariginal currency forward contracts and the offsetting hedges are classified in prepaid expenses and
other current assets, non-current ather assets, accrued llakilties and non-current other labdites on the consolidated balance sheet

The Company utiizes foreign exchange dervative contracts to hedge against forsign currency exchange rate fuctuations related to certain
manetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign curency held by Visa Europe. AS of September 30, 2016 , the aggregate notional amourt of
these balance sheet hedges was $1.1 billior . The Company did not have ary bakince sheet hedges outstanding at September 30, 2015 . Gains and
losses on the derivative contracts partially offset gains and losses on the hedged monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign curmancy.
These amounts are recorded in general and administrative in the Company's consofidated statement of operations as these instruments are not
designated for hedge accounting.

Credf and marked risks. The Company's derivative financial instrumants are subject to both credit and market risk. The Company monitors the
credit-warthiness of the financial institutions that are counterparties to its derivative financial instruments and does not consider the risks of
counterpa rty nenperformance to be signficant The Company mitigates this risk by entering into master netting agreements, and except for
derivative instruments entered into by Visa Eurcpe, such agreaments require each party fo post collateral against its net liability position with the
respective counterpany, As of September 30, 2016 | the Company has received collateral of 8 million from counterparties, which i included in
accrued liabilities in the consolidated bakance sheet, and posted collateral of 354 milllon , which is included in other 355815 in the consolidated
balance sheet. Motwithstanding the Company's efforts to manage foreign exchange risk, there can be no absalute assurance that its hedging
activities will adequately protect against the risks associated with fomeign currency fluctuations. Credit and market risks related o dervative
Instruments wene not considerad significant at September 30, 2016 .
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Additional desclosures that demonsirate how dervative instruments and related hedged items affect an entity's financial position, financial
performance and cash flows have not been presented because the impact of derivative instruments i immaterial to the overall consohidated financial
statements.

Non-derivative Financlal Instrument Designated as a Nel Invesiment Hedge

The Company designated the euwo-denominated deferred cash consideration liabiity of $1.2 bitlion (see Note 2—Acquisition of Visa Europe ),
a non-derivative financial instrument, as a hedge against a portion of the foreign currency exchange rate exposure of the Company's euro-
denominated net investment of 518.8 billken in Visa Europe. Changes in the value of the deferred cash consideration liabiity, atiributable to the
change in exchange rates at the end of each reporting penod, partially offset the foreign currency transiation of the Company's net investment
recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income In the Company’s consolidated balance sheet Changes in the euro exchange rate against
the U5, dollar from the acquisition date of June 21, 2016 to the batance sheet date of September 30, 2016 resulted in net forekgn currency
translation adjustments of 3218 million ,

MNote 13—Enterprise-wide Disclesures and Concentration of Business
The Company’s long-lived net property, equipment and technology assets are classified by majgor geographic areas as follows:

Septermbar 30, September 30,
2016 2015
(i millions)
United States 1 1,827 & 1,808
International 323 82
Tatal $ 2150 % 1,888

Revenue by geographic market i primariy based on the location of the issuing financial institution. Revenues earned in the United States wene
approximately 52% of net operating revenues in fiscal 2016 , 53% in fiscal 2015 and 54% in figcal 2014 . No individual country, other than the United
States, generated more than 10% of net operating revenues in these years.

A significant portion of Visa's operating revenues is concentrated among is largest clients. Loss of business from any of these clients could
have an adwerse effect on the Company. The Company did not have any customer that generated greater than 10% of its net operating revenues in
fiscal 2016 , 2015 or 2014 .

Haote 14—Stackholders’ Equity

Visa Ewrope acquisition. In connection with the \Visa Eurcpe acquisition, three new series of prefamed stock of the Company were created.
Upon issuance, all of the preferred stock participate on an as-converted basis in regular quarterly cash dividends declared on the Company’s class A
commaon stock. Additiomally, Visa EU!'G'PE holds shares of Visa Inc."s class C comman stock, which were treated as treasury stock in purchase
accounting, See Nole 2—Acquisition of Vise Ewrope .

Class A common stock spiit In January 2015, Visa's board of directors declared a four -for-ome spiit of its class A common stock. Each class A
common stockhobder as of the record date received a dividend of three additional shares for every share held as of the record date. Holders of class
B and C common stock did not recene a stock dividend. Instead, the conversion rate for class B comman steck increased to 1.6483 shares of class
A commaon stock per share of class B common stock, and the conversion rate for class C common s$tock increased to 4.0 shares of class A common
stock per share of class C common stock. Immedzately following the split, the class A, B and C stockholders retained the same relative ownership
percentages that they had prior to the stock split. All per share amounts and number of shares outstanding in these consolidated financial
stalements and accompanying notes are presented ona post-split basis. As a result of the stock split, all historical per share data and number of
shares outstanding presented have been retroactively adjusted.
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As-converied class A commen sfock. The UK &) and Europe prefered stock, issued in the Visa Ewope acquisition, is convertible upon certain
conditions into shares of class A common stock or class A equivalent preferred stock, at an initial conversion rate of 13.952 shares of class A
common stock for each share of UK &I prefarred stock and Europe preferred stock. The conversion rates may be reduced from time to time 1o offsat
certain liabilities. See Nole 2—Acquisition of Visa Europe and Note 3—U. 5. and Evrope Retrospective Respansibility Plans .

The number of shares of each seres and class and the number of shares of class A common stock on an as-converted tasis at September 30,
2016 |, are as follows:

Shares Conversion Rate into As-gonverted Class A
(i mdllkans, excoapt conversion rate) Duitstanding Class A Common Stock Common Stock ™
UK 8| praferred stock 2 13.9520 35
Europe preferred stock 3 13 9520 44
Class A common stock & 1,871 — 1,871
Class B common stock 245 1.6483 © 405
Class C common stock 17 4.0000 67
Tatal 2422

Figures in the table may not recalculate exactly due to rounding. As-converted class A commaon stock is calculated based on unrounded
numbers,

= Class A common stock shares outstanding reflect repurchases settled on or before September 30, 2016 The Company repurchased an
additional 1 millon shares at the end of September, which did not settie until October 2016,

The class B fo class A common stock conversion rate is presented on a rounded basis. Comersion calculations for dividend payments are based
on a comversion rate rounded to the tenth decimal.

Cominon slock rapurchases. The Tollowing table presents share repurchases in the apen market during this Tallowing fiscal years:

{in millions, except per share data) 2016 ™ 2015

Shares repurchased in the open market ! 81 44
Average repurchase price per share ™ 5 7708 S £5.98
Total cost 5 8,887 3 2810

1 Shares repurchased inthe open market reflect repurchases settied on or before September 20, 2016, The Company repurchased an additional 1
millien shares for 120 milion at the end of Seplember, which did not settle until October 2016,

Al shares repurchased in the open market have been retired and constitute authorized but unissued shares.

# Figures in the table may not recalculate exactly due o rounding. Average repurchase price per share is caloulated based on unrounded numbers

The Company's board of directors authorized share repurchase programs in October 2015 and July 2016 at 55.0 billian each. As of
Saptamber 30, 2016 , the programs had remaining authorized funds of $5.8 billion . All share repurchase programs autharized prior to October 2015
have been completed

Viga Europe held approximately 550,000 shares of the Company's class C commen stock valued at $170 milion at the Cloging, which was
recorded as treasury stock at the time of the acquisition,

Class B commaon stock. The class B common stock (s not convertible or ransferatie until the date on which all of the LS, covered litigation has
been finally resolved, This transfer restriction is subject to limited exceptions, Including transfers to other hokders of class B common stock. After

termination of the restrictions, the class B commeon stock will be convertible into class A common stock if transfermed 1o @ person that was not a Visa
Member (a5 defined in the current certficate of incarporation) or similar person of an affiliate of a Visa Membear or similar
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person. Upon such transfer, each share of class B commaon stock will automatically convert into a number of sharnes of class A common stock based
upon the applicable conversion rate in effect at the time of such transter.

Adjustment of the conversion rate occurs upon: (i) the complation of any follow-on offering of class A common stock completed to increassa the
size of the U.5. litigation escrow account (or any cash deposit by the Company in leu the reof) resulting in a further comesponding decrease in the
comversion rate; or (if) the final resclution of the U 5. covered IRtigation and the release of funds remaining on deposit in the U_S. litigation escrow
account to the Company resulting in a corresponding increase in the corversion rate. There weare no deposils into the U.S. litigation escrow account
im figcal 2016 or 2015. See Nofe 3—U.5. and Europe Retrospective Responsibiity Plans

Ciass C common stock. As of Saptember 30, 2016 | all of the shares of class C common stock have been released from transfer restrictions. A
total of 134 million shares have been converted from class C to class A common stock upon their sale into the public market and approximately
550,000 shares held by Visa Euwrope were recorded as treasury stock at the time of the acquisition.

Preferred stock. Preferred stock may be issued as redeemable of non-redeemable, and has preference over any class of common stock with
respect to the payment of dividends and distribution of the Company’s assets in the event of a liguidation or dissolution. The Company had 5 milllon
ghares of UK. &1 and Europe preferred stock outstanding at the end of fiscal 2016 and no shares of prefered stock outstanding at the end of fiscal
2015, The ghares of UK &1 and Europe preferred stock are subject to restrictions on transfer and may become comertible in stages based on
developments in the VE terntory covered itigaton. See Note 2—=Acquisition of Visa Europe

Vaoting rights. The holders of the UK. 81 and Europe preferred stock have no nght to vole on any matters, except for certain defined matters,
including, in specified circumstances, any consolidation, merger, combination or similar transaction of the Company in 'which the prefenned
stockholders would either (i) receive shares of common S1ck of ather equity Securities of the Company with preferences, nghts and privieges that
arne not substantially identical to the preferences, rights and privikeges of the applicable series of prefenned stock or (il) receive securities, cash or
other property that is differant from what our clss A commeon stockholders would receive, With respect (o these Bmited matiers on which the holders
of preferred stock may vote, approval by the preferred stockholders requires the affirmative vote of the cutstanding voting power of each such series
of preferred stock, each such series voting as a single class. In either case, the U.K.&| and Europe preferred stockholders are entitled to casta
num bar of votes equal to the numiber of shares held by each such hokder,

Class A common stockholkders have the right to vete on all matters on which stockholders generally are entited to vote. Class B and © common
stocknolders have no fFight to vote on any matters, except for cerain defined matters, including (1) any decision to exit the core payments business,
Inwhich case the class B and C commen steckiolders will vote together with the class A commen steckiolders in a single class, and (&) in specified
circumstances, any consolidation, merger, comibination or similar transaction of the Company, in which case the class B and G common
stockialders will vote together a5 a single class. |neither case, the class B and C common stockholders are entithed to ¢ast a number of voles equal
to the numbser of shares of class B or © commen stock held multiphed by the applicable conversion rate in effect on the recond date. Holders of the
Company’s comman stock have na right to vote on any amendment 1o the cument certificate of incorporation that relates solely 1o any seres of
preferred stock.

Dividends deciaved. The Company declared and paid 51.4 billien in dividends in fiscal 2016 at a quarterly rate of 30,14 per share. |n October
2016 | the Company's board of directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of 50,185 per share of ¢lass A common stock (determined in the case of
class B and G common stock and U.K.&l and Europe preferred stock on an as-convered basis), which will be paid on December §, 2016 , to all
holders of record of the Company's commeon and prefered stock as of November 18, 2016 _

Mote 15—Earnings Per Share
Basic eamings per share is computed by dividing net income available to each clags by the weighted-average number of shares of common
stock outstanding and parnticipating securites during the period, Met income s alocated to each class of common stock and pamicipating securities

based on It proportional ewnership on an as-converted basts. The weighted-average number of shares of each class of common stock outstanding
reflects changes in ownership over the penods presented. See Note 14—Slockhokiers’ Equity .
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Diluted earmings per share is computed by dividing net income available by the weighted-average number of shares of common stock
outstanding, participating securities and, if dilutive, potential class & common stock equivalent shares outstanding during the period. Dilutive class A
comman stock equivalents may consist of: (1) shares of class A common stock issuable upon the conversion of U K. &I and Europe preferred stock
and class B and C common stock based on the conversion rates in effect through the period, and {2} incremental shares of class A common stock
calculated by applying the treasury stock method to the assumed exercise of employee stock options, the assumed purchase of stock under the

Employee Stock Purchase Plan and the assumed vesting of uneamed performance shares
The following fable presents eamings per share for fiscal 2016

Basic Eamings Per Share

Dikte-d Enrringd Par Shire

{in millians, szcept por alare data)

Walghted- Weaghtea-
income Average Eamings per Irzeme Average Emfringa peos
ANacation Shares Share = Alizcation Shares Srare =
(A1 Dutatanding B) [A5T8E) a] @ ‘Cunstanding [B) {ANTE)
Class A& common Shock -] 4738 1906 S 249 5 5001 2414 0 § 248
Class B comenon stock 1,006 245 % 410 5 1,004 245 s 4.08
Class C common stock 185 19 % 954 5 185 19 3 993
Participating secunties 62 Mot presented Mct presented | 3 Ll Mot presented Mot presented
et income 5 D881
The following tabhe presents earnings per share for fiscal 2015, 1Y
lasic Barmirsgs Per Share Biluted Barnings P Share
[in miland, eXcest per Anede JBLa)
Welghtad- Walghted-
incoma Aversgs Earnings per Income Averags Ewmnings par
Allocatisn Enares Share = Allaestion Emares Share =
L] Chtstanding (8} (AE] LA &x Chatistansing (8} {AIEE]
Class A common stock -3 5,044 1854 % 258 5 6,328 2457 & % 258
Class B common stodk 1.045 245 5 426 | § 1.042 245 5 425
Class C common stock 224 22 5 10.33 5 23 22 5 1030
Participating secunities 15 Bt presented Hot presented ] 15 Mot pressnted Hiol presented
Met incorme % 6328
The following table presents eamings per share for fiscal 2014 _©
Basic Esmings Por Share Diiusted Esrnings Par Share
[in miilions, sxcedl per shars daty)
Winighied- e lghted-
Incamae Average Earmirgs par Incomas Aoww g Eaming s per
Al catian Sherel Brare = & B BRben Shares Bhikre =
AM Cutztanding (1) |AMEY [Ap Outstanding (I} [
Class A common shock 5 4,307 193 S 2,16 5 5,438 2523 W™ § 2,16
Class B common stock a5 M5 3 363 3 880 245 5 362
Class © common slock 22 2% 3% 865 s 21 % 5 862
Participating securties 17 Hot presented Pot presented | 3 16 Mot presented Mt presented
et incorne 5 5,438
—

1 Figures in the table may not recalculate exactly due %o rounding. Eamings per share is calculated based on unrounded numbers. The number of
shares and per share amounts for the prior pericds presented have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the tour -for-one stock spiit effected in

the flacal second quarter of 2015, See Nohe 14—Siockhaollers” Equity
shares of as-corverted clags B comman stock used in the income allocation were
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405 millian for fiscal 2016 and 2015 and 4132 million for figcal 2014, The weighted-average number of shares of as-converted class C common
gtock used in the income allocation was TS milion | 87 million and 103 milien for fiscal 2016 , 2015 and 2014 |, respectively.

" Weighted-average diluted shares outstanding are calculated on an as-converted basis, and include incremental common stock equivalents, as
cakulated under the treasury stock method, The computation includes 5 million | & million and ¥ milllon common stock equivalents for fiscal 2016
L2015 and 2014 | respectively, because their effect would have been diutive, The computation exciudes 2 millizn of commaon stock equivalents
for figeal 2016 | 2015 and 2014 because thelr effect would have been anti-cilutive,

Participating securiies include preferred stock oulstanding and urwested share-based payment awards that contain non-forfeltable rights to
dividends or dividend equivalents, such as the Company’s U K &1 and Europe preferred stock, restricted stock awards, restricted stock units and
earned performance-based shares. UK S| and Eurape preferred stock were [ssued as part of the purchase price consideration in connection with
ther Visa Europe acquisition and are convertible into a number of shares of class A commeon stock of class A equivalent preferred stock upon
cartain conditions. Participating securities' income is allocated based on the weighted-average number of shares of as-converted stock. See Nolfe
2—Acquisition of Visa Europe and Note 14—Stockhokders’ Equily

i

Mote 16—3Share-based Compensation

2007 Equity Incenlive Compensation Plan

The Company's 2007 Equity Incentve Compensation Plan, or the EIP, authorizes the compensation committee of the board of directorns to
grant non-qualified stock eptions ("options”), restricted stock awards ("RSAS"), restricted stock units ("RSUS") and performance-based shares to its
employees and non-employee directors, for up to 236 million shares of class A common stock. Shares available for award may be either authorized
and unissuad or previously issued shares subsequently acquired by the Company. The EIP will continue to be in effect until all of the common stock
availabie under the EIP is delvered and all restrictions on those shares have lapsed, unless the EIP is terminated eariier by the Company's board of
directorg, In January 2016, the Company's board of directors approved an amendment of the EIR effective February 3, 2016, such that awards may
be granted under the plan until January 31, 2022,

Share-based compensation cost i§ recorded net of estimated forfeitures on a straight-ling basis for awards with service conditions anly, and on
a graded-vesting basis for awards with service, performance and market conditions, The Company's estimated forfeiture rate & based on an
evaluation of historical, actal and trended forfeiture data, For fiscal 2016 |, 2015 and 2014 | the Company recorded share-baged compensation cost
refated to the EIP of 3211 millon | 184 million and 3172 million | respectively, in personnel on its consolidated statements of operations, The related
tax benefits were 562 milion , 554 million and $51 million for fiscal 2016 , 2015 and 2014 | respectively. The ameunt of capitalized share-based
Compensation cost was immaterial during fscal 2016 , 2015 and 2014

All per share amounts and number of shanes outstanding presented below reflect the four -for-one stock split that was effacted n the second
quarter of fiscal 2015, See Note 14—Slockhokiers’ Equily .

Oiptions

Crptions issued under the EIP expire 10 years from the date of grant and primarily vest ratably over 3 years from the date of grant, subject to
earlier vesting in full under certain conditions.

Dwring fiscal 2016 |, 2015 and 2014 | the fair value of each stock option was estimated on the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option pricing
moadel with the following weighted-average assumplions:
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2016 2015 14

Expected term (in years) " 4,35 4.55 4.80
Risk-free rate of return 7! 1.5% 1.5% 1.3%
Expectad volatility & 21.7% 22.0% 25.2%
Expectad dividend yield 0.7% 0.8% 0.8%
Fair value per option granted § 15.01 5 12.04 5 11.03

This assumption ks based on the Company’s historical option exercises and those of a set of peer companies that management belleves is
generally comparable to Visa. The Company's data is welghted based on the number of years between the measurement date and Visa's initial
public offering as a parcentage of the options’ confractual term, The relative weighting placed on Visa's data and peer data in fiscal 2016 was
approximately 77% and 23% , regpectively, 6T% and 33% In figcal 2015, respectively, and 58% and 42% in fiscal 2014, respectively

' Based upon the zero coupon LS. treasury bond rate over the expected term of the awards,

% Based on the Company's Implied and histerical volatiity. The expected volatilities ranged from 20% to 23% in fiscal 2016, 21% to 23% in fiscal
2015, and 22% to 26% in fiscal 2014,

Based on the Company's annual dividend rate on the date of grant

The following tabke summarizes the Company’s option activity for fiscal 2016

g Contractun oo
Exwrcise Price Term Value ®
Options Por Shara {im yoars) fin milions)
Outstanding at October 1, 2015 O877.717 S 28.07
Granted 1,438,048 35 7988
Forfeited [4563,378) 3 21.76
Exercised (1.775.903) 3 20,00
Cutstanding at September 30, 2016 BATE484 5 38.42 02 5383
Ciptions exercisable at September 30, 2016 g 204588 3 24 87 EE] 5359
EWuna exercisable and expected to vest at September 30, 2016 8502576 S 3738 - 380

' Calcutated using the clesing stock price on the last trading day of fiscal 2016 of $82.70 , less the option exercise price, multiplied by the number
of instruments.
1 Applies a forfelure rate to unvested options oulstanding at September 30, 2016 to estimate the options expectad to vest in the future,

For the opticns exercized during fiscal 2016 , 2015 and 2014 | the total intrinsic value was 5103 milkoen |, 5134 milion and $187 millken |
respectively, and the tax benefit realized was 35 millien , 86 million and 3265 million , respectively, As of September 30, 2016 |, there was 518
millian of tatal unrecognized compensation cost related to unvesied options, which s expected to be recognized over a welghted-average period of
approximately 1.4 years.

Restricted Siock Awards and Restncted Stock Units

RSAg and RSLUs issued under the EIP primarily vest ratably over 3 years from the date of grant, subject to earlier vesting in full under certain
conditions

Upon vesting, the RSAs are settled in class A common stock on a one-fof-one basis. During the vesting penod, RSA award recipents are
eligible to receive dividends and participate in the same veting rights as those granted to the helders of the underlying class A commaen stock. Upan
vesting, RSUs can be setthed in class A commen stock on a one-for-one basis of in cash, of a combination thereof, at the Company's option. The
Company does not currently intend to settie any RSUs in cash. During the vesting period, RSU award recipients are eligitle to
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recebvi dividend equivalents, but do net participate in the voting rights granted t the halders of the underlying class A comman slack. The company
discontinued granting RSAS in fiscal 2016 but will continue to grant RSUs under the EIP

Thia fair value and compensation cost bafore estimated forfeftures for RSAs and RSUs is calculated using the closing price of class A comman
stock on the date of grant The weighted-average grant-date fair value of RSAs granted during fiscal 2015 and 2014 was $63.71 and 54998 |
respectively. Mo R5As weane granted during fiscal 2016 . The weighted-average grant-date fair value of R5Us granted during fiscal 2016 , 2015 and
2014 was §79.77 , 562.88 and 549 44 | respectively. The tolal grant-date fair valwe of RSAs and RSUs vested during fiscal 2016 |, 2015 and 2014
was 5142 millien , $132 million and 5126 milkzn , respectively.

The foliowing table summarizes the Company's RSA and RSU activity for fiscal 2016

Weighted.
Average
5 Rermaining Aggregate
Average Conractual Intrinsic
Geant Date Term Value 0
Restricted Stock Fair Value iy ymars) (i mallions)
Bwards Units RSA RSU RSA RS RSA RSU
Outstanding at October 1, 2015 4,064 GET 1442522 & 5409 5 5380
Granted — 2735115 § — 5 7877
Vested (2,061, 408) (789,1B0) 5 4806 § 5158
Forfeited (236.699) (241,503) 5 5934 3 Tao2
Outstanding at September 30, 2016 1,766,582 3146954 5§ 5026 § 7548 03 1.7 $145 $260

1 Calcutated by multiplying the closing stock price on the |ast trading day of fiscal 2016 of 582 70 by the number of instruments.

At Septermber 30, 2016 | there was 354 million and 3140 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested RSAs and RSUs,
regpectively, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average7 period of approximately 0.8 years for RSAs and 1.7 years for RSUs,

Performance-baged Shares

The following table summarizes the maximum number of performance-based shares which could be earned and related activity for fiscal 2016

Walghted-
Buver
Winighted- Remasining Aggregate
Averags Cortractual Intrinsie
Grant Dale Term Wahue M
Shares Fair Value {in years} {in milliones)
Cutstanding at October 1, 2015 1,263 962 § 57.81
Granted 604213 3 927
Vested and earned (6453200 3 54.59
Unaarned {(1233B7) % 54 .54
Forfeited (57462) % 73.07
Outstanding at Septermber 30, 2016 1042042 = 7824 049 SB6

1 Calcutated by multiplying the closing stock price on the last trading day of fiscal 2018 of $82.70 by the rumber of instruments.
w Represents the maximum number of performance-based shares which could be earned.

For the Company's performance-based shares, in addition te sarvice conditions, the ulimate number of shares to be sarmed depends on the
achievement of both parfermance and market conditions. The performance cendition

104

238/267



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

VISA INC,

HOTES TO CONSOQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—[Cantinued)
September 30, 2016

is based on the Company's earings per share target. The market condiion s based on the Company's total shareholder returm ranked against that
of gther companies that are included in the Standard & Poor's 500 Index. The fair value of the pedormance-based shares, incorporating the market
condition, is estimated on the grant date using a Monte Carle simulation modal The grant-date fair value of perfformance-based shanes granted in
fiscal 2016 , 2015 and 2014 was 38271 , 565.78 and 55637 per share, respectively. Earned performance shares granted in fiscal 2016 , 2015 and
2014 vest approximately 3 years from the initial grant date. All performance awards are subject to earlier vesting in full under certain conditions.

Compensation cost for performance-based shares is initially estimated based on target perdformance. It is recorded net of estimated forfeitures
and adjusted as appropriate throughout the performance period. At September 30, 2016 | thera was 518 milion of tolal unrecognized com pensation
cost related to unvested perormance-based shares, which | expected to be recoanized over a weighted-average period of approximately 0.9 years

Employee Steck Purchase Plan

In January 2015, the Company's class A stockholders approved the Visa Inc, Employee Stock Purchagse Plan (the “ESPPT), under which
substantially all employees are eligible to participate. The ESPP permits eligible employees to purchase the Company's class A common stock ata
15% discount of the stock price on the purchase date, subject to certain restrictions. A total of 20 milon shares of class A common stock have been
reserved for issuance under the ESPP. The first affering date was April 1, 2015, The ESPP does not have a material impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

Note 1T7—Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments. The Company leases cerain pramises and equipment throughouwt the workd with varying expiration dates. The Cempany
incurred total rent expense of 5134 milkon , 5136 million and 5124 milien in fiscal 2016 , 2015 and 2014 |, respectively. Future mimimum payments
on keases, and marketing and sponsarship agreements per fiscal year, at September 30, 2016 |, are as follows:

207 2018 2M8 2020 2021 Thereafter Total
(an rrallions)
Operating leases $ 12% % 103 § 82 &% 61 § 57T § 190 § 619
Marketing and sponsorships 126 128 120 110 38 33 555
Tatal § 2652 % 2¢1 % 202 % 1M1 5§ 85 % 228 0§ 1,174
— — — — — ——— —

Select spansorship agreements require the Company to spend cerain minimuem amounts for advertising and marketing promotion over the ife
of the contract. For commitments where the individual years of spend are not specified in the contract, the Company has estimated the timing of
wihen these amounts will be spent. In addition to the fixed payments stated above, select sponsorship agreements require the Company to
undertake marketing, promotional or other activities up to stated monetary values to support events which the Company is sponsoring. The stated
maonetary value of these activities typically represants the value in the marketplace, which may be significantly higher than the actual costs incurred
by the Company.

Client incentives. The Company has agreements with financial institution clients and other business partners for various programs designed to
buikd payments volume, increase Wisa product acceptance and win merchant routing fransactions. These agreements, with terms ranging from one
year to sikteen years, can provide card Bsuance andior comversion suppor, valumesgrowth targets and marketing and program support based on
specific performance requirements. These agreements are designed to encourage client business and to increase overall Visa- payment and
transaction volume, thereby reducing per-unit transaction processing costs and increasing brand awareness for all Visa clients.

FPayments made that quality for capitalization and obligations incurred under these programs are reflected in the consolidated balance sheet
Chent incentives are tmgnl:eu prirnarily 2% a reduction to operating revenue in the peri:rd the retated volumes and transactions occur, based on
managemeant's estimate of the chent's
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peformance in accardance with the terms of the incentive agreement. The agreements may of may not finit the amount of elient incentie
payments.

The table below sets forth the expected future reduction of revenue per fiscal year for client incentive agraements in affect at September 30,
2016

{in millions) AT WA 209 020 ol Theraafter Total
Client incentives 3 4211 § 3762 3211 5 2628 8 2245 % 4817 § 20,684

The amount of client incentives recorded as a reducton of revenue In future pericds under the Company’s incentive arrangements, will be
greater or less than the estimates above due to changes in performance expectations, actual client perfformance, amendments to existing contracts
or the execution of new contracts. Based on these agreements, increases in incentive payments are generally driven by Increased payment and
transaction wolume, and as a result, in the event incentive payments exceed the above estimates, such payments are not expected to have a
material effect on the Company's financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Deferred purchase consideration. On June 21, 2016, we acquired 100% of the share capital of Visa Europe. In connection with the purchase,
wie willl pay an additional €1.0 billlon | plus 4% compound annual interest, on the third annbersary of the Closing, See Nofe 2—Acquisition of Visa
Eurape to our congoligated financial statements

Hote 18—Related Partles

Visa considers an entity o be a related party for purposes of this disclosure if that entity owns more than 10% of Visa's total voling comman
stock at the end of the fiscal year, or if an officer or employee of that entity also serves on the Com pany's board of directors. The Company
considers an investes to be a related party i the Company's: (i) ownership interest in the investes is greater than or equal to 10% or {ii) ¥ the
investment is accounted for under the equity method of accounting. At September 30, 2016 and 2015 | no entity ownad mora than 10% of the
Company's total voting common stock. There were no significant transactions with retated parties during fiscal 2016 , 2015 and 2014

Hote 18—Income Taxes

The Company's income before taxes by fiscal year consisted of the following:

2016 2015 201
Jirw millicerns )
s, $ 5839 S 7214 & 6,140
Mon-U.S, 2173 1,781 1,564
Total income befare taxes 5 8012 5 8995 S 7,724

U5, income before taxes included 52.5 billion | 52 .4 billion and 32,3 billion of the Company's U5, entibes’ income from operations cutside of
the U5 for fiscal 2016 , 2015 and 2014 | respectively.

Income tax provision by fiscal year consisted of the following:
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2016 2015 2014
{irs millicng)

Current:

U.5. federal -1 2250 3§ 1891 3§ 2,353

State and lecal igi 168 237

MNan-U.S 368 300 274
Total current taxes 2,789 24549 2,864
Deferred:

U5, federal (508) 181 (8T6)

State and local (63) 1 {31)

Man-U.5. {207) 26 29
Total deferred taxes (778) 208 (578)
Total income tax provision ] 2021 § 2E67 3 2,285

The tax effect of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of deferred tax assets and labilities at September 30, 2016 and

2015 | are presented below:

016 015
{irs millians)
Deferred Tax Assets:
Accrued compensation and benefits 5 L 141
Comprehensive (income) loss 106 51
Accrued Bigation obligation a3 M
Client incentives 2688 191
Met operating loss carmyforsarnds 32 50
Faderal benefit of state taxes 1895 203
Federal benefit of foreign taxes 1,214 —
Cther 280 185
Valuation allowance (31) (40}
Deferred tax assets 2,712 1,172
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Property, equipment and technalogy, nat (278) (315)
Intangible assets (T.013) (3,864)
Foreign taxes (108) (153)
Cther {101) -
Defarred tax liabilities {7.498) {4,432}
Met deterred tax labilibes 5 (4,788) S {3.260)

The mcrease in the net defened tax abaities prirnarily refiect the deferred tax Impacts of the intangible assets acquired n the Visa Europs
acquisition. At September 30, 2016 and 2015, net deferrad tax assets of 522 million and $13 milon , respectively, are reflected in other assets on

the consolidated balance sheets

In Nevember 2015, the FASE issued Accounting Standards Update 2015-17, which simplifies the presentation of deferred income faxes by

requiring that deferred tax assets and Eabilities be presanted as non-cument. The standard impacts presentation

only. The Company elected to early

adopt the standard on a retrospective basis effective Oclober 1, 2015, and all deferred tax assets and liabilties are classified as non-current on the
Company's consclidated balance sheets. All prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current pericd presentation
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In assessing the realizabdty of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is mone Bkely than not that all or same portion of the
dedferred tax assets will not be realized. The ulimate realization of the deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income
during the percds in which those tlemporary differences are deducticle. The fiscal 2016 and 2015 valuation allewances relate primarily to foreign net
operating losses from subsidiaries acquired in recent years.

A% of September 30, 2016 , the Company had $17 million feceral, 521 million state and $117 million foreign net operating loss carryfonwards.
The federal and state net aperating loss carryforwards will expire in fiscal 2028 through 2035 . The foreign net operating loss may be carried forward
indefinitely. The Company expects to fully utilize the federal and state net aperating 1055 carmyforwards in future years.

Az of September 30, 2018, the Company had $15 millien of federal foreign fax credit carmyforwards, which will expire in fiscal 2026. The
Company expects to realize the benafit of the credit carryfonsards in future years.

The income tax provision differs from the amount of income tax determined by applying the appicable U5, federal statutory rate of 35% ta
pretax income, as a result of the following:

Far tha Years Ended Seplember 30,

M8 2015 2014
Dollars Porcont Dollars Porcont Dollars Porcent
{in millions, except percentages)

U.S. federal income tax at statutory rate 5 2804 B/h 5 348 IR 5 2704 35 %
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 135 2% 194 2% 128 2%
Mon-LLS. tax efect, net of federal benefd [553) (T)% [327) [4)% {278) 4)%
Prior years U5, domestic producton activities

deduction — - — — % {191) 2%
Remeasurement of deferred tax Rability (88} [1)% — — % —_ ]
Reversal of prior years tax resarves related o the

resclution Mp'um:mm tax positions = =% =4 s = il
Revaluation of Visa Eurape put opticn [:3:] (1)% - —_— —_ —_
Cther, net (188} (3% (109) (1% {78) (1)%
Income tax provision 5 0 ™% 5 2667 0% 5 2288 30 %

The effective income tax rate was 25% in fiscal 2016 and 30% in fiscal 2015 _ The effective tax rate in fiscal 2016 differs from the effective tax
rate in fscal 2015 primarily due to:

= the effect of one-time items related to the Visa Europe acquisition, the most significant of which was the $1.9 billion U.5. loss related to the
affective sattlement of the Framework Agreament betwesen Visa and Visa Europe. These one-time items impacted the gecgraphic mix of
ghobal income, resulting in a reduced affective tax rate,

= an 388 milkon one-time tax benefit due 1o the remeasurement of deferred tax llabilities as a result of the reduction in the U K. tax rate
enacted in fiscal 2015,

= the nontaxable $255 milion revaluation of the Visa Eurcpe put option recorded in figcal 2016 and

* the absence of a 3296 million tax benefit recognized in fiscal 2015 resulting from the resolution of uncertain tax pogitions with taxing
authorities. Included in the $226 millon was a ene-time 5239 milllon tax benefit that related to prior fiscal years.

The effective income tax rates were 30% in fiscal 2015 and 2014 . The following highlights the signiicant tax items recorded in each respective
e

+  the aforementcened 5296 milllan tax benefit recognized in fiscal 2013, and
+ 3 5264 millon tax benefit recognized in iiscal 2014 related to a deduction for LS. domestic production activities, of which 3181 million was a
one-time tax banefit related to prior fiscal years.
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Current income bxes receivable were $232 million and 577 million 2t September 30, 2016 and 2015 | respectively. Non-current incorme tixes
receivable of 5731 million and $627 million were incheded in other assets at September 30, 2016 and 2015 , respectively. See Mote 5—Prapaid
Expenses and Other Assets . At September 30, 2016 and 2015 | income taxes payable of $153 million and 575 milion | respectively, were included
in accrued income taxes as part of accrued liabilties, and accrued income taxes of $311 million and $752 millon |, respectively, were included in
other long-term liabilities. Sea Note 8—Accrued and Sther Liabilitias

Cumulative undistributed earnings of the Company's intermational subsidiaries that are intended to be reinvested indefinitely outside the United
States amounted to $3.3 billion at September 30, 2016 . The amount of income taxes that would have resulted had such eamnings been repatriated
Iz not practicably determinable

The Company's largest operating hub outside the United States is located in Singapore. [t operates under a tax incentive agreement which is
effective through September 30, 2023, and is conditional upon meeting certain business operations and employment thresholds in Singapore, The
tax incentive agreement decreased Singapore tax by $235 millien , $192 million and 5168 million , and the benefit of the tax incentive agreement on
diluted earnings per share was $0,10 , $0.08 and $0.07 in fiscal 2016 , 2015 and 2014 | respectively.

In accordance with Accounting Standards Codification T40—Income Taxes , the Company is required to inventary, evaluate and measure all
uncertain tax positions taken or to be taken on tax returns, and to record labiities for the amount of such positions that may not be sustained, or
may ondy partially be sustained, upon examination by the relevant taxing authorities,

At September 30, 2016 and 2015 | the Company's total gross unfecognized tax benefits were $1.2 billion and $1.1 billion |, respectively,
exclusive of interest and penalties described below. Incieded in the $1.2 billlon and 51.1 Billion are 3926 milion and 3652 milllon of unrecognized tax
benefits, respectively, that if recognized, would reduce the effective tax rate in a future period

A recanciliation of beginning and ending unrecognized tax benefits by fiscal year & as follaws,

2015 2015
firy millena)
Beginning balance at October 1 § 1,051 35 1302
Increases of unrecognized tax benefits related to prior years 153 44
Decreases of unrecognized tax benefits related to prior years {180) {413}
Increases of unecognized tax benefits related to current year 138 120
Reductions related to lapsing statute of limitations 2) (3)
Ending balance at September 30 5 1160 5 1,051

It s the Company's policy to account for interest expense and penalies related to uncertain tax positions in non-operating expense in its
consolidated staterments of operations. The Company recognized 515 million and 510 mitlion of interest expense in fiscal 2016 and 2014,
respectively, and reversed 36 million of interest expense in fiscal 2015, related to uncertain tax positions. The Company accrued 53 million , 51
million and $2 million of penalties in fiscal 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively, related to uncenain tax positions. At September 20, 2016 and 2015
the Company had accrued interest of $61 milliom and 533 million , respectively, and accrued penalties of $17 milion and 36 million | respectrvely,
related to uncertain tax pogitions in its other long-term liabilities, At September 30, 2016, accrued interest and penaltes balances included amounts
related to the Visa Europe acquisition.
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The Cormpany's fiscal 2009 through 2012 ULE. federal income tx returns ane cufréntly undes Intefmal Revenue Service (TIRS") examination.
The Company has filed a federal refund claim for fiscal year 2008, which &5 also currently under IRS examination. Except for the refund claim, the
federal statutes of limitations have expired for fiscal years prior 1o 2009 The Company's fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2002 Californi tax returns are
currently under examination Except for certain outstanding refund claims, the California statutes of limitations have expdred for fiscal years pror to
2006,

Druring fiscal 2013, the Canada Revenue Agency (CRA) completed its examination of the Company®s fiscal 2003 through 2008 Canadian tax
returnzs and proposed certain assessments. Based on the findings of its examination, the CRA also proposed certain assassments to the Company's
fiscal 2010 throwgh 2015 Canadian tax returns. The Company filed notices of objaction against thesa assessments and, in fiscal 2015, completed
the appeals process without reaching a settlement with the CRA, In April 2016, the Company petitoned the Tax Court of Canada to overturn the
CRA's assessments, The Company continues to beleve that it ncome tax provision adequately reflects its obligations to the CRA

The Company is also subject to examinations by various state and foreign tax autherities. All material state and foreign tax matters have been
concheded for years through fiscal 2002, The timing and outcome of the final resolutions of the federal, state and foreign tax examinations and refund
claims are unceain. As such, it 15 not reasonably possible 1o estimate the impact that the final outcomes could have on the Campany's
unfecognized thx benelits in the next 12 months.

Mote 20—Legal Matters

Thie Company is pay to vanows legal and regulatory preceedings. Some of these proceedings invole comples claims that are subject 1o
substantial uncertainties and unascertainable damages. Accordingly, except as disclosed, the Company has not established resenves or ranges of
possible loss related to these proceedings, as at this time in the proceedings, the matters do not relate to a probable boss andfor the amount or
range of losses are not reasonably estimable. Although the Company believes that it has strong defenses for the litigation and regulatory
proceedings described below, it could, in the future, incur judgments or fines or enter into settements of claims that could have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash fiows. From time to time, the Company may engage in settiement
discussions or mediations with respect to one or more of its outstanding liigation matters, either on its own behalf or collectively with other parties.

The litigation accrual 5 an estimate and |3 based on management's understanding of its litigation profile, the specifics of each case, advice of
counsel to the extent appropriate and management's best estimate of incured loss as of the balance sheset date.

The follewing table summarizes the activity related to accrued litigation

Fiscal 2016 Fiscal 2015
{iry millions)

Balance at October 1 5 1,024 5 1,456
Provision for uncovered legal matters 2 14
Acerual for VE territory coverad litigation 2 —
Payments on legal matters [47) {448)

Balance at September 30 5 881 5 1,024

Acerual Summary—U.S. Covered Litigation

Visa Inc., Visa U.S.A, and Visa Intermational are parties to certain legal proceedings that are covered by the U8, retrospective responsibility
plan, which the Company refers to as the U, S, covered litigation. See Nalfe 3—U. 3. and Evrope Refrospective Responsibility Pians . An accrual for
the U.5. covered litigation and a charge to the litigation prowvision are recorded when loss is deemed to e probable and reasonably estimable, In
making this determination, the Company evaluates avaitable information, including but net limited to actions taken by the litigation committee. The
tofal accrual related to the U.S, covered Iitigation could be either higher aor lower than the
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ascrow account balance. The follwing table summarnizes the activity related 1o LS. coverad liigation.

Fiscal 2016 Fiscal 2015

]
Balance at October 1 5 1083 § 1,449
Payments on U.S. covered Bigation (45) {426)
Balance at September 30 H |78 5 1,023

Cn Janzary 14, 2014, the MOL 1720 court entered a firal judgrment arder approving a settiement with ckags plaintiffs in the interchange
multidistrict itigation proceedings, which is subject to the outcome of any appeals. Following the payment of approximately $4.0 billlon from the U.S.
litigation escrow account into seftlerment funds pursuant to the class setlement agreement, on January 27, 2014, Visa received and deposited into
the Company's U.S. litigation escrow account “takedown payments® of approximately $1.1 billion , which Visa was entithed to receive under the class
setlement agreement based on payment card sales volume attributable to merchants who opted out. The deposit into the U.S. ktigation escrow
account and 3 related increase in accrued litigation to address opt-out claims were recorded in the second quarter of fiscal 2014, An additional
accrual of 5450 million associated with these opt-out claims was recorded im the fowrth quarter of fiscal 2014, Payments totaling § 528 million were
made from fizcal 2014 through 2016 from the U5, itgation escrow account reflecting settlements with a number of individual opt-out merchants,
resulting in an accrued balance of 878 milion related to U.S. covered (itigation as of September 30, 2016, See further discussion b2low under
Indterdugl Merchant interchange Liigation and Note 3—U. 5 and Eurape Relrospecitive Responsibilly Plans

Accrral Sumnrary—VE Territory Covered Litigation

Viga Inc., Visa International and Visa Europe are parties o centan legal proceedings that are covered by the Europe retrospective responsibility
plan. Unkke the U.S. retrospective responsibiiity plan, the Europe rerospective responsibilty plan does not have an escrow account that is used to
fund settierments of judgments. The Company is entitled to recaver VE territory coverad losses through & periodic adjustrent to the conversion rates
applicatde 1o the UK S preferred stock and Europe prefermed stock. An accrual for the VE territory coversd losses and a reduction to steckhalders'
equity will be recorded when the oss B deemed 10 be probable and reasonably estimabhe. See further discussion below under VE Terrilory Covered
Libigaion and Nafe 3-U.5. and Euwrope Retrospective Responsibility Plans . The fallowing table summarizes the activity related to VE territory
covered litigation

Fiscal 2018
[y Prdllboas )
Balance at October 1 5 —
Accrual for VE terribory covered litigation 2
Balance at September 30 5 2
i1
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U.8. Covered Litigation
Interchange Muttidistrict Ltigation (MOL)

Beginming In May 2005, a series of complaints (the majonty of which were styled a3 class actions) were filed in U.S. federal district couns by
merchants against Visa U.S.A, Visa International andfor MasterCard, and in $ome cases, cerain Visa member financial institutions. The complaints
challenged, among other things, Visa's and MasterCard's purported setting of interchange reimbursement fees, their "no surcharge” rules, and
aleged fying and bundling of transaction fiees under the federal antitrust laws, and, in some cases, certain state unfair competition laws. The Judicial
Paneal on Multidistrict Litigation issued an order transfarring the cases to the U 5. District Court for the Eastern District of Mew York for coordination
of pre-trial proceadings in MDL 1720. A group of purported class plaintiffs subsaquently filed 3 Second Consolidated Amended Class Action
Complaint which, together with the complaints brought by individual merchants, sought money damages alleged to range in the tens of billions of
dedlars (subject to trekding), as well as attorneys' fees and injunctive relief, The class plaintiffs also filed a Second Supplemental Class Action
Complaint against Visa Inc. and certain member financial institutions challenging Visa's reorganization and IFO under the antitrust laws and seeking
unspecified money damages and declaratory and injunctive relief, including an order that the |PO be unwound

The Company and certain individual merchants whose claims were consolidated with the MOL signed a settiement agreement to resohve their
claims against the Company for approximatety $350 million . This payment was made from the U5, litigaton escrow account on October 29, 2012,
and the court has dismissed those claims with prejudice,

In addition, Visa Inc., Visa U.5.A,, Visa international, MasterCard Incorporated, MasterCard International Incorporated, various U.S. financial
Institution defendants, and the class plaintifts signed a settiement agreement (the “2012 Settlement Agreement”) to resolve the class plaintiffs'
claims, The terma of the 2012 Setement Agreament include, among other terms, (1) a comprehensive release of claims assenmad in the litigation
and protection againgt future Figation regarding defaull interchange and other U.S, rules; (2) settiement payments from the Company of
approximately $4.0 billion and a further distribution of 10 basis points of default interchange for an eight-month period; (3) certain modifications to the
Company’s rules, including modifications te parmit surcharging on cradit ransactions under certain circumstances, and (4) the Company's
agreament to meet with marchant buying groups that seek to collectively negotiate interchange rates. On December 10, 2012, Visa paid
approximately 540 billion from the U.5. |Rigation escrow account into a settiement fund astablished pursuant to the 2012 Settlement Agreameant.

Cm January 14, 2014, the court entered a final judgment order approving the setiiement, from which a number of objectors appealed. On June
30, 2016, the U 5, Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit vacated the lower court's certification of the merchant class and reversed the approval of
the settiement The Second Circuit determined that the class plaintiffs were inadequately represented, and remanded the case to the lower court for
further proceedings not inconsistent with its decision, Prior to November 23, 2016, class plaintiffs may file a petition for writ of certiorari with the U5
Supreme Court seaking review of the Second Circuits decision, Until the appeals process is complete, it is uncertain whether the Com pany will be
able to resolve the class plaintiffs’ cklaims as contemplated by the 2012 Setiement Agreement. However, the case s still LS. covered litigation fior
purposes of the U 5, retrospective responsibiity plan. See Nofe 3—U. 5. and Evrope Relrospeciive Responsibility Plans .

Consumer Inlerchange Litigation

On December 16, 2013, a putative class action was filed on behalf of all Visa and MasterCard payment cardhalders in the United States since
January 1, 2000, against certain financial institutions, identifying non-defendants Visa, MasterCard and certaln ather financial Instiutions as co-
conspiratars. Plaintifts allege primarily a conspiracy 1o Tix interchange fees and seek injunctive relief, attorneys’ fees and reble damages in excess of
$54.0 billien dolars annually anging from purpered overcharges. Origirally filed in federal court in Califormia, the case was transterred to MDL 1720,
On Movember 26, 2014, the MDL court dismissed plaintifts federal law claim and declined 1o exercise jurisdiction over plaintiffs' state law claim. Both
sides asked the court to reconsider aspects of its decision and Tiled notices of appeal.
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On February 24, 2016, the MDL court dended plaintiffs’ motion for reconsideration of the dismissal of plaintiffs’ federal claim and dismissed
pRaintiffs’ state Bw claim based on defendants’ cross-motion for reconsideration. On October 17, 2016, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Second
Circuit affirmed the dismissal of plaintiffs' claims, and on October 31, 2016, plaintiffs sought rehearing by the Second Circuit

Individual Merchant Interchange Litigation

Beginning in May 2013, more than 50 cases have been fed invanous federal district courts by hundreds of menchants who had opled out of
the damages portion of the 2012 Settiement Agreement, generally pursuing damages claims on allegations similar to those raised in MDL 1720 A
number of the cases also include allegations that Visa has monopolized, attempted to monocpolize, andior conspired to monopolize debit cand-
related market segments. In addition, some of the cases seek an injunction against the setting of default interchange rates; certain Visa Rulas
relating to merchants, inchuding the honor-all-cards rule; and various transaction fees, including the fived acquirer network fee. One merchant’s
complaint also asserts that Visa, MasterCard and their member banks conspired to prevent the adoption of chip-and-FIN authentication in the U.S
or otherwise circumvent competition in the debit market, and at least two merchant groups have requested permission from the MOL court to amend
their complaints. The cases name as defendants Visa Inc., Visa U.5.A,, Visa International, MasterCard Incorporated and MasterCard International
Incorparateed, afthough some also include certain LS. financial institutions as defendans. WalkMart Stores Inc. and its subsidiaries filed a complaint
that also adds Visa Europe Limited and Visa Evrope Services Inc. as defendants.

Viga, MasterCard, and cerntain LS. financial institution defendtants in MOL 1720 filed a complaint in the Eastern District of New York against
certaln named class representative plaintffs who had epted out or stated their intention o opt out of the damages portion of the 2012 Settlement
Agreement In addition, Visa filed three more similar complaints in the Eastern District of New York against Wal-Mart Stores Inc.; against The Home
Depot, Inc. and Homea Dapot U.S A and against Sears Haldings Corporation. All faur complaints seek a declaration that, from January 1, 2004 to
Movember 27, 2012, the time peried for which opt-outs could seek damages under the 2012 Settlement Agreement, Visa's conduct in, among other
things, continuing to set default interchange rates, maintaining its "honor all cards™ rule, enforcing certain rules relating to merchants, and
restructuring itself, did not viclate federal or state antitrust laws,

All the cases filed in federal court hawve been either assigned to the judge presiding over MDL 1720, or have been transferred or are being
congiderad for transfer by the Judicial Panel on M ultidistrict Litigation far inclusion in MDL 1720. The court has entered am arder confirming that Jn re
Paymen{ Card Interchange Fee and Merchant Discount Anbitrust Liigation | 1:05-md-01720-JG-J0 (ED.M.Y.), includes (1) all current and future
actions transferred to MDL 1720 by the Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation or other order of any court for inclusion in coordinated or pretral
preceedings, and (2) all actions filed in the Eastern District of Mew York that arise out of operative facts as alleged in the cases subject to the
tranater orders of the Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation. Cases that have been transfermed to or otherwise included in MOL 1720 are U.S
covered Itigation for purposes of the U_S. retraspective responsibiity plan. See Note 3—U. 5. and Europe Retrospective Responsibiity Plans

A settliement agreement was reachad with WalkMart Stores Inc, and its subsidianes, which will terminate if, following all appeals, the 2012
Seftiement Agreement m MDL 1720 i reversed or vacated with respect to certification of the Rule 23(b)2) settement class or the consideration
provided to or release provided by that class. Including this settlement with Wal-Mant, as of the date of filing, Visa has reached settlernent
agreaments with a number of marchants representing approximataly 51% of the Visa-branded payment card sales volume of merchants who opled
out of the 2012 Settlement Agreement Except for the setthement with Wal-Mart, these settlement agreaments remain effactive despite the cutcomea
of any appeals from the district courfs order approving the 2012 Settlement Agreement in MDL 1720.

On June 13, 2018, The Home Depot, Inc. and Home Depot LLS.A., Inc. fled suit against Visa Inc., Visa U.S.A., Visa Intermational, MasterCard
Incorporated and MasterCard International Incorporated in the U. 5. District Court for the Morthern District of Georgia, On October 3, 2016, the
Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation Issued an order transferring the case to MDL 1720

While the Company believes that it has substantial defensas in these matters, the final outcome of individual legal claims is inherently
unpredictable, The Company could incur judgments, enter into settements or revise its
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expectations regarding the outcome of individual merchant claims, and such developments could have a material adverse effect on our financial
results in the period in which the effect becomes probable and reasonably estimabie.

VE Territory Covered Litigation
LK. Merchant Litgation

Since July 2012, in excess of 100 Merchants (the capitalized term “Merchant,” when used in this section, means a merchant together with
subsidiaryfaffilate companies) have commenced proceedings against Visa Europe, Visa Inc. and Visa International relating fo interchange rates in
Europe, and seek damages for alleged anti-competitive: condwct primarily in relation to UK. domestic andfor Irish demestic andior intra-EEA
Interchange fees for credit and debit cards. As of the filing date, Visa Europe, Visa Inc. and Visa International have setfled the claims asserted by
two Merchants, and cne Merchant has dropped all claims that refate to debit cards, After a successful application for summary judgment and an
unsuccessiul appeal by the claimants, the claims of UK. merchants should be imted to the six-year period immediately preceding the issuance of
each claim,

In Novernber 2016, ckaims filed by a number of Merchants in 2013 are scheduled to go to trial to determing whether Visa has infringed UK,
competition law and ks able for having set interchange fee rates during the relevant time period. If the Merchants prevall, the amount of any bass
they have suffered will be determined in a separate trial in the future.,

Im addition, ever 30 additianal Merchants have thieatened 1 com mence similar proctedings. Standstil agreements have been entered into
with respect to some of those Merchants' claims. While the amount of interchange being challenged could be substantial, these claims have not yet
besen filed and their full scope is not yet known. The Company has leamed that several additional European enfifies have indicated that they may
also bring simitar ckaims and we articipate additional claims in the future.

Althaugh not all of the merchant claims have been served and thus the full scepe of the claims is not yat known, and there are substantial
defenses to these claims, the total damages sought in the claims that have been issued, served and presened likely amounts to several billion
dellars.

Other Litigation
“ndirgct Purchaser” Actions

From 2000 to 2004, complaints were fled on behalf of consumaers in nineteen different statas and the District of Columbia against Visa and
MasterCard. The complaints alleged, among other things, that Visa's *hanor all cards® rule and a similar MasterCard rule violated state antitrust and
consumer protection laws and comman law. The claims in these class actions asserted that merchants, faced with excessive merchant discount
fees, passed on some portion of those fees to consumers in the form of higher prices on goods and services sold. Plaintiffs scught money damages
and injunctive relief. Visa has been successhul in the majority of these cases, and has resolved the cases in all jurisdictions but California,

In California, the consolidated CreditDebd Card Tying Cases were resol/ed pursuant to 3 revised setfiement agreement that recead final
approval and was affimed on appeal Certain objectors filed petitions for rehearing and for review by the California Supreme Court that were denied
on February 11, 2015, and the judgment approving the settle ment agreement is pow final. One objector has appealed the trial courts anders
regarding the distribution of certain setllement funds, and the denial of that objectors motion for attorneys’ fees and costs.

On December 1, 2015, the objector's appeal from the trial court’s order regarding the distribution of certain setlement funds was dismissed,
The appeal of the denial of the sbjectors motion for attorneys’ fees and costs is pending.

European Commisson Proceedngs

Inter-reqianal Interchange Investgation. Fallowing the issuance of 3 Statement of Objections in 2008 concerming, amang other things, the
abeged default application of Visa Inc s inter-regional inferchange Tees to intra-regional and domestic consumer debit and credit card transactions in
the European Economic Area ("EEAT), the
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Eutaptan Commission ("ECY) served a Supplementary Statement of Objections ("S507) en Visa Ind. and Visa Intemational in 2012, The 550
concerned, n particular, the apphcation of Visa Inc.'s inter-regional imerchange fees to transactions invelving a Visa credit card issued outside the
EEA and a merchant located in the EEA. The EC claims that these fees viclate competition law in the EEA. The S5O indicates that the EC may
imm fines. The pnumja! amount of any fine cannot be estimated at this ime.

Al issues relating to intra-regional or domestic consumer debit and credit card transactions acquired in the EEA have been sattled by
commitments offerad by Visa Europe Limited in 2010 and 2014 and endarsed by the EC. Fellowing its acquisition of Visa Europe Limited in June
2016, these commitments are now binding upon Visa Inc. The EC's case regarding Visa Inc.'s inter-regional interchange feas is still ongoing.

DEC Investigabion. |n 2013, the EC cpened an investigation against Visa Eurcpe, based on a compdaint allaging that Visa Europe's pricing of and
rules relating to Dynamic Currency Conversion (DCC) transactions infringe EU com petition rules. This imvestigation is pending,

Canadian Competition Froceedings

Merchan! Litigatian . Beginning in December 2010, a number of class action lawsuits ware filed in Quebec, British Columbia, Ontario,
Saskatchewan and Alberta against Visa Canada, MasterCard and ten financial institutions on behalf of merchants that accept payment by Visa
andlor MasterCard credit cards. A separate action was filed against Visa Canada Corporation and Visa Inc., bwvo MasterCard enftities and smaller
Canadian issuing tanks, but that case has been stayed, The remalining cases allege a violation of Canada's price-fixing law and vanous comman
law claims based on separate Visa and MasterCard conspiracies in respect of default interchange and certain of the networks’ rules, Four of the
named financial institutions, only one of which is a significant Canadian issuer, have now settied with the plaintiffs.

On March 26, 2014, the British Columbsa Suprerne Court, n one of the class action suits noted above, Walson v. Bank of Amerca Corporalion,
etal , granted the plalntit’s application for class certification in part. On appeal from both the defendants and the plaintf!, the British Celumia Court
of Appeal alkwed the class proceedings to advance but limited the time period of praintifs main price-tixing claim to prior to March 2010, & motion
by i plaintilf o amend its claim to inslude the past-March 2010 period was dismissed by the British Columbi Supreme Court and that nling s
under appeal. The related lawsuits in Ontars, Alberts, and Saskatchewan have effectively been stayed pending further proceedings in British
Columbia. The timing of the lawsuit in Quebec is alss being considered in light of the procesdings in British Columbia,

The pending lawsuits largely seek unspecified monetary damages and injunctive relief, but seme allege substantial damages.
Data Pass Litigation

O Movember 18, 2010, a consurmer filed an amended class action complaint against Webloyalty. com, Inc., Gamestop Corporation, and Visa
Ine. In Connecticut Tederal district court, seeking damages, restituthon and injuncive reliel on the grounds that consumers who made onkng
purchasas at merchants were allegedly deceived into incurring charges for services from Webloyalty com through the unauthorized passing of
cardholder account information during the sales transaction ("data pass®), in violation of federal and state consumer protection statutes and common
law. On October 15, 2015, the count dismissed the case in its entirety, without leave to replead. Plaintiff filed a notice of appeal on Movember 12,
2015.

U5 ATM Access Fee Liigalion

National ATM Councll Class Action | In Dctaber 2011, the National ATM Council and thirteen non-bank ATM operators fled a purported class
action lawsuit against Visa (Visa Inc., Visa International, Visa U.S.A and Plus System, Inc.) and MasterCard in the U_5. District Court for the District
of Columbia, The complaint challenges Visa's rule (and a gimilar MasterCard rube) that if an ATM operator chooges to charge consumers an access
fee for a \Visa or Pius transaction, that fee cannot be greater than the access fee charged for transactions on other netwaorks, Plaintiffts claim that the
rule violates Section 1 of the Sherman Act, and seeks damages "in an amount not presently known, but which is tens of millions of dollars, prior to
trebiing.” injunctive relief and attormeys’ fees,
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Consumér Cless Actions . In Octaber 2011, a purported consumer class action was filed against Visa and MasterCard in the same federal court
challenging the same ATM access fee rules. Two other purported consumer class actions challenging the rules, later combined, were akso filed in
October 2011 in the same fedaral court raming Visa, MasterCard and three financial insttutions as defendants. Plaintiffs seak trable damages,
restitution, injunctive relief, and attorneys’ fees whera available under federal and state law, including under Section 1 of the Sherman Act and
consumer protection statutes,

O February 13, 2013, the court granted the defendants' motions to dismiss and dismissed all of these cases without prejudice. On plaintififs’
appeal, the U.5. Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit vacated the lower court's decisions and remanded for further proceedings.

O February 18, 2016, the National ATM Council moved for a preEminary injunction to prohibit Visa and MasterCard from imposing ATM
access fee non-discrimination rules, On June 28, 2016, the U.S, Supreme Court granted defendants® petitions for writ of certiorar seeking review of
the decisions of the U 5. Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit, and the district court isswed an arder on July 21, 2018, staying the
Cases pending that review. The LS. Supre me Court is scheduled to hear mtargurnam in these cases on December 7, 2016,

U5, Department of Justice Gl Investigabive Demand

O March 13, 2012, the Antitrust Division of the United States Department of Justice (the " Division " } issued a Civil Investigative Demand, or "
CID, " to Visa Inc. seeking documents and information regarding a potential viclation of Section 1 or 2 of the Sherman Act 15USC 551, 2 The
CID focuses on PIN-Authenticated Visa Debit and Visa's competitve responses to the Dadd-Frank Act. including Visa's fied acquirer network fee,
Wisa is cooperating with the Division in connection with the CID

Federal Trade Commizsion

Valurtary Access Letter | The Bureau of Competiton of the United States Federal Trade Commission (the * Bureau * ) has slosed its inquiry
regarding patential viclations of certain regulations associated with the Dodd-Frank Act focusing on Visa's optional PIN Debit Gateway Service.

Notice Regarding EMV Chip Debd Cards . On July 28, 2016, the Bureau notified Visa that the Bureau is conducting an investigation into
whather Visa's requirements for EMV chip inhibit menchant routing choice for debit cand transactions. Visa is cooperating with the Bureau.

Fuilse Nedwork

On Movernber 25, 2014, Pulse Network LLG filed Swit against Visa Inc. in federal distnict court in Texas, Pulse alleges that Visa has
manopolized and attempted to monopolize debit card network senvices markets. Pulse also alleges thal Visa has entered into agreements in
restraint of trade, engaged in unlawiul exclusive dealing and tying, violated the Texas Free Entérprise and Antitrust Act and engaged in tortious
interference with prospective business relationships. Pulse seeks unspecified tretde damages, attormeys' fees and injunclive relief, indluding 1o enjoin
the fwed acquirer network fee structure, Visa's conduct regarding PIN-Authenticated Visa Debit and Visa agreements with merchants and acguirers
relating to debit acceptance. On January 23, 2015, Visa filed a motion to dismiss the complaint On December 17, 201%, the court denied Visa's
meotion to dismiss the complaint, and the case remains pending.

New Mexico Atlorney General

Om December 23, 2014, a case similar to MOL 1720 was filed in Mew Mexico state court by Mew Mexico's attorney general on behalf of the
state, state agencies and citizens of the state, generally pursuing claims on allegations similar to those raised in MDL 1720, On May 15, 2015,
defendants filed a partial moton 1o dismiss, which the cour granted in part and, among other things, namowed the state antfrust damages claims,

EMV Chip Liabilty Shit

Foliowing their initial complaint filed on March &, 2016, B&R Supermarket, Inc,, ditva Milam's Market, and Grove Liquars LLC filed an amended
class action complaint on July 15, 2016, against Visa Inc., Visa USA,
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MasterCard, Discover, American Express, EMVCo and certain financial institutions in the U_S. District Count for the Northern District of California.
The amended complaint asserts that defendants, through EMVCo, conspired to shift liability for fraudulent, faulty or otherwise rejected consumer
credit card transactions from defendants to the purported class of merchants, defined as those merchants throughout the United States who have
been subject to the “Liabiity Shift® from October 2015 to the present. Plaintiffs claim that the so-called “Liability Shift® violates Sections 1 and 3 of the
Sherman Act and certain state laws, and seek treble damages, injunctive relief and attorneys” fees. On September 30, 2016, the court granted
motians to dismiss the amendad complaint filed by EMVYCo and the financial instiution defendants, but dended motions to dismiss filed by Visa Ing
Wisa U.S.A , MasterCard, American Express and Discover

Walmart Acceplance Agreement

On May 10, 2016, WalkMart Stores Inc. and various affiliates ("Walmart™) filed a lawsuit against Yisa U.S.A, In New York County Supreme
Court. Walmart seeks a declaratory judgment that certain of its practices refated to the acceptance of Visa debit cards did not previously and would
net in the future constidute a breach of the acceptance agreement enterad Into between Walmart and Visa. Walmart alse seeks attorneys' fees and a
dectaratory judgment that cerain of Visa's actions viclated the same agreement On June 29, 2016, Visa answered the complaint and filed
counterclaims seeking deckiratory and injunctive reliel, as well as costs and other remedies. In its counterclaims, Visa alleges that certain of
Walmart's conduct and practices relating to the acceptance of Visa debit cards constitule a breach of the acceptance agreement and a breach of the
implied duty of good faith and fair dealing, and that Walmart fraedulently induced Visa to enter into the acceptance agreement On August 15, 2016,
Walmart moved to dismiss Visa's counterclaim for fraudulent inducement

Kroger

On June 27, 2016, The Kroger Co. ("Kroge) filed a RvwSuit against Visa Ine. n the U.S. District Court for the Southerm District of Ohio. In its
complaint, Kroger seeks a declaratory judgment that certain of Visa's rules related 1o the acceptance of Visa debit cards are inconsistent with the
Dodd-Frank Act Kroger also seeks damages and other relief related to certain state law claime, On Auwgust 11, 2016, Visa filed 3 motion to dismiss
the comptaint. On Septermber 15, 2016, Kroger filed its opposition to Visa's motion to dismiss, arguing, among other things, that Kreger seeks a
declaratory judgment that Kroger has not breached its contract with Visa

Broadway Grill

Om July 12, 2016, Broadway Grill, Inc. {"Broadway Grill®), on behalf of itself and a putative class of Calfornia merchants that have acce pted
Visa-branded cards since January 1, 2004, filed a lawsuit against Visa Inc_, Visa International and Visa U.5 A, in California state court Based on
alegations similar to those advanced by plaintiffs in MDL 1720, Broadway Grill pursues claims under California state antitrust and unfair business
statutes, Broadway Grill seeks damages, costs and other remedies. On July 18, 2016, the case was removed to the U.S. District Court for the
Marthern District of Califarnia. Dn Seplember 27, 2016, the district count granted leave to amend the complaint and entered an order remanding the
case o California state court. Thereafter, Broadway Grill amended s complaint and Visa sought permission from the UL.S. Court of Appeals Tor the
Minth Circuit bo appeal the district court's decision. On October 17, 2018, the district court ordered the case remandad to Calfornia state court, and
Wisa's request for permission to appeal is pending.
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Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
The following tables show selected quarterly operating re sults for each quarter and full year of fiscal 2016 and 2015 for the Company:

Suarter Ended [unasdted) Fiscal ¥ ear
Misa Inc. e 2008 M 2018 0 s 2016 Total
{in millions, except per share data)
Qperating revenues - 4261 3% 3630 5 3626 5 3585 § 15082
Qperating income 3 2625 % 428 5 2434 8§ 2388 % 7883
Met income 3 1931 3 412 % 1,07 s 1841 = 5,601
Bagle earnings per share
Class A common stock 5 157} -1 017 5 071 5 080 % 245
Class B common stock 5 13 3 023 3 117 & 132 5 410
Class C common stock 3 317 = 063 3 285 3 220 S5 9.94
Dlluted earnings per share
Class A common stock 5 07e = 017 % 071 5 080 % 248
Class B common stock 3 130 S 0 s 117 8 132 = 4089
Class C commeon stock 3 316 £ 0B % 284 5 320 5 993
Quarter Ended {unaudited] Fiscal Year
Visa Ing, a?n'iiu' Jﬁ?szsf "51!51' nzﬁﬂl' 2015 Toral
{in millicns, sxcept por share data)
Operating revenues 5 35T 5 3518 S 3408 5 3382 5 13,8830
Operating income ] 2283 % 2262 % 2281 % 2238 8 9,064
Net income 3 1512 % 1697 3 1550 % 1,869 % 6328
Baslc earnings per share
Class A common stock $ 062 3§ 063 3§ 063 35 063 % 258
Class B common stock 3 102 5 1.14 3 104 5 108 £ 426
Class C common stock 5 248 3 278 % 253 8§ 254 8 10.33
Dlluted earnings per sharae
Class A common stock % 062 % 063 % 063 % 083 % 258
Class B common stock 3 102 5 114 3§ 104 3§ 104 5 425
Class C common stock 3 248 3 207 % 252 % 253 8 10,30

U Cer unaudited consolidated statement of operations include the impact of several significant one-time items. See Cverview within ftem 7—
Managernent’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations of this report.

1 The Company did not include Visa Europe's financial results in the Company's unavdited consalidated financial statements of operations from the
acquisition date, June 21, 2016, through June 30, 2016 as the impact was immaterial. The dilutive impact of the outstanding shares of series B
and C convertible participating preferred stock from June 21, 2016 through June 30, 2016 was also not included in the calkculation of basic or
diluted earnings per share as the effect was immaterial. See Nofe 2—Acquisiton of Visa Ewrope and Nofe 15—Earnings Per Share to our
congolidated financkal staterments. During the quarter ended June 20, 2016, the Com pany recorded several one-time items assockated wath the
Viga Europe acquisition as follows:

= E1.9billion Visa Europe Framework Agreement loss related to the effective setlement of the Framework Agreement;
. %152 million of acquisition related costs; and
« 5145 million of foreign exchange gains on suro deposits held for a short percd prior 1o the Closing.

118

2521267



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

Table of C

I

1%

See Ovenview within fem T—Managemeni’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condiion and Resulfs of Operations of this report.

* During the second and third quarers of figcal 2016, the Company recorded a net gain of 3116 milkon and a net loss of 542 million, respectively,

before tax, refated to currency forward contracts associated with the euro cash consideration paid in the Visa Europe acquisition. See Cverview
within Managemenrs Duscussion and Analysis of Financlal Condifion and Results of Qpevations within this report.

During the three monthg ended December 31, 2015, the Company recorded $255 millon non-operating income related to a decrease in the falr
value of the Visa Europe put option. This amount is not subject to income tax. See Overview within lfem F—~Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condiion and Results of Qperations of this repon

I ther third quarter of fiscal 2015, the Company récorded a $110 million, non-operating loss related to an increass in the fair value of the Visa
Eurcpe put option. This amount i5 not subject to income tax. See Oveniew within llem F—Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Resulls of Cparations .

The per share amounts for the first quarter of fiscal 2015 presented have been refroactively adjusted to reflect the four -for-one stock split
effected in the fiscal second quarter of 2015. See Nole T4—Stockhalders’ Equiy .
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Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors
Visalnc.:

We consent to the inclusion in this Securities Report on Form 8 of Visa Inc. filed with the Kanto Local
Finance Bureau of our report dated November 15, 2016with respect to the consolidated balance sheets of Visa
Inc. and subsidiaries as of September 30, 2016 and 2015, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year
period ended September 30, 2016, and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of Visa

Inc. as of September 30, 2016, and to the reference to our firm under the caption “Section VI. - Financia
Conditions’ in this Securities Report.

/s KPMG LLP

Santa Clara, Cdlifornia
March 28, 2017
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Visalnc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Visa Inc. and subsidiaries as of
September 30, 2016 and 2015, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income,
changes in equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended September 30, 2016.
We aso have audited Visa Inc.’s internal control over financia reporting as of September 30, 2016, based on
criteriaestablished in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013)issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Visa Inc.’s management is responsible for these
consolidated financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for
its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying
Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statements and an opinion on the Company’s interna control over
financial reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the consolidated
financia statements included examining, on atest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overal financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all materia
respects, the financial position of Visa Inc. and subsidiaries as of September 30, 2016 and 2015, and the
results of its operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended September
30, 2016, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also in our opinion, Visa Inc.
maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financia reporting as of September 30,
2016, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

Visa Inc. acquired Visa Europe during 2016, and management excluded from its assessment of the
effectiveness of Visa Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2016, Visa Europe's
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internal control over financial reporting associated with 7% of total assets and 4% of net operating revenue
included in the consolidated financial statements of Visa Inc. and subsidiaries as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2016. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting of Visa Inc. also excluded an
evaluation of the internal control over financial reporting of Visa Europe.

/s KPMG LLP

Santa Clara, California
November 15, 2016
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